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Ad
Over the past year, we have broadened

and expanded our support for smaller
businesses, cementing our place as a
key enabler of finance markets in the UK.
Our market impact continues 1o grow,
as borne out by strong delivery against
our Key Performance indicators.

4 4

Keith Meorgan
Chief Executive Otficer
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Chair's statement
Scaling and strengthening

Christina McComb
Interim Chair,
Senior Independent Director

O\fv\fﬂ\o\/\)g\

By the start of 2016/17, the
British Business Bank had
successfully maved from

its startup phase to delivery.

A year on, the business has
substantially scaled up its
programmes and broadened
its support for smaiter
businesses across the UK.

We have achieved this progress
against a rapidly evolving political
and economic background. Thanks
to the adaptability designed into
our arganisation from the outset,
the Bank has been able to respond
to changes in our environmentand
the finance markets with flexibility
and agility while continuing to
deliver for smaller UK businesses
and our government shareholder.

This organisational flexibility and
our track recard ininnovationis likely
to be increasingly important, as the
government negotiates the UK's
future relationship with Europe.
There have been many suggestions
around how our role may change as
aresultand, while itis too early to
be certain of what the future holds,
lam confident that the Bank is well
placed to support the country’s
smaller businesses whatever the
outcome of negotiations.

Extending partnerships

Througheut the year, we have
continued to develop our partnerships
with a broad range of finance
providers, fund managers and
challenger banks. A key highlight of
this year was the successful delivery
of the £400m Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund, in partnership with
ten Local Enterprise Partnerships
across the Northern Powerhouse
region. This unigue ccllaboration,
described in greater detail later in
this report, is a compelling iilustration
of how we work alongside our
partners to deliver finance to smaller
businesses where it is most needed.

Addressing regional disparitiesin
finance is a key aim of our sharehoslder,
the Department for Business,

Energy and Industrial Strategy.

Chair's statement

We continue to act as a trusted
advisor gnimportant priorities for

the department and the government
more widely, such as the new
Industrial Strategy, the Patient Capital
Review and funding for innovation.

Start Up Loans Company

The Start Up Leans Company (SULCo)
joined the British Business Bank
group on 1st April 2017.SULCo has

a well established and successfut
track recard providing finance to
micro businesses across the UK. This
means that, as agroup, the Bankis
now able to offer suppart for funding
far businesses at all stages of their
development - from microfinance
talater-stage venture capital.

We were delighted ta welcome

our SULCo colleagues into our
arganisation and | am pleased to
report that the integration process
is making good progress.

Qur people

During 2016/17 our staff numbers
have grown from 117 t0 167 Such
rapid expansion brings a series of
challenges, as many of the scale-up
businesses we support will know

all too well - including a naed for
communication, changes to ways

of doing things and developing more
robust systems and procedures.




Chair's staternent

itis testament to the dedication
and commitment of our people
throughout the organisation that
we have made such meaningful
progress this year whilst building
and scaling to such a degree.

We are committed to making the Bank
a great place to work. The ocutpuis
from our mostracent annual colleague
survey reflect the success of aur
approach, with 85% of our workfarce
saying they were proud to work for
pur organisation. Our people continue
to be our mast important resource,
bringing their expertise, experience
and enthusiasm to bear in contributing
10 our organisational goals.
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The Board

There have been a number of Board
changes this year. Ron Emerson stood
down as the British Business Bank's
Chair in September 2016, taking with
him our thanks for gverseging the
setup of the Bank as its first Chair.

| have been privileged to fill the role
of Interim Chair over the past nine
months and [ am delighted now to
hand over to our new Chair, Lord Smith.

Neeta Atkar was appointed as
Non-executive Directar and Chair
of the Risk Committee in July 2016,
taking over from Teresa Graham,
who had been fuffilling the latter
role an aninterim basis.

In April 2017 our sharehaolder
announced the appointment of
our new Chair, Lord Smith of Kelvin,
to the British Business Bank, and
land the rest of the Beard lock
forward to working tegether with
him in supporting the UK's smaller
business community.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair

LA HELA

The purpose of the British Business
Bank is to make sure that smaller UK
husinesses have access to the finance
that they need to invest, to grow and
to achieve their ambitions. Thisis a
mission | care passionately about and
have dedicated alarge part of my
business career to advancing. The
Bank has an already vitai and growing
role to play In furthering that mission,
which is why | am sc pleased to be
jaining as its new Chair.

[ join the organisation at a critical time
for smaller businesses across the UK
and for the British Business Bank itself.

Itis obvious to say that our small
businesses face a period of change.
What is now clear is that the scale

of this change is unprecedentedin
the experience of most of our
entrepreneurs. Their ability to weather
the challenges and capitalise on the
apportunities that this change is
bringing will determine the long-term
strength of our economy. If smaller
businesses are winning, at home and
abroad, so too is our society and
economy, The converse is alse true.

The British Business Bank stands ready
to play its part in supporting our smaller
businesses to succeed. Ina short space
of time the Bank has demonstrated an
ability to make things better and easier
for smaller businesses, though more
can and will be done, It has also built
acentre of expertise and a business
capable of scaling up quickly, taking

on new responsibilities and a broader
remit should the opportunity arise,

| am confident that we will see our
organisation grow and expand in the
coming years, only and always with
the objective of furthering its mission.

My immediate priority, on becoming
chair, is to meet with a wide group

of smaller businesses and their
representatives to gain a beiter
understanding of how the British
Business Bark can best make a
difference, | am looking forward to
working with the Bank's team and our
colleagues in Government, including
our Minister Margot jJames. Together,
and with our partners, we should make
aformidable team, working on behalf
of the UK's 5.5m smaller businesses.
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Chief Executive's statement

Chief Executive's statement
A year of expansion and significant growth

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive

L AN o7

Over the past year, we have
broadened and expanded our
support for smaller businesses,
cementing our place as a key
enabler of finance markets

in the UK, Our market impact
continues to grow, as borne
out by strong delivery against
our Key Performance Indicators.

The British Business Bank was

set up to increase the amount and
range of finance available to smaller
UK businesses, We believe that
businesses that need finance -
whether to start up, realise their
growth ambitions or simply to
maintain their success - should be
able to find and access the right
finance for their needs.

This applies to businesses right
acress the UK, and across all sectors
of the economy. 2016/17 has seen
uslaunch our first regionally-focused
fund, introduce new funds dedicated
to scaleups in innovative sectors,
and flex our existing interventions
to support a broader range of
finance types.

Our performance this year reflects
the growth in our organisation, with
asubstantialincrease in the stock
of finance we enable and continued
strong delivery against ocur other
objectives.

Against our four Key Performance
Indicators we have delivered:

- Anincrease of 24% in the total
stack of finance provided through
our programmes

- Furthersupport far diversityin
the market, delivering 94%
of our support through non-bank
lenders, smaller banks, alternative
lenders and equity investors

— Abroadening of cur offer on
information about finance options,
helping businesses to become
more aware of, consider and
explore the choices provided
by the market

— A 4% adjusted return on capital,
exceeding the target set by
government,

The financial statements for British
Business Bank plc show an operating
profit of £49.8m. However we made

a loss after tax for the year of £12.2m.
This lossreflects the fact that,
although we expecttoreceive a
paositive return on our Enterprise
Capital Funds, accounting standards
require us to recegnise up-front
provisions on new commitments

in this programme. These are 1ot
provisions for bad debt and are
expected to unwind over future years.

During the year, we broadened the
criteria for cur ENABLE Funding
programme and Enterprise Finance
Guarantee to open themup to
praviders of a much broader range

of finance, as well as introducing an
expansion capital initiative under our
Investment Programme to support the
agraowth of diverse finance products.

Geographically, we have started to
tackte the well-documented lack of
finance provision - particularly eguity
finance - in the regions outside
London and South East, We launched
our first regionally-focused fund

this year - the £400m Northern
Powerhouse Investment Fund - in
partnership with the region's Local
Enterprise Partnerships, and will
introduce similar interventions for
the Midlands and Cornwall and the
Isles of Scilly in 2017/18.
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1. Increase the

2. Help to create

3. Promote better
information
in the market

48%

supply of finance amare diverse
finance market
£9.2bn qow 9%
£7.50n 79%
£5.1bn

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Stock of finance

We continue to have a strong
relationship with our shareholder, the
UK government, being a trusted voice
in contributing to its policy formation
and a key agent indelivering its
agenda. Qur evidence base and
analysis of the UK finance markets
helps us to fulfil these roles, as well
as allowing us to flex our programmes
torespond to existing and develcping
gaps in provision.

QOur support for new sectors and
approaches - such as the space sector,
digital technology development hubs
and novel startup models - means we
areincreasingly recognised as a key
enabler of innovaticn in the ecanomy.
Crucially, we are continuing to grow
our capability to support equity
funding. This year, our Enterprise
Capital Funds programme, dedicated
to early stage venture capital, has
builtits capacity to close to £1bn and
the Autumn Budget 2016 allocated a
further £4G0m to our Venture Capital
(VC) Catalyst programme to support
later-stage equity.

The Business Finance Guide, which
we publish jointly with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales (ICAEW) Corporate Finance
Faculty and with input from across
the finance and business sectors, also
underwent a step change this year,

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Percentage through
non-Big Four banks

] I

forms of finance

meving from a printed only document
tc aninteractive and content-rich
online offering. The impeortance of
this impartial and trusted information
source on finance options was reflected
in the BEIS Selact Committee's Access
to Finance Report in October 2016,

We will build ourinformation offer

to businesses in the coming year.

2016/17 has been a year of expansion
and growth for the British Business
Bank group and this continues into

the new year with the inclusion cf the
Start Up Loans Company. We now have
a genuinea capability to deliver support
to smaller businesses at all stages.

There have been many suggestions
about how our role may change as

we enter negetiations to exit the
European Union. While itis too early

to be certain of what the future holds,
lam confident that the Bank is working
1o build an grganisation that can
suppart the country's smaller
businesses, whatever the outcome.
On the back of cur established
business model and strong reputation
in the market, we are working to put

in place the capability to respond
flexibly to any challenges ahead.

2014415 2015416 2016417

Awareness of different

4, Achieve this
whilst managing
taxpayers’
money efficiently

39%

20%

B I

2014/15 2015/16 2016417

Adjusted return on
capital deployed

As previously reperted
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Strategic report

Strateqic report

The British Business Bank is
the UK's business development
bank for smaller businesses.
Our programmes, delivered
across debt and equity markets

Increase the supply of finance

to smaller businesses where markets don't work well

through over 100 partners,
help smaller UK businesses
get the funding they need
te start, grow and prosper.

We also provide businesses with
the information they need to make

. Help to create a more

diverse finance market

for smaller businesses, with greater choice of
aptions and provider

better-informed finance choices.
2016/17 marks our second full year
of operations since our launch in
November 2014,

Our mission and objectives

Promote better information
in the market

building confidence among SMEs in their understanding
of the finance options available to them

The British Business Bank's mission is

taomake finance markets work better 4
for smaller UK businesses!, Thisis
reflected in our four core objectives:

. Achieve this whilst managing

taxpayers' money efficiently

within a robust risk management framewaork

1. Smalland Medium-sized Enterprises
(SMEs) and small mid-cap businesses.

Blackrow
Engineering
Biackrow Engineering
manufacture and
install equipment far
the petro-chemical,
waste-to-energy.
power generation
and food industry.

The company
borrowed £200,000
aver five years from
British Business Bank
partner ABN AMRG,
under the EFG
programme te fund
their upsurge in
growth,
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By enabling smaller
businesses ta fulfil their
growth ambitions, we
expect to make a significant
difference to overali
UK productivity and
economic growtn.

4 4
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State of the market

Smaller businesses are an important
part of the UK economy, with SMEs
accounting for around 60% of private
sector employrment and almost

half (around 47%) of private sector
turnover. Enabling their greater
success has the potential to play
avital role inimproving overall UK
productivity and economic growth.
Improving smaller businesses’ access
to the finance they need to start up,
scale up and stay ahead therefore
remains a priority.

Net lending flows to SMEs from banks
have stayed positive over the last

ten quarters (G4 2014-0Q1 2017), and
have been broadly distributed across
the UK in line with the proportion of
businesses in each region, Although
creditavailability over 2015 has
improved on previous years, there
has also been a clear trend of fewer
SMEs using core debt products such
as bank lcans, overdrafts and credit
cards. In contrast to traditional bank
lending products, afternative forms
of lending such as asset finance

and marketplace lending showed
continued growth but at a slower
pace compared 1o previous years.

0%

SMEs account for around 60%
of private sector employment

Wwith lending conditicns for small
businesses getting better, our focus
is transitioning from a period when
the primary concern was the
availability of SME lending in general
to one where the focusis on growth.
The UK cutperforms its OECD peers
in terms of starting up businesses,
but underperforms when it comes
to growing them. By enabling smaller
businesses to fulfil their growth
ambitions, we expect to make a
significant difference to averafl UK
productivity and economic growth.
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Ad
Recent lending conditions have been
relatively benign and interest rates low,
but there is potential for these to change
adversely in the near future.

4 4

For growing businesses, particularly
the faster growing ones, equity is
aften the most appropriate form

of finance. While equity investment
remains available, late 2015
represented a peak in activity. Value
and deal flow has eased in the past
year, reflecting the uncertain
economic enviranment. Qur 2016/17
Small Business Finance Markets report
identified awidening gap inlater stage
equity investment. This may be due to
recent greater availability of early-
stage VC, which means there are more
businesses now requiring subsequent
funding rounds. We have played an
important part by investing in this
market for early stage growth through
ECF programmes and Ange! CoFund.

in the 2016 Autumn Statement, we
were given an additional £400m 1o
expand our Venture Capital Catalyst
programme to address gapsin later
stage VC provision more effactively.

£400m

in the 2016 Autumn Budget, we were
given an additional £400m to expand
our VC Catalyst programme

Equity investment continues to be
concentrated inLondon and the South
East with the majority of equity deals
and investment occurring in these
two UK regions over the past 12
months. The launch of the Northern
Powerhouse investment fFund {(NPIF),
our first regional programme, in
February 2017 marks a major step in
addressing these imbafances.

Much uncertainty remains around
smaller business finance markets

in general. Recent lending conditions
have been relatively benign and
interest rates low, but thare is
potential for these to change
adversely in the near future. The level
of business investment contracted
by 1.5% in 2016. We will continue

to monitor market conditions closely
to ensure that our programmes
respond quickly and effectively to
any such changes.

Business model

The level of uncertainty in the
economic enviranment reinfarces the
impertance of our analysis-driven and
market-led approach. We anchor our
interventions in rigorous eccnomic
analysis and deep market insight -
both proprietary and third party -

to ensure we stay relevant to the
finance needs of smaller businesses
and can evolve our offering as
conditions change. Building on that
insight by adding feedback frem

our delivery partners and small
businesses, as well as our own
management information, allows us
to develop a still deeper and broader
understanding of the areas of the
finance markets where there may be
gaps and to pricritise them for action.

Guided by beth public service values
and private secior requirements,

we design new programmes and
update existing ones to maintain
anappropriate balance between

the two. We achieve this by providing
policy advice to Ministers, government
departments and public sector
agencies on the one hand, and
carefully structuring interventions,
t0 align commercial imperatives with
policy objactives, without crowding
out the private sector on the cther.

Strategic report

Through periodic assessments of
orogramme outcomes, we ensure that
aur offerings continue to address the
market gaps that we have identified.

This approach also supports the
achievement of our core objectives,
We set targets for the stack of finance
(a comhination of what we deploy and
what has been ‘crowded in’ from the
private sector as a result), the amount
of finance we put through providers
other than the largest banks and the
returns we expect on the capital that
we use. Optimising across these
financial targets requires the Bank

to carefully balance the activities

and investments within our portfolio,
ensuring the fulfilment of public policy
geals while maintaining commercial
discipline. in addition, we also have

a target for raising awareness of

the finance options for SMEs - this
ensures that we pay attention to
demand side issues as well. All of

this is done within a robust risk
management framework. Further
detail on each of these objectives

are provided inthe next section.

The Bank manages arange of
aceess to finance programmes for
Government, both on our own bhalance
sheet and acting as agent for assets
on BEIS's balance sheet. Qur
performance is assessed by our
shareholder, BEIS, on the hasis of
performance of all the assets we
manage, so this stratagic report
covers both assets on our balance
sheet and on BEIS's balance sheet.
Assets that we manage on behalf

of BEIS {and which we describe
in this strategic report)include
the UK Innovation Investment
Fund, Angel CoFund, Start Up
Loans Company, Enable
Funding, EFG and the Northern
Powerhouse Investment Fund,




We expect the integration to bring many
benefits given the close alignment
of our strategic objectives.

rv
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Ad
We anchor our interventions in rigorous economic
analysis and deep marketinsight - both proprietary
and third party - to ensure we stay relevant to the
finance needs of smaller businesses.

4 4

Start Up Loans Company

EITL3E UP LOANS

EI Partof the British Busmess Bank

During 2016/17 the Bank continued
to oversee the Start Up Loans
Company (SULCa) on behalf of BEIS
however from 1st Aprit 2017 SULCo
combined with the Bank and became
partof the group. Much of the second
half of 2016/17 was taken up with
preparations for the integration of
our two organisations. Calleagues
from all areas of the Bank and SULCo
worked tirelessly to prepare and
deliver a smooth integration of aur
two organisations. We expect the
integration to bring many benefits
given the close alignment of cur
strategic objectives, including
opportunities to share complementary
experience and expertise, combine
operations and systems, and engage
more effectively with our markets and
partners, Businesses wilt benefit from
theincreased clarity of having the
design and delivery of national
government-spensored access to
finance programmes for businesses at
all stages - from micrebusinesses to
farger SMEs - within one organisation.
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Performance review:
what we achieved
against our goals

F i\

Al R

Objective 1. " .
e are now supporting over
SUDDIy 59,000 companies.

Delivered: Anincrease
of 24% in the total stock

of finance offered

through the Bank’s

programmes, £3.2bn QOur Venture Capital stock
of stock as at end O has grown to £1.1 billion,

March 2017
,¢ NWY

SULCo start up loans now
provided to over 46,000
businesses.




B WA

Objective 2
Diversity
Delivered: 94% of
our support through

providers outside of
the ‘Big Four’ banks.

\

Objective 3:
Information

Delivered: Better
information on finance

options, contributing to
an increased awareness

of finance options
amongst SMEs.

©

Objective 4
Value

Delivered: A 4%
return on capital.

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2017 11
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£690mearmarked to B

regional programmes.

Committed £150mto

A Fintech through six partners.
£60m of support for
" two challenger banks.
‘%

In total, we are working with
over 100 delivery partners.

y Bl

‘ Rise to 50% in SME awareness
of a givenrange of finance

products. {See page 22)

Our Business Finance Guide
distribution has risen 150%
on the previous year.

-

Budgetreturn Actualreturn

Net operating profit of £49.8m.
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Objective 1. increase
supply of finance in the UK

Why it is important: When we make markets work better
and help smaller business get finance that they otherwise
wouldn't get, we enable investment in hiring people,
buying equipment, and general growth that benefits

the entire UK economy.

Underits first Key Performance
Indicator (KPI}, the British Business
Bank is measured on the total stock
of finance provided thraugh its
programmes. Thisis a combination of
funds that we have directly deployed
as well as private funds which our
participation has helped to unlock.

Within a given year, the Bank will
influence this metric by committing
funding through its programmes.
Once the funding is committed, our
partners will then typically take a
number of years to draw the funding
down as they investitin smaller
businesses. The combined funds
drawn are added to the stock of
finance. When a borrower repays
aloan or aninvestment is realised,
then funds can be returned to the Bank
and other investors and will be taken
out of the stock of finance measure,

In order to increase supply we have
built up a wide range of delivery
partners who can get that finance
to the market. Over the past year
we have made new commitments
of £717m.

The Bank's total stock of finance grew
24% from £75bn to £9.2bn from end
of March 2016 to end of March 2017,

This was driven primarily by the
performance of the investment
Programme, Business Finance
Partnership and Enterprise Capital
Fund. In particular, the Business
Finance Partnership portfolio
generated significant volume

of private sector investment.

yy

We expect to add new

lenders over the course
of the next year, which
should then increase the
EFG volume of lending
through the programme,

44
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Stock of finance
{£bn)
i0

8
6
4

2

0
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

W BFP mid-cap 1M SME and small-cap

Debt

Enterprise Finance Guarantee (EFG)

The Enterprise Finance Guarantee
continues to be our flagship debt
intervention. Following the
recommendations frem an extensive
design review of the programme last
year, we have built a new training
portal for relationship managers in
delivery partners, designed a new
asset finance variant and improved
our guidance far providers. In parallel,
we have re-cpened the accreditation
pracess for EFG to take on additional
lenders, following the broadening of
our criteria.

Interest from new lenders has been
substantial and we are in the process
of assessing applications. We expect
to add new lenders over the course
of the next year, which should then
increase the EFG velume of lending

- through the programme.

Mazda
Buckinghamshire
Mazda secured a
£200,000 Enterprise
Finance Guarantee
loan froam British
Business Bank
partner Lloyds Bank,
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Help to Grow

BRITISH
Va

BUSINESS
HELP TO GROW

BANK

The Help to Grow programme helps
smaller businesses toraise funding
in order to suppart their growth
ambitions. In particular, it heips
smaller businesses that are
displaying high growth potential
but where their lender’s traditional
risk appatite is near its limit. It can
provide loans, often with bespoke
features, such as capital repayment
holidays or deferred interest, to
fund these businesses' growth
opportunities.

Under the programme, lenders
will provideloans of up te £2mto
support the development of new
products and processes, stimulate
research and inncvation and help
businesses target new markets.

The British Business Bank is testing
three financial structures (two
guarantees structures and a
co-investment structure), each
addressing a different part of the
finance gap. One guarantee supports
stretched senior debt, the other
guarantee supports mezzanine and
subordinated debt, for those SMES
seeking the maximum flexibility. The
capital investment option is aimed
at boosting the presence of debt
providers in the market which have
the skills to lend, but not the capital,
to actin this part of the market.

Lloyds Bank and OakNorth are

the first twao lenders under the
programme. We expect the
programme’simpact on stock will
increase substantially over the next
year, and for more lendars tc come
onboard over the same time period.

~ Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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CASESTUDY
The Yorkshire
Meatball Company

Established in March 2014 by
father-and-son team, David
and Gareth Atkinson, The
Yorkshire Meatball Co roll their
meatballs in Yorkshire, using
the freshest and tastiest
British meat chosen for

its quality and provenance.

Atotal of £20,000 from the

Start Up Loans Company, helped
the dua launch their concept -
initially in the form of a Meathall
and CrafyBeer Bar in Harrogate,
winning several awards inits first
year. Their first restaurant was
followed shortly by a secend,
under a franchise in York. The
saturation of the local market by
incoming ‘chain’ restaurantsin
2016 torced the closure of the
restaurant side of the business
and the company has since moved
into retail, securing contracts with
Asda, Tesco and Morrison's and
their meatballs are available in over
200 stores across the country.

.

13
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CASE STUDY
Miss Macaroon

Miss Macaroon, set up by social
entrepteneur and trained pastry
chef Rosie Ginday, is a high-end
patisserie with a difference.

This social enterprise business
specialises in baking French
macaroons, hand-made by long-
term unemployed young pecple,
ex-offenders and care leavers
aged between 18 and 35.

After finding it difficult to secure
finance from social and traditional
lenders, Miss Macaroon successfully
approached BCRS Business Loans,
an accredited lender for the

British Business Bank’s EFG
programme. Just seven months
later, Rosie opened her first store in

Birmingham's Great Western Arcade.

£/1/m

Over the past year we have made
commitments of £717m.

Inthe store's first six months, the

Miss Macaraon team helped two

long-term unemployed people into
full time work and one into further
wark experience. Ultimately, they
aim to help as many young peaple

as possible secure sustainable,
full-time employment. Miss
Macargon plans to open asecond
UK store within the next year.

0

Strategic report

CASESTUDY
Notes

Launche_gl' in 2010, Notes is
regularly named in London's top
10 coffee shops.

Itsets itsélf apart from other coffee
chains in the capital through its dual
concept of being a café by day and
wine bar by night. It also supplies
over anetonne af coffee per month
toindependent coffee shops in the
UK and Europe, as well as offering
an online subscrintion-based
service for the home-brew market.

Notes secured £600,000 n debt
finance from challenger bank
GakNorth, under British Business
Bank’s Help to Grow programme,
to fund their expansion.



'S aresult, they have been able
870 open two new sites, taking their
tal lo eight: the first, 31,500 sq
£ site in Angel Court, less than a
Imninute’s walk from the Bark of
3=ngland, and the second in Nova,

o commercial development

fip Victoria,

G
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Since 2012, SULCo has delivered over
46,000 loans, providing more than
£300m of funding.

4 4

Start Up Loans Company

The Start Up Loans Company (SULCa)
was formed in June 2012. SULCo
provides personal loans for business
purposes of up to £25,000 at 2 6%
fixed interest rate per annum, and
affers free dedicated mentoring and
support to each business.

The primary aim of the Start Up
Loans scheme is to ensure that viable
startups and early-stage businesses
have access to the finance and
support they need in arder to thrive.
A netwark of Delivery Partner
organisations support applicantsin
all regicns and industries throughout
the UK. The funding for SULCo is
provided by the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS), The scheme is not
designed to generate a commercial
profit. Capital payments together
with theinterest are recycled to

help meet our customers'increasing
demand for finance.

Since 2012, SULCo has delivered over
46,000 loans, providing mere than
£300m of funding, helping to back
on average 28 businesses aday, and
contributing tc the creation of mare
than 56,600 jobs.

wholesale Solutions

We have two ENABLE Whalesale
praogrammes, which helpsmaller
lenders provide more funding to
businesses across the UK.

Firstly, our ENABLE Guarantee
programme is designed to encourage
additional lending to smaller
businesses. Participating banks are
incentivised by a government-backed
portfolio guarantee to cover a portion
of a designated lending portfolio’s net
credit losses in excess of an agreed
first loss' threshold, which they
receive in exchange for a fee.

Secondly, providers of finance to
smaller businesses often lack the
scale required to access capital
markets - a key source of funding

for lenging institutions - ina cost-
efficient manner, Our ENABLE Funding
programme, aimed atimproving the
provision of asset and lease finance
to smaller UK businesses, warehouses
newly-originated finance receivables
from different originators - bringing
them together into a new structure,
This year, we added an additional
lender, Newport-based Henry Howard
Finance to ENABLE Funding, taking
cur total commitments under the
programme to £202m.

We expect to announce further
transactions under both ENABLE
programmes in 2017/18.
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CASE STUDY
Edesix

Seasoned technology
entrepreneurs Richie McBride
and Rabin iddon had self funded
their Edinburgh-based body-
worn camera designer and
manufacturer Edesix to the
edge of huge growth.

Edesix's Video Badge system -
whichiis the size of a credit card -
is a personal CCTV for frentline
workers. Having proved the concept
and made early sales, attracting
interest from police forces,
paramedics, parking enforcement
teams and Dailiffs, they needed
finance to fund rapid expansion
through investmentin R&D and
Sales & Marketing,

Less than six months after being
introduced to the company, British
Business Bank Enterprise Capital
Funds partner Panoramic Growth
Equity made an initial investment

of £750,000 intc Edesix, with
Panoramic partner David Wilson
taking a seat onits Board. They have
gince invested in further rounds

to help Edesix fund expansion

" into new markets and continue

tadevelap its technology.

.
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CASESTUDY
Azimo

Azimois a world ieader in online
and smartphone-based money
transfers - providing a fast,
secure and low-cost alternative
to legacy high street services
within the growing ¢$600bn
remittance market.

Founded in 2012, Azimo has built
thelargest network of any digital
player, sending money to cver
190 countries, in aver 80 different
currencies. Half a miilion people
have already connected to the
Azima platform and through

its comprehensive netwark.

British Business Bank VC Catalyst
partner Frog Capital has made
investments of £4.2Zmand £1.1m
i two separate funding rounds,
the first as lead investor,

Azimo needed fundingin 2015 to
suppart explosive revenye growth
of 260% and is now consolidating
its European growth an
developing its product further
(especially the mobile offering).

its employee numbers had grown
from 601n june 201510 99 at the
end of March 2017,
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Equity

Angel CoFund

The Angel CoFund celebrated its

fifth anniversary in November 2016.
It has continued to invest in promising
companies over the past year. By the
end of 2016/17, it had 71 companiesin
its portfolio. Around £32m has been
invested so far, which leveraged
around a further £140m of investment
from business angels and other
investors, foratotal of c.£1/2m of
equity finance for innovative smaller
businesses. The portfoliois diverse
with roughly a third healthcare and
life sciences, a third digita! media and
information technolegies {Including
Fintech) and a third other high growth
businesses, dominated by hardware
and fundamental technology, but
including foed and drink and creative.

Enterprise Capital Funds

Four highly innovative funds were
launched through the Enterprise
Capital Funds programme:

- Entreprereur First Next Stage
Fund - help startups built at
Entrepreneur First to grow
(with the Bank committing
f.26m of £40m at first close).

— Active PE - focused cn consumer,
leisure and retail businesses
(E24m of £40m).

- Seraphim Space Fund - largest
ever space secter venture fund,
targeting early stage space-
related husinesses (F30m of
£50m but up to £5Cm
of £83m at final close).

— Accelerated Digital Ventures -
focused on digital technology SMEs
in hubs acrass the UK (E41m of
£85m but up to £50m of £150m).

— This brings the total number
of Enterprise Capital Funds
(ECFs) launched through the
programme to 24, with a total
investment capacity of £938m,
of which £550m was contributed
by the Bank,
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CASESTUDY
Audio Analytic

Cambridge-based Audio
Analyticis a pioneering sound
recognition company. Its flexible
ai3™ software platformcan

be embedded into a wide

range of consumer electronics
products to enable the human-
like sense of hearing.

Far example, with ai3™ inside, a
smart home device can recognise
the sound of awindow breaking ar
a smoke alarm while the occupant
is out, alerting them and emergency
services, and triggering responses
from other home-based devices.

As personal assistants and smart
technology become more
commonplace in homes, pockets
and cars, there is an increased need
for products tounderstand and
react to the world around peapia.

Venture Capital Catalyst

We made a £10m commitment

to Scettish Equity Partners, a
£260m fund focused on technology
companies, through the Venture
Capital Catalyst programme in
November 2016, We received an
additional £400m of resources for
the pregramme at the Autumn
Statement 2016.

British Business Bank ECF partner
IQ Capitalinvested in the company's
55.5 million Series A roundin
january 2017 The money is
enabling Audio Analytic tc scale
their business to meet strong
global customer demand and
further develop the platform.

L,

£32m

Invested by the Angel CoFund so far
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Objective 2: increase
diversity of SME finance

in the UK

Why it isimportant When we support a smail business finance
product or help an alternative provider, smaller businesses
benefit from better choices and better terms thatincreased

competition can deliver,

Against our second key performance
indicator, the British Business Bank is
measured cn the value of its activity
that is channelled through finance
providers ather than the 'Big Four’
banks - Barclays, Lloyds Banking
Group, HSBC and RBS,

Our objective is toincrease the choice
of finance for smaller UK businesses

- both in terms of supplier and finance
type. OQur aimis to ensure that more
than 75% of our stock is delivered
through providers outside the Big
Four banks.

For mast of our programmes, we work
exctusively with non-Big Four delivery
partners such as chaflenger banks,
asset finance providers, peer-to-peer
and ather technology-based
providers, debt funds, equity funds
and other non-bank finance
companies. EFG and Help to Grow are
the notable exceptions, These two
programmes use both Big Fourand
non-Big Four partners because they
address borrowing neads immediately
adjacent to mainstream lending, and
tapping into the Big Four’s extensive
distribution nétwork is the best way
toreach significant numbers of
smaller businesses. This in turn helps
us preduce a greater impact for the
UK economy.

Strategic report
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importance of building
partnerships

in 2016/17 we took on 12 new
partnerships across the business -
five in Venture Capital, one in ENABLE
Funding, cne in the Investment
Programme and five through the NPIF.
One of the main ways of increasing
diversity is to support new entrants
andincrease the rapacity of existing
fenders across the scope of the
finance markets.

- We continued to build our
partperships with challenger
banks, adding OakNorth as a new
partner under our Help to Grow
programme,

- We alsa supported more debt
funds, asset finance praviders
and fintech players through the
Investment Programme (IP),
as welf as ENABLE Funding.

- We launched four new early
stage VC funds through our ECF
pregramime and helped close
one other VCfund through the
VC Catalyst.

AEV Ltd

Birkenhead-based AEY Ltd, a manufacturar
and distributor of varnishes, resins, compounds
and insufation products ta the electrical and
elactronics sector, received fnvestment from
NPIF - Fw Capital Debt Finance, a provider
under the British Business Bank's Northern
Powerfiouse Investment Fund, to invest innew
production facilities.
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Ad
The British Business Bank is investing £50m of its
own capital into NPIF, which is being matched by an
additional £50m from the European Investment Bank.

Geographical diversity

We have started to tackle the well-
documented lack of finance provisions
in the regions outside London and the
South East. We faunched the £400m
Northern Powerhcuse Investment
Fund in February 2017, will soon
launch the £250m Midlands Engine
Investment Fund and are working

on a Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Fund to help address
some of these regional imbalances.

»

Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund

The Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund will produce greater
lavels of investment, increase the
focus on the potential opportunities
across the Northern Powerhouse
regions and provide increased
flexibility in the type of funding

4 4

provided. Together these will
contribute to better economic
autcomes for the region’s
businesses, growth and jobs.

The British Business Bank is investing
£50m of its own capital inte NPIF,
which is being matched by an
additional £50m from the Eurgpean
Investment Bank. Bringing allocations
togetherintolarger funds allows
more rescurces to be targetad at
businesses with growth potential
across a wider area, through
economies of scale, meaning more
money can be invested directly in
smaller businesses.

The British Business Bank has worked
with Local Enterprise Partnerships
{LEPs) from the North west, Yorkshire
and the Humber and Tees Valley, and
with the Depariment for Communities
and Local Government to aggregate
the European Regional Development
Fund money they receive for the

LEP areas.

Geographic diversity by number of companies (%)
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Midlands Engine
Investment Fund

ot

Similarly, we are working with ten
LEPs in the Midlands cn the setting up
of the Midlands Engine tnvestment
Fund, which we expect tolaunch

fn the next few months.

Cornwalf and Isles of
Scilly Investment Fund

A

In May 2017 the Bank was asked

to develop a Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly Investment Fund incorpaorating
existing legacy funding and new
European funding amounting to
around £40m. We will be working
closely with the Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly local enterprise partnership
to develop an equity and debt fund.

£690m

Total fund size for Nerthern
Powerhouse Investment Fund,
Midlands Engine Investment Fund
and Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
investment Fund
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CASE STUDY
Cliveland Spinning

Cliveland Spinningis a (eading
manufacturer of quality spun
components with an emphasis
on high precision reflectors
and all forms of lighting
products.

Cheaper imparts were beginning
to affect the core business, and
the company had to think laterally
to beat the competition from
both China and india. It therefore
diversified its product range by
producing aluminium planters
fpd arave vases,

With the business having to buy
increasing amounts of raw
materials up-front to keep up with
demand, however, huge pressure
was being put on cashflow.

British Business Bank partner
Ultimate Finance provided the
company with a £70,000 invoice
finance facility, meaning that 95%
,‘,of! the value of invoices issued
‘tould be refeased the very next
day, enabling Cliveland Spinni

pay far the raw materials withaut
having to accumulate large
reserves of cash.

S
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CASE STUDY
Simply Cook

London-based SimplyCoolchad
proved that the market wanted
what they were selling - recipe
boxes with easy-to-foilow
recipes and key ingredients to
put together sensational meals -
but to expand their reach they
needed a strong marketing
budget and further hires to
support and run that budget.
They also wanted to make
improvements to their
packaging and website design.

SimplyCook successtully secured
£600k equity investment to fund
their expansion from Episade 1 -

a partnerin the British Business
Bank's Enterprise Capital Funds
programme - as part of a total fund
raise of £750k.

Securing the funding has enabled
SimplyCook to complete a packaging
redesign project, start a total user
experience redesign of their
website, experiment with new
marketing channels and expand
their Facehook marketing channel,
leading to successful growth.
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CASE STUDY

Blake UK

Established in 1971, Sheffield-
based Blake UK has grown to
become one of the largest aerial,
electrenics and components
manufacturerin the sector, with
a £2.2mturnoverin 2015/16 and
employing 24 staff.

Blake secured a £100,000 loan
from NPIF - Enterprise Ventures
DebtFinance, a product fund
within the British Business Bank's
Northern Powerhouse Investment
Fund programme, to finance new
product development and invest
in new equipment.

The funding will alfow the company
todiversify its product range into
new lines such as CCTV equipment
and to strengthenits stock level to
reflact the long stock replenishment
lead times that accompanies
existing ranges. This means the
company will be able to keep up
with the demands from its growing
customer base and ensure that the
quality and diversity of its product
offering remains high.

0

and Accounts 2017 21

CASESTUDY
Cloud Direct

Founded in 2003, Cloud Direct
has helped 4,000 small-midsize
organisations move to the
cloud - quickly and securely.
The business has grown
organicallty and through
acquisition to increase capacity
and skills that help improve
customer productivity, agility
and competitiveness.

From June 2015, Cloud Direct had
been executing a buy-and-build
strateqy, and had acguired several
other businesses - Datel Business
Systemsin June 2015, ihotdesk

in December 2015 and Redblade
inuly 2016. Following these
acquisiticns, and growth in group
revenues and profitability, the
company was seeking new
investment to make its next
wave of acquisitions.

Cloud Direct's management

team applied to British Business
Bank Investment Programme
partner Beechbrook Capital for
finance to help fund their growth
pians. They secured a commitment
of just over £5m, which has
contributed significantly to the
completion of two further
acquisitions already in 2017,

S
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Objective 3:improve
SME understanding
of finance options

Why itis important When we make better information available
10 smalier businesses, we help them make better choices about
finance. Being more aware of and having mare confidence in thelr
options means they are more likely to invest in their business.

Successfufly delivering our first two
objectives - increasing and diversifying
finance sources - helps usimprove

the supply side of finance markets

for smaller businesses. Improving the
demand side requiresincreased levels
of awareness and understanding

10 enable small businesses to make
informed choices.

We measure awareness of different
finance options through our annual
survey, looking at the average
awareness amongst SMEs across
six different finance products. This
was 50% in our November 2016
survey, a 2% improvement from
the previous year,

To help raise awareness of finance
options, we publish cur Business
Finance Guide jointly with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants
Corporate Finance Facility in
England and Wales (ICAEW) with
contributions from a further

21 partner orgarlisations. The guide
is well received amongst smaf!
businesses and their advisors, and
its value was underscored in the
BEIS Select Cormmittee’s October
2016 Access to Finance report,

in june 2016 we were delighted to
launch the aoniine version of the guide,
offering users the tools to start
considering the appropriate finance
for their business development.

For example it features videos from
finance experts on the types of
funding available in the marketplace.
The online guide has enabled us

to extend our reach and thousands
of businesses are visiting the website
every month. Web analysis means

we can stage regular enhancements
tothe site toincrease traffic and
improve the user experience.

We also refreshed the hard copy

of the guide in june 2016, reflacting
the developments in finance markets
since it was first published in 2014,

We also provided a Welsh language
version for the first time. We distribute
the Business Finance Quide at events,
conferences, through direct email
marketing, and via our partners.

Strategic report
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This rargetis defined as amean awarenass
level of a basket of finance types which the
Bank supports or intends to supportin the
future, Thisincludes Leasing/HP, Venture
Capital, Business Angels, P2P lending,
Crowd Funding and Mezzanine Finance.

The Start Up Loans programme also
provides applicants with an essential
guide to starting their business,
including information on researching
markets, tax, business strategy,
sales forecasting and how to write

a business plan. Once the recipient
has drawn down theirloan, they are
offered mentoring to help their
business succeed. SULCo and their
delivery partners also provide
avaluable channel to help distribute
the Business Finance Cuide directly
fo businesses,

Cambridge-based
company Speechmatics,
a providerof automatic
speech recognition
technologies which
transcribe speechto
text, received equity
investment from British
Business Bank partner
1Q Capital partners.
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Researching our markets

We work with arange of partners to
gather better information about

the market. Qur flagshin publication,
the annual Small Business Finance
Markets report 2016/17, showed that
finance markets broadly cantinued

to supply smaller businesses with the
majority of the finance they seek but
certain key gaps remain. The report
also highlighted gaps in financing for
scale ups, the uneven access to
finance across regions and a need

to further raise awareness of finance
opticns, so that smaller businesses
get the finance that best meets their
needs, These findings have guided
our strategy.

yy

Improving the demand
side requires increased
levels of awareness
and understanding
to enable small businesses
to make informed choices

44
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The best place to start to find out about finance options
for any business is the Business Finance Guide. .. I'm using
't currently 1o fing cut how our business can scale up.

44

Lucy Woodhouse, Co-founder of Caudi & Fin

CASESTUDY

Fork Truck Borders Instruction Ltd

Fork Truck Borders Instruction Ltd
provides training for operators

of forklift trucks and other plant
machinery including excavators,
dump trucks and cranes.

They wanted to buy a new forklift
truck, to employ a new member

of staff and expand the business,
and applied but were turned down
far an overdraft with their existing
bank, even though the business had
managed for seven years with no
overdraft and they could see Fork
Truck Borders Instruction Ltd's
business accounts.

Under the new Bank Referrals

to Designated Finance Platforms
scheme, they were referred to
Funding Options within an hour,
who passed them on ta lwoca.
lwoca approved their funding
(£5,000), and they had the money
in their account within 24 hours
of being turned down by the bank.

0
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Our ather reports provide more
detailed analysis. This year these
included:

— Equity Tracker, a deep dive on the
equity markets for SMEs in the UK.

- Building Momentumin VC across
Eurape, a joint effart with other
Furopean Development Banks
that iooks at the Eurapean vC
markets to identify ways ta
increase the availability of VC
funding to help businesses to
start up and grow.

— NPIF Spotlight, which was
published to coincide with the
launch of NPIF.

- Financing SMEs and
Entrepreneurs, an annual OECD
publication to which we are
contributors,

Our survey on SME Business Finance
camplements other data saurces such
as the SME Finance Monitar, to give a
richer understanding of smalt business
experience in accessing finance.

We inform and contribute to the wider
debate by presenting regularly at
conferences and seminars, enabling
finance providers, smaller businesses
and the research community to be
more informed abput LUK finance
markets refevant to them.

Improving finance markets

To help avercame informatiaon
asymmetries and improve SMEs'
awareness of the availability of
alternative finance options faced

by smaller lenders, we have advised
HM Treasury on the designation af
Credit Reference Agencies (CRAs) and
Finance Platforms under the Small
Business, Enterprise and Employment
ACt 2015, CRAs share SME credit data
for the benefit of a wide range of
banks and lenders, while finance
platforms seek to match supply and
demand for alternative sources of
finance from a broader range of
lenders. The Act contains two policies
toimprave theimpact of these firms
on SME lending.

Smail businesses turned down for

an eligible lending facility by one

of nine participating banks must be
offered areferral to the designated
online finance platforms. If the
business agrees, its details are passed
on ta the platfarm by the end of the
next working day. This referral
system has been live since November
2016 and many small businesses
have already benefited from the

new pProcess.

Ad

The idea that there's a Business Finance Guide,
that will be a signpost for people.. is unbelievably
netpful,.. ) wish it had been there when | started.

rv

Lleyd Dorfman, Founder of Travelex
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CASE5STUDY
The Purity Centre

Hayley Katsis, an independent
nurse specialising in medical
aesthetics and podiatry. wanted
to fund a new business venture
providing past-procedure
aftercare for patients.

As a highly-experienced medical
professional, she knew that
obtaining the right insurance was
anessential part of the pian, and
she couidn't go ahead without it.

Havyley applied for a bank loan to
finance the high cost of the
insurance cover but, because the
purpose for whicn the funding
was required was outside their
usuat criteria, her bank was unabie
1o offer her aloan,

Through the newly-introduced
Bank Referral Scheme, however,
they offered to forward her details
to another arganisation who might
be able to help. Online platform
Funding Options introduced
Hayley to-RateSetter, who
provided her with a £5k Director’s
Loan’ to finance the insurance,
enabling her project to go ahead.

L
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Objective 4: manage
taxpayer money efficiently

Why it is important: When we manage our programmes
etficiently, we deliver value for money. All UK Laxpayers
benefit from our ability to deliver the miost positive autcome
with the least amount of Covernment rescurces.

All our pregrammes, with the exception

of the grant funding and operating
costs element for Start Up Loans,
count towards our financial return
target. The Bank targets achieving
areturn oncapital atleast equivalent
te the Government's medium term
cost of capital. We have a target for
the end of March 2018 of 2.525%.

Adjusted return on capital
employed

The British Business Bank achieved
a 3.9% adjusted return on capital
employed in 2016/17', which was
higher than the return generated

in 2015/16 and our target for the year.

This rise was principally generated
by streng investment perfarmance,
with an increase inincome from the
Investment Programme assets,
positive fair value movements on VC
Catalyst and legacy Venture Capital
funds and foreign exchange gains.
2016/17 alse saw continued strong
performance from Lending Solutions’
EFC programme, with lower than
expected claims in a benign credit
environment. Excluding foreign
exchange gains of £2.6m the return
would have been 0.2% lower.

Ad

The British Business Bank
achieved a 3.9% return on
capital employedin 2016/17

44
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As previously reparted

CASESTUDY
Creo Medical

Creo Medical, a medical

device company basedin
Chepstow, Wales, is focused

on the development and
commercialisation of minimally
invasive surgical devices, initially
in the areas of gastrointestinal
(Ghy surgery and lung cancer.

The Angel CoFund, a delivery
partner of the British Business Bank,
invested c.£1m alongside a number
cf experienced angel investors that
specialise in early stage medical
sector investing, as well as local
institutional investar Finance Wales,
in the funding rounds prior to IPO.

l

in December 2016 Crec Medical
successfuily underwentan IPO

on AlM, raising £20m and making
the company's total chare value
worth £61m at the time of listing.
The new funds will enable further
development of the lead product
range andenhance the
development pipeline.

0
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Summary of finance performance and calculation of adjusted return

Programmes
managed
British on behalf
Business of BEIS
Year ended 31 March 2017 {(Em} Bank plc {unaudited) Tota!
Investmentincome
investment Programmes 43.0 ~ 430
Lending Solutions - 18.6 1856
Venture Capital Solutions 95 - 9.5
Wholesale Selutions o - 21 2.1
Totalinvestmentincome 525 20.7 732
Management fee and other income 156 (9.1 6.5
Total operating income 68.1 11.6 79.7
Net gains/{losses) on investment assets
investment Programmes 0.5 - 05
Lending Solutions - (13.9) (10.9)
Venture Capital Solutions 42 48 9.0
Wholesale Solutions - - -
47 (6.1) (1.4
Operating costs
Staff Costs (15.3) - (153)
QOther costs (7.7} - (7.7)
Total operating costs L {23.0} 0.0 (23.0)
Net operating profit - u;_mmﬂ 498 5.5 55.3
ECF permanent diminution in value (2.5) - (2.5}
Adjustedreturn 43 5.5 52.8
Average Capital Employed 1,286.8
Adjusted return on average capital employed
(restated return) 4.1%
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Programmes
managed
British on behalf
Business of BEIS
Year ended 31 March 2017 (Em) Bank plc {unaudited) Total
Investment assets
Investment Programmes 916.0 - c16.0
l.ending Solutions - 41.0 41.0
Venture Capital Salutions 2296 219.2 448.8
Enable Funding - 130.2 130.2
1,145.6 3904 15360
Investment liabilities
Lending Solutions - (65.7) (65.7)
Venture Capital Solutions (146.7) - (146.7)
(146.7) (65.7) (212.4)
Net investment assets o 9989 324.7 137236
Other assets/liabilities
Cash 58.4 - 58.4
Tangible and intangible assets 0.6 - 06
Net other payables (10.4) - (10.4)
48.6 - 48.6
Total net assets 1,0475 324.7 13722

The Bank manages a number of
investments on behalf of BEIS under
a service agreement; these include
those relating to the UK Innovation
Investment Fund, Angel Co-Fund, NPIF,
Start Up Loans, Enable Funding and
EFG. The adjusted return is defined

to measure both the return generated
by the Bank from investments held

on its own balance sheet and also
from those BEIS investments.

The principle of the adjusted

return as setoutin our shareholder
framewaork is to provide a measure of
financial performance that excludes
temporary, non-cash, fair value
accounting impacts.

This atlows a comparison to the
government's funding cost. In
2016/17, we reviewed and revised the
way we calculate the adjusted return.
In this review, we established that the
definition lacked clarity and should be
refined. We have therefore praduced
adetailed methodalogy for calculation
of the return. For example histarically,
we were not able to accurately
distinguish between permanent and
temporary valuation impairments for
ECFs, and as a result, we prudently
included some temporary
impairmentsin the return calculation.
We alsc concluded it would be
appropriate to include returns from
legacy venture funds held on BEIS's

halance sheet but managed by

the Bank. We have now developed
an improved methodology for
distinguishing batween temparary,
non-cash, fair value impairments and
permanent diminutions in value for
other programmes, notably ECF,

We have also adjusted historic returns
to account far changes made by BEIS
inthe accounting classification of the
Angel Co-Fund,

The impacts of these changes are set
out in the table cverleaf.
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Strategic report

£m 2014115 2015716 2016/17
Return as previously reported/calculated 15 8.0 448
Revision of ECF adjustment 7.6 18.8 33
Revision to other programmes (3.9) (1.5) (0.1)
Inclusion of Angel Co-Fund and Legacy Programmes 13 1.8 4.8
Restated Return 85 - 371 52.8
Capita! Base as previously reperted/calculated 6589 8106 L1621
Add Back: Fair value Provision for ECF 501 66.0 124.7
Restated Capital Base (Annualised) 7954 976.6 1,286.8
Return as previcusly reported/calcuiated 1.3% 2.0% 3.8%
Restated Return 2.9% 3.8% 41%

In general, for assets on BEIS's balance
sheet, we have used BEIS's accounting
treatments for determining the
returns recognised in the calculation
above, For assetis dassified as
“Available-for-Sale”, this means that
losses are recognised immediately
but profits are not recognised until
they are realised. Once BEIS adepts
[FRSY, a new accounting standard for
financial instruments, this treatment
is likely to change so that unrealised
profits are also recognised in BEIS's
profit. When this occurs, we will
re-state historic returns as if (FRS9
had beenin place from the start

of the Bank's operation.

Overall results for the British Business
Bank 2016/17:

- Wegeneraiad a net operating
profit of £49.8m,

~ Thevalue of investments under
management increased by £310m;

- We made new commitments
of £E717m;

- Net Assefs increased by £235m
to £1,048m.

iKey Drivers of Financial
Performance

As aninvestment business focusing
on generating appropriate risk-
adjusted returns on our capital
investment, eur financial performance
is dependent on a number of
significantitemns, including:

~ the amount of capital we have
committed and the time period
over which that funding is deployed

~ the underiying performance of
ourinvestments and their ability
1o make interest and debt
repayments

— opvertime, the ability to exit
investments successfully and
make a capital profit.

The investment portfolio comprises

a mix of investments which contribute
towards meeting the Bank's overall
strategic objectives. Some
investments earn a commercial return
whilst others generate a return which
is below the market rate. Itis the
performance of the commercial
investments within the Investment
Programmes managed by British
Business Investments Limited that
make the greatest contribution to

the Bank's overall return,

Our net operating profit was mainly
driven by £43m of income and gains
from the lInvestment Programme
investments. The Venture Capital
programmes, which include both
market rate and sub-market rate
investments, contributed £9.5m

of incame.
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whilst year-on-year our operating
costsincreased by £3.2mto £23.0m,
this should be seenin the context
of increased activity and income
generation which shows that
operational efficiencies have been
delivered, in particular, significant
time and cost was incurred setting
up both the Northern Powerhcuse
Investment Fund and the Midlands
Engine lnvestment Fund.

The loss before tax reported In

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income is £1.3m
compared with the adjusted return
whichis £52.8m. This is explained
by the exclusion from the return
calculation of the temporary non
cash fair value ECF impairments
and provisions which total £51.2m
and theinclusionin the adjustad
return calculation of the contribution
from the investments held on the
BEIS balance sheet but managed

by the Bank.

Funding

We require funding to make
investments and run our operations,
Depending on our requirements,
these can be met from two scurces:
our investment earnings and our
sharehalder.

To fund cur capital investments,

we issue shares to our shareholder
and utilise available cash from

our operations, including asset
repayments. At 31 March 2017, the
UK Government held shares totalling
£1,071min British Business Bank ple,
comprising the entire share capital of
the Cempany. This amount increased
by £234m during the year which
funded the increase in the Group’s
net assets.
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Our cperating costs are funded
through investmentincome plus a
management fee charged to BEIS for
managing assets on its behalf. Income
received under this charging
mechanism was £9.1min 2016/17.

At 31 March 2017, the British Business
Bank Group held £58.4m of cash
balances, generated partly through
its own operations and partly through
sharehaolder funding. The Bank
maintains a cash balance of atieast
£50m to fund investments and can
increase this balance inline with
investment demands. The majerity of
these funds (£52.1m) are held within
the Government Banking Service

to ensure that there is minimal cost
to the Excheqguer.

Our Assets

Qur programmes invest in a wide
range of products through private
sector partners, to enable us to
achieve cur objective of providing
greater volume and chaice of finance
to smaller businesses.

Thisis reflected in the split of these
investments:

- loans and receivables £138.4m
- Held to maturity assets £31.1m
- available-for-sale assets £922.2m

- assets designated at fair value
through the profitand loss £29.5

— derivative financial instruments
£24.3m.

——

During the year to 31 March 2017

we invested £350m in assets included
on aur balance sheet. This included
investments of £125m in the mid-cap
BFP portfolio, £151minthe
Investment Programme and £56m

in ECFs. For many investments, we
make commitments to a fund and
the fund draws down cash as itis
needed. This means there is,
generally, a delay between our
investment commitment and capital
being drawn. As at 31 March 2017,
British Business Bank plc had further
undrawn commitments of £1,023m
to beinvested across its portfolio.
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Strategic risks: issues that could prevent us
from successfully delivering our future plans

The Directors confirm that
they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal
risks facing the company. We
reviewed cur risk framework
in 2016, with a focus on how
it operated relative to the
Bank's risk appetite. Given

our strategy, we see anumber
of material risks that we are
maintaining a close watch
upon going forward,

Credit and Investment

Unexpected shaocks to the financial
system could affect both the flow of
finance to, and demand from, smaller
businesses. In such cases, the Bank
caould experience credit and
investmentlosses as end borrowers,
struggle to meet their commitments
and interest rate or foreign exchange
movements that could affect our
rate of return.

Political environment

The current Brexit negotiations

add uncertainty to the economic
environment and the cutcome of
negotiations may impact on the Bank.
The EIF has previously participated

in many of the markets that the Bank
operates in as both a co-investor or
guarantor to the Bank's programmes,
If the EIF withdraws from the UK
market this may have animpacton
the delivery and the risk prafile of

the Bank's programmes individually
or the Bank’s portfolic in aggregate.
The Bank is monitering the changing
market need and will consider and
advise government what responses
may be appropriate. As aresuft of the
identification of market gaps orin
response to a shiftin Covernment
poficy priorities the Board will consider
whether it should redeploy rescurces.

People and processes

Thereis arisk that the Bank does
not secure, develop and maintain
adeguate human resources to meet
its objectives, ar have the effective
processesin place ta manage its
operating model,

The past two years have seen our
staff numbers grow fram 117 in April
2016 to 167 in March 2017, The SULCo
merger will also see us grow furtherin
2017, as would any further expansion
of our mandate. This expected growth
carries operational risk as more rebust
operating systems and pracesses
would be required to manage
increased volume and complexity.

Start Up Loans Company
integration

There is arisk that the effective
delivery af the Start Up Loans
programme is negatively impacted
due to the integration with the Bank.
Following the combination of the
Bank and SULCo in April 2017 both
organisations are focusing on a
smooth integration of both people
and processes. The integrationis
being managed through staged
transition plans. The risks involved

in this integraticn are mitigated by
the fact that we have worked closely
with SULCo since 2014. During this
period, the Bank has been praviding
advice to government on SULCo's
funding, objectives and performance,
and overseeing the programme an
its behalf,

Delivery partners

The British Business Bank's business
model is heavily reliant upon our
delivery partners for efficient
execution of the Bank's interventions.
In particular we delegate credit and
investment decisions to our delivery
partnerswithin agreed frameworks.
We also incur reputational and
compliance/conduct risks linked

to choasing appropriate partners.
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Compliance with State aid and
otherregulation

The UK remains a member of the
European Union whilst it negotiates
the terms of its exit. It therefore
currently remains subject to the laws
governing State aid. As we modify
existing programmes or design new
programmes we must review policies
so that we and our partners are
compliant with relevant regulation,
Noen-compliance can also bring
reputaticnal and business risk
through negative publicity and/or
disrupticns to our ability to serve
smaller businesses.

Information management
and security

The range and scope of data that we
collect, collate, and control will rise as
our operations grow, This inCreases
curinformation and data risk and so
we Nave strengthened our systems
and protections, We have achieved the
Cyber Security Essentials certification,
which Is the standard expected of

a government owned entity.

Stakeholder engagement and
delivery on objectives

As a national development bank

wholly owned by the UK government,

we are required to deliver gn
government policy objectivesin
relation to smaller business finance.
Because of this, even though we are
operationally independent, some
processes around decision-making
and approvals rely on input from
Ministers and central government
administration. If these structures
change (due to a new government,
new Minister or machinery of
government changes, for example),
there is arisk of delays in decision
making that would impact on our
being zble to operate as efficiently
or effectively as we wauld want,

During the period the Board reviewed
the effectiveness of the company’s
risk management and internal control

systemsincluding financial, operational

and compliance control. A summary

of the key risks that the Bank is facing

and manitoring is outlined within the
Directorsreport on pages 54 to 59.

yy

As anational development
bank wholly cwned by the
UK government, we are
required to deliver on
government policy
objectives in relation to
smaller husiness finance.

4 4
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Our people

The British Business Bank
has an HR strateqgy in place
to enable the Bank to achieve
its overall goals. By making
the Bank a great place to
work, with a strong sense

of purpose and opportunities
for all, we wili attract and
retain the best people.

The HR strateqy reflects the size

and needs of the organisation, and
demonstrates value for meney,

Our HR strategy

/

..50 they can help us build...

/

Create aninspiring culture
in which employees can
flourish and fulfit their

potential

..which helps us to...

\

The Bank offers a unique employment
proposition with a strong purpose -
an opportunity to transform the
finance landscape for smaller
businesses with a range of broad and
interesting roles where pegple can
make a real difference. Our annual
employee engagement survey
showed that 95% of colleagues said
thay were proud to work for the
organisation, and 86% felt they could
personally make a real difference to
the success of the business and
overall purpose. During 2016 we were
highly commended in the Employee
Engagement awards.

Our objective:

An organisation with the
capahility to make finance
markets work better for smaller
UK businesses

A unique employee experience:

— Strong purpose

— Commertial and publicsectar
mix

- Interesting work

- Values based culture

— Opportunity 1o make a major
impact

- Broadroales

- Accountability

— Flexihility

- Exposure to government &
senior stakeholders

- Acolleague forum

Strateqic report

Alignment with business objectives

The HR strategy supports the Bank's
objectives. We will support the
achievement of these objectives by:

Attracting and retaining the right
skills and diversity, demonstrating
leadership, having the right
organisational designin place and
executing a robust performance
and remuneration strategy.

~ Refining an efficient and effective
business model with the correct
structure, resource, skills mix and
sutcession plans in place - maoving
from a startup tc a growing
prganisation with a workforce
that is agile to respond to future
reguirements,

B

N

Recruit and retain the right
pecple to deliver our aims

/

..by offering...
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- Continuing to build the British

Business Bank as a credible
organisation by measuring our
performance against our goals
and objectives.

Supporting ongoing learning

and development tc empower
colleagues to have real
accauntability and provide timely
and relevant expertise based

on market requirements.

Ensuring we have a culture

and employment proposition to
attract the right people with the
right skills. We foster a culture
based cn our values making the
Bank agreat place to work:

- Theenvironment gives the
crganisation and its staff a
clear identity and reinforces
the strong surpose and social
benefit of the hank bath
internatly and externally.,

- We take the best elements
from public and private sector
to make the Bank both
successfuland a great
envirenment to work in,

- We promote diversity and
recognise that peaple work

at their best in different ways,

encouraging them to express
alternative points of view and
adapt working practices to
accommedate people's needs
where possible,

- Values are role modelled and
recognised across all levels

and teams in the organisation,
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Add
The Bank offers a unique employment
proposition with a strong purpose.

44

5%

of colleagues said they were proud
to work for the organisation

In addition to supporting existing
colleagues with their learning and
development and offering broad and
interesting roles, this summer we are
continuing with our summer internship
programme, which aims to develop
young people’s skilis and experience
to succeed in their future careers.
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Our values

The British Business Bank
has five shared values, each
of which stem from aur

key theme, ‘Enabling’,

Integrity 6.]_3

Acting with a shared sense
of purpose, an abiding duty
of care, and serving our
market, stakeholders and
employees with fairness,
honesty and transparency.

Delivering 0

The values were developad from

the views and input of calleagues
across the organisation. They are

the foundation for what we stand for
as a business, and will continue to

positively shape our corporate culture

and behaviours as we grow,

Commitment to delivering a
professional, quality service
e all our stakehglders and
colleagues, whiist
employing taxpayer
resources responsibly to
provide solutions.

Commercially
Minded

Exercising geod commercial
judgement to rmeet the needs
of our market while also
staying focused on the need to
drive economic benefit.

Strategic report

Our Colleague Forum meets
monthly with colleagues from
Sheffield and London representing
teams across the business, to
ensure these values remain core
to our organisation.

A

Improving I.II

Challenging and innovating
to create effective salutions
that meet the objectives

of our stakehaolders and
ensuring that finance
markets for smaller
busiresses wark effectively.

Connecting Q)

Collaborating across the
organisation, engaging with
stakeholders, government,
and markets to better
understand the challenges
faced by smailer businesses.
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Male and female split of British Business Bank colleagues

at 31st March 2017

24: Analysts

25: Managers

28: Directors

G SMT inc! MDs

5:BEBIL CEQ, CRO, CFQ, CO0 and Leneral Caunsel

1: CEQ
7. Non-Executive Directors

B Male
B Female

Our people

The British Business Bank recruits a
diverse workforce to ensure we make
the most of the talents available from
all parts of society.

Our General Counsel, Shanika
Amarasekara, is a recognised
champion of diversity. In 2017,

she was recognised in the Empower
top 100 ethnic minority leaders by
the Financial Times. Leaders were
selected based on their senicrity and
leadership and had to demonstrate
that they had worked to create an
environment that brought the best
outof black, Asian and minority
ethnic employees.

Total male: B
Total female: 67

Qur Managing Diversity and Equal
Opportunities pelicy lays cut the need
to promote and implement equality of
opportunity and to manage diversity,
insuch a manner that people are able
to maximise both their potential and
their contribution. Cur male/female
splitat 31 March 2017 is above.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR)

We take seriously our resgensibility
to make a positive contribution to

the communities and environment

in which we operate, and undertake
avariety of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities to do so.

The CSR strategy is championed by the
Managing Director for Communications
and operated on an entirely voluntary
hasis by our staff across our four
areas of action:

- environment

— procurement and suppliers
~ ¢harity work

— education autreach,

British Business Bank colleagues
centinued te build oninitiatives
across alt four areas of our corporate
social responsibility mandate in
2016/17. We nominated three
charities during the year to receive
funds raised from the Bank’s CSR
activities. The official national
nominated charity is MIND, the mental
health charity, reflecting our concern
for and desire to champion better
mental wellbeing in our communities
and at work. Two charities were then
chosen tosupportlocal efforts close
to each of cur offices; Sheffield
Children’s Hospital and Great Ormond
Street Children’s Hospital in Londaon.
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Charity wark

Colleagues took part in severai
fundraising activities to raise money
directly for our three nominated
charities, raising over £2,000 through
avariety of activities including book
sales, a British Business Bank bake
off, a Christmas raffle of luxury
hampers and a tuck shap run by staff,

We also tock partin a number of
activities tc raise money for individual
charitable causes including sponsored
walks, runs, triathlons and Tough
Mudder.

Education

British Business Bank colleagues

have been formally volunteering with
Mosaic Mentoring educaticn outreach,
part of the Prince's Trust, o inspire
young people in deprived communities
io realise their talents and potential
through regular mentorship,

As part of our 2016 internship
programme, students organised

and delivered a fulf day workshop
for clients of Waging Peace, a charity
supparting refugees across the UK.
Workshaop participants fearned
waorkplace skifls and took partina

CV dinfc to imprave employability.

Environment

Colleagues are committed to reducing
waste and limiting our impact on the
environment at work by supporting
local suppliers, reducing packaging
and better recycling. We will continug
to run campalgns on how to take
simple steps to make big changes

for environmental impact.

Procurement and our suppliers

Policies are in place tc ensure our
procurement processes are accessible
to smaller businesses, including
posting opportunities on the
government's ‘Contracts Finder’
portal; and we aim to meet to
Government best practice in terms

The British Business Bank proudly of payment days for suppliers

joined some of the largest
organisations across the UK ina
social media takeaver to support the
#MissingType appeal for the NHS to
raise awareness of blood shortages
by removing B, O and As from all
social media posts in August 2016,
The national campaign was a huge
success with registrations to donate
blood increasing.
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Future developments

The British Business Bank

will continue to build on the
achievements of the last

year to increase our impact
while strengthening our
infrastructure and capabilities,
enabling us to scale sustainably.

While there are numerous ways
inwhich we will be building our
capabilities over the caming year,
it's worth highlighting three
particular areas of focus which
are of paramount impartance:

Responding to opportunities and
challenges around exiting the EU

It has been suggested in many
quarters that the British Business
Bank should play an expanded role

if there is areductionin the support
for UK businesses currently provided
by the EIF and EIB. On the back of
our established business model and
strong reputation in the market, we
are well placed torespond flexibly
to challenges ahead.

Following the invocation of Article 50,
we will also be assessing the best
path forward for our interventions.
Although most of our programmes
are unaffected, a number doinclude
European funds and guarantees
and may require evaluation and
adjustment. We will seek tc resclve
access to finance issues far smaller
businesses, with some short term
{over the coming year) and medium
term (over the next five years)
strateqgic realignment to respond

to our [atest assessments of the
state of the market and shiftsin
political priorities.

Increasing our support for
equity finance

As aresult of an identified equity
gap we have begun expanding our
financing solutions for scale-ups
{smaller businesses with material
growth potential). We expect to add
more partners to ocur Help to Grow
programme this year, while our VC
Catalyst will accelerate the
deployment of the additional £400m
of resources zllocated at the Autumn
Statement 2016. The Chancelior of
the Exchequer announced in his jJune
2017 Mansion House speech that we
waould be increasing cur commitments
through this programme, enabling us
to contribute up to half of a fund's
total size, rather than being restricted
to a third, as has been the case up to
now. This means that cur VC Catalyst
will be able to support funds that
focus on high growth businesses,
particularly those seeking later stage
equity investment, more effectively.

We will continue to maintain and grow
other programmes that address the
equity gap for smaller businesses
such as the Angel CoFund and
Enterprise Capital Funds,

Supporting regional economies

QOur regionai funds, NPIF and MEIF,

will help address regicnal imbalances
inaccess to finance, boosting growth
in their respective regions. We also
expect to putin place a similar
intervention for Cornwali and the Isles
of Scilly shortly. We will continue to
explore focal needs and evaluate
whether similar sclutions could be
appropriate for other regionsin the UK.
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Ad
We will promate greater diversity in finance markets
by cantinuing to expand our support for challenger
banks and innovative financial providers.

4 4

Other future activities

Our combination with the Start Up

L aans Company means that we can
learn from each other and leverage
our combined capabilities to improve
our interventions while making more
efficient use of taxpayer resources,
while the integration presents an
cperational challenge, we expact the
number of laans provided to continue
increasing, helping to address the
siructural disadvantage that many
of the UK's newest businesses face
in securing finance,

As long-standing structural gaps
persistin the finance market for
smaller businesses seeking to stay
ahead, we will continue ta deliver as
well as refine those of our pragrammes
designed to address them.

Following our recent review of our
long-runining Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme, which enables
Joans to smaller businesses that lack
sufficient collateral to barrow, we
expect {0 add new partners to the
programme this year and have
introduced a new asset finance
variant, We have also begun
enhancing our engagement with
refaticnship managers in our delivery
partners, which we expect will 1o
increase usage of the programme.,

We wiil promote greater diversity
in finance markets by continuing to
expand our support for challenger
banks and innovative financial
providers such as marketplace
lenders, invaice discounters and
asset finance providers.

We have broadened the coverage
of gur ENABLE Funding programme
to include peer-to-peer fenders
and are lacking at how our ENABLE
Guarantees could be used ta boost

the housebuilding sector. Qur
commercial arm's Investment
Programime will continue to seek
out commercial oppertunities to
catalyse and support a diversity
of supply of finance in the UK for
smaller businesses,

We remain committed to delivering
improved information to enable
markets to function more affectively
and efficiently. Having made a good
start to the demand-side issues
caused by lack of information about
finance options available to smaller
businesses through our popular
Business Finance Guide, we intend
to build on this within the coming
year. Taking a digital by default’
approach, our intention is to build an
extensive, cantent rich, anline hub
with information and guidance on
finance aptions for fast-growing
companies specifically, as well as
providing better information to
businesses across the board. This wil!
enable smaller businesses to make
more informed choices about their
finance options, patentialty opéning
up additional streams of funding to
them, We will also be collaborating
with partners to develop and
distribute educational quides, with
HM Treasury on credit reference
agency data and referral of rejected
smaller business applicants to finance
platforms, and with our research
partrers 1o increase knowledge
about the markets.

LL LS ANor

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

13 July 2017



Directors' report

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2017 39

Directors' report

The Directors present their
anadal report on the affairs
of the Group, together with
the financial statements
and independent auditor’s
audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2017 The
Corporate Governance

Statement is set out cn pages

471053 and forms part of
this report.

The following information required by
the Companies Act 2006 can be found
in the following sections of the Annual
Report, which areincorperated by
reference into this report;

— adescription of the principal

activities of the Group during
the course of this yearisincluded
in the Strategic Report;

details of the significant events
since the balance sheet date
are contained in note 23 to the
financial statements;

- infermation abeut the use of
financial instruments by the
Company and its subsidiaries is
given fn note 21 to the financial
statements.

The Bank has chosen toinclude
information regarding future
developments within the strategic
report because we believe itis
strateqgically important and therefore
better placed there.

Directors

During the year the fallewing individuals served as Directors. The appointment and removal of Directarsis set cutin the
Corporate Governance Statement found on page 48.

Director

Lord Smith

Ron Emerson
Christina McComb
Jonathan Britton
Neeta Atkar

Teresa Graham
Caroline Creen
Colin Glass
Ceri Smith

Keith Margan
Christopher Fox
Patrick Magee

Position

Chair

Chair

Interim Chair
Non-axecutive Director
Naon-executive Director

Non-executive Director
Non-axecutive Director
Non-executive Director

Sharehclder
Representative Director

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
Executive Director

Initial
appointment
date

Initial
appointment
expiry

5Jul 2017 4ul 2020
29 0ct 2013 30 Sept 2016
29 0ct 2013 18 Nov 2016
28 Apr 2014 27 Apr 2017
1jul 2016 30 Jun 2019
24 Jun 2014 23 |un 2017
24 Jun 2014 23 Jun 2017
24 Jun 2014 23Jun 2017
£90ct 2013 13 Nov 2016
10 Dec 2013

13Jan 2015

10 Mar 2015

Reappointment  Reappointment

effective date expiry

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

18 Nov 2016 18 Nov 2019
28 Apr 2017 27 Apr 2020
N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

13 Nov 2016 13 Nov 2019




40 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Directors’ biographies

Directors report

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair

One of the UK's most experienced
chairs, Lord Smith has led
organisations in the private, public and
voluntary sectors, He was Chair of
SSE until July 2015.1n 2014 he chaired
the Organising Committee for Glasgow
2014 (Commonwealth Games) and the
Ssmith Commission on further powers
for the Scottish Parliament. A
chartered accountant by profession
and former President of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland,
Lord Smith was knighted in 1995,
appointed to the House of Lords as

an independent cross-bench peer in
2008, appeinted Knight of the Thistle
in 2013, and awarded the Companion
of Honour in 2016.

He is currently Chair, Alliance Trust
plc, IMI plc and Forth Ports Ltd, UK
Green investment Bank!; Chancellor,
University of Strathclyde,

1. Lord Smithis due to step down from his
post as Chair of the Green (nvestmeant
Bank shartiy’

Ron Emerson
Non-executive Chair untif
30 September 2016

Ron brought 2 broad range of business
skills and experience to the Board
during his time and role as Non-
executive Chair. He spent his early
career in international banking where
he held a number af senior
management positions with Bank

of America and Standard Chartered
Bank, Ron divides his tima betweean
Non-executive directorships, business
advisary work, and as an active
member of the Faculty of Management
Studies at Oxford University.

He has also acted as a Senior Advisor
at the Bank of England and the
Financial Services Authority.

Christina McComb

Seniar independent Directar
and Interim Chair from 1 October
2016 - 4 july 2017

Christina McCamb has held a range

of senior private and public sector
roles and has a track recordin privaie
equity and venture capital investment
and has direct experience of advising
small and medium-sized businesses,
Christinais a former Director of

3i plc and has senior public sector
experience, having been a founding
Director of the Shareholder Executive
established by the Cahinet Office and
former Department of Trade and
Industry. Christina is currently Chair of
OneFamily, a modern financial mutual
organization, Sheis alsa Setmor
independent Director at Standard Life
Private Equity Trust plc and a Non-
executive Director of Baronsmead
Venture Trust plc and early stage
technology company Nexecn Ltd.
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Jonathan Britton
Independent Non-executive Director
- Audit Committee Chair

Jonathan Britton has over 35 years’
experience in banking, spanning
corporate, SME and investment
banking businesses.

His most recent executive roles were
as Divisional Finence Director and Head
of Strategy for the Wholesale Division
at Lloyds Banking Group from 2009 to
2013 and prior to that, Global Controller
and Head of Treasury at Barclays Bank
plc from 2006 to 20086. He previously
held senior posts in UBS's Investment
Banking Department.

|enathan is currently & Non-executive
Director of Nomura Europe Heldings
plc, and also chairs its Audit Committee,
He was a Non-executive Director and
chair of the Audit Committee of ICIC
Bank UK Ltd from 2011 to 2017

Neeta Atkar
Independent Non-executive Director
and Chair of Risk Committee

Neetais an experienced Risk
Professicnal with over 25 years'
experience working in the financial
services private and public sectors
across arange of risk disciplines.

Thereafter, she has held senior
positions at both banks and insurance
companies, in arange of roles
covering aperatienal, credit and
regulatory risks.

Neeta started her career at the Bank
of England before moving to the FSA
on its creation. Until the end of 2016,
Neeta was the Chief Risk Officer at TSB
Bank plc and was a key member of the
Executive team that was respaonsible
for creating the bank that was
divested from Lloyds Banking Group
and undertaking 2 successful PG in
2014, Sheis currently on the Board

of Yorkshire Building Society Group
and is Chair of the Risk Committee.

She has been a justice of the Peace
for 20 years.

Colin Glass
Independent Non-executive Director

Colin is a Chartered Accountant

with his own practice, Winbura Glass
Narfolk {WGN). He is or has been a
Non-executive Director of several
companies, some of which are quoted
on AlM. He acts as a mentor te early
stage SMEs with high-growth
potential. In january 2011 he was
awarded Non-executive Director

of the Year in the Grant Thornton
sponscred Quoted Company Awards
for his work with AlM-quoted SMEs,

in 2016 he was includedin the
Maserati 100 and was awarded an
OBE in the 2017 Queen’'s New Year
Honour's list, for services to business
startups and entrepreneurship.
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Teresa Graham
Independent Non-executive Director

Teresa graduated from Newcastle
University. During her time working
in a Big Four accounting practice,
she was seconded to the UK
government's Enterprise and
Deregulation Unit, In March 1988 she
was appointed to the government's
Deregulation Advisory Panel for a
two year term and served through
two decades of administrations.

She was also the first female
faureate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Teresa now warks
independently focusing on her

three passions - strategic advice

to ambitious, growing businesses,
liberating these businesses fram the
fetters of red tape and running The
Lexi Cinema and The Nomad, both
social enterprises in the cinema space
cavenanting 100% of their profits

to a charity in South Africa. She halds
a number of appointments, including
non-executive, mentoring and
advisory roles in growth businesses.
She was awarded a CBE in 2007 and
an OBE in 1997,

Caroline Green
independent Non-executive Directar

Caroline is Chief Operating Cfficer
and Chief Finance Officer of network
accessorfes vendor Prolabs Limited
having held CFO positions in both
private equity-backed and listed
businesses, Carcline has also spent
pight years in private equity, initially
at 3iplc and started her career at
Xerox Corpina variety of roles
inciuding supply chain, manufacturing
and finance.

Caraline is also vice-Chair of unseen
{UK), the charity dedicated to
eradication of human trafficking
and slavery.

Ceri Smith
Shareholder Representative Director

Ceri Smithis a Director at UK
Government Investments whose
responsibilities include overseeing
the British Business Bank on behalf
of its Shareholder, the Secretary

of State for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy. He nreviously
worked in HM Treasury, the
Department for Business and the
Foreign Office. Respansibilities have
included advising on business finance,
employment law, SMF taxation and
developing the government's
Enterprise Capital Fund Programme,
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Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

Keith led the planning and
establishment of the British Business
Bank from January 2013, and was
appointed Chief Executive Qfficer

in December 2013. Priar to this,
Kelth was & Director at UK Financial
Investments, joining in 2009 to
manage the UK Gavernment’s
shareholdings in Bradford & Bingley,
Narthern Rock and Narthern Rock
Asset Management. Keith joined
UKFIfrom Banco Santander where he
was a Director of Sovereign Bancorp
inthe US. He was previously Director
of Strateqy and Planning at Abbey
National and a member of the
Executive Committee, and also
served as Chairman of Santander's
Asset Management and Credit Card
businesses in the UK. Before

joining Abbey in 2004, Keith spent
18 years at LEK Consulting, where
he was a partner specialising in
financial services,

Christopher Fox
Chief Finance Officer and Head of
Central Services, Executive Director

Christopher is Chief Financial Cfficer
andis alsoresponsible for central
functions including HR, IT, Change
and Admin. Prior to joining the British
Business Bank, Christopher was

Head of Banking at UK Financial
Investments, where he was
responsible for overseeing HM
Government's shareholdings in Lloyds
Banking Group, Royal Bank of
Scotland and UK Asset Resolution.

He was also a Non-executive Director
at UK Asset Resolution, Bradford &
Binoley and NRAM. Christopher joined
UKFI from UBS, where he gained
extensive experience of financiat
services over nearly 20 years He is

a qualified accountant.

Patrick Magee
{hief Operating Officer,
Executive Director

Patrick jpined the British Business
Bank as Chief Operating Officerin
October 2014, He had pravicusly
represented the government's
shareholder interests on its Board.
Before joining the Sharehoider
Executivein June 2012, Patrick was
a Managing Director of corporate
finance atjP Morgan Cazenove,
having worked at the predecessor
firms for almost 18 years. He has
broad experience of working with
companies which wark closely with
governmentincluding banks, utilities
and support services/infrastructure
providers. During his time at the
Shareholder Executive Patrick led
the team working on the the set-up
and governance of the British
Business Bank as well as work on
arange of the companies in the
Shareholder Executive pertfolio,
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Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted indemnities
toeach of its Directorsin respect of all
losses arising cut of, or in connection
with, the execution of their powers,
duties and responsibilities as Directors
to the extent permitted by law and
the Company's Articles of Assaciation,
The Company provides Directors’

and Officers'liability insurance,

Going Concern

The Directors who served during the
year have areasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have
adeguate resources to continue in
operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue
to adupt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
Future details can be foundinthe
significant accaunting policies notes
in the financial statements.

Viability statement

It should be noted that the Bankis 100%
funded by the UK government, its sole
shareholder, and its continuation as

an entity is ultimately at the discretion
of the UK government that is in power.
The Board assumes that the Bank has,
and will continue to have, government
support and that its funding
arrangement will remain in place.

The Board undertakes a business
planning exercise each year to outline
the five year plan for the organisation.

The Board believas itis possible ta
form a reasonable expectation of
the Bank's long term viability during
that planning period of five years
taking into account the principal
risks faced by the company and

its key objectives.
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The Bank has a financial framewark
in place that allows us to alter

the allacation of funding between
programmes and years, subject to
staying within agreed parameters.
Additionally, the Bank has undertaken
analysis of stress scenarios of its
porifolio and the Board assumes
thatin the event of a downturn
that the shareholder will continue
tosupport the Bank, subject to
government pelicy, in relation

to smaller businesses.

The figures provided in Scope 1 and
Scope 2 in the table oppasite are
estimated emissions relating to
energy consumed in properties where
the landlord controls the supply and
recharges the British Business Bank.
Reported Scope 3 emissions relate

to business travel undertaken by

all colleagues using rail and air travel
which has been booked through our
corporate travel agent. These results
are summarised in the table opposite.
Currently we do not report on any
other Scope 3 emissions. Business

mileage in private vehiciesis not
included as this {s not a mode of
travel used by the crganisation.

Greenhouse gas emission
reporting

Scope of disciosure

The British Business Bank reports its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions based
on its property pertfolio. The British
Business Bank occupies twa floors of
office space and is able to provide
emission reporting for 2015/16 and
2016717 inrespect of [ts premises
and company travel activities,
Reported Scope 1 emissions caver
emissions gengrated from the gas
and oil used in all buildings from which
the Group operates and Scope 2
includes its emissions from electricity.
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Add
Concern for the environment and promoting
a broader sustainability agenda are integral
to our professional activities.

4 4

Assessment Parameters

Baseline year for {otal reported
(0, emissions

Consolidation approach

Boundary summary

Emission facter data source
Assessment methodology

Intensity ratio

2015

Operational control

All facilities under operational control

DEFRA (2015)

The Greenhouse Gas Protoco!
revised edition (2004)

Emissions per full time employee (FTE)

GHG emissions

2015/16 2016/17 Comparison

Scope CO, Scope €0, 2015/16 to

(tonnes) {tonnes) 2016/17 (%)

Scope 1 (Gas) 24 29 +21

Scope 2 (Electricity) 106 91 -14

Scope 3 (Travel) 9 37 +311

Tctal 139 157 +13
Total per average number 12 11

of employees

Sustainability principles

The British Business Bank is
committed to promoting
sustainability. Concern for the
environment and promeoting a broader
sustainability agenda are integral

to our professional activities and

the managemenrt of the organisation,
We aim to follow and to promote goad
sustainahility practice, to reduce

the environmental impacts of all our
activities and to help our clients and
partners to do the same. To promote
this we have a Corporate Sodial
Respansibility Committee which
drives recycling and environmental
initiatives throughout the Bank.

British Business Bank plc - Modern
Slavery Act Statement

Introduction

This statement is made pursuant to
section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act
{the "Act”} and constitutes the British
Business Bank's modern slavery and
human trafficking statement, as
reguired by the Act for cur financiat
year ended 31 March 2017

The British Business Bank plcis
committad to the principles of the
Act and the abolition of medern
slavery and human trafficking. We
acknowledge the undertakings in the
Act and endeavour to create a culture
of transparency with regards to the
supply of goods and services to us.

We are committed to ensuring that
our supply chainand any part of our
business are free from any slavery
and/or human trafficking.

In the financial year which ended on
31 March 2017, the Bank has taken
the following steps in order to combat
human trafficking and slavery
(‘Modern Slavery):

- Procured and engaged suppliers
and advisersin each case in
accordance with a set of policies
and procedures which help
minimise the risk of Modern
Stavery occurring in the Bank,
including by only engaging with
reputable and credible suppliers.

- Created asystemof company
nolicies, by which Bank employees
can identify risks and report
wrongdoing. These make it easy
for staff to report concerns at an
early stage, including concerns
relating to Modern Slavery.

— Ensured that any terms and
conditions that the Bank signs up
towith suppliers {for the provisicn
of services/goods) are subject
tothe laws of England and Wales
and are therefore bound by the
Modern Slavery Act 2015,
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Nextsteps

We are currently reviewing our supply
chain protocols and we intend to
undertake the following activities:

(8) Make all staff aware of the Act
and inform them of the
appropriate action to take if
they suspect a case of slavery
or human trafficking,

{b) Put together a working group to
assess the parts of the Bank's
business and supply chains where
there might be a risk of slavery or
human trafficking and what steps
the Bank should take to manage
these risks and to ensure that
Modern Slavery is not present
anywhere within the Bank's
operations,

(©) Conductafurtherreview of
the polities and procedures of
the Bank to consider whether
they should be enhanced or
supplemented in relation to
Modern Slavery;,

(d) Conduct a further review of the
Bank's due diligence processes
and documentation standards
in relation to Modearn Slavery
toidentify any suitable
amendments to such processes
or documentation standards.
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(e) Considerwhether it wauld be
apprapriate tainclude a specific
requirementin our procurement
vetting process for prospective
suppliers to disclose their position
on human slavery and trafficking
and to provide statements as
appropriate.

{f) Considerwhether it waould be
appropriate to include reference
to, and compliance with, the Actin
our supplier engagement process,
supplier audit procedures, and
cantractual arrangements with
third party suppliers.

Approval procedure

This statement, which will be
reviewed annually and updated as
required, has heen reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directars
of British Business Bank plc on 13 July.

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

13 July 2017

Auditors

Each of the personswho are a
Director at the date of approval
of this annual report ronfirms that:

— sofar as the Director is aware,
there is no relevant audit
information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware,

the Director has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make
himseif/herself aware of any
relevant audit information, and

to establish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that
information.

This information is given and shauld
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of 5418 of the Companias
Act 2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors,

Vil TV O

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

13 july 2017
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Corporate governance

statement

The British Business Bank constituticn
consists of its Articles of Association
and a Shareholder Relationship
Framewaork Document between the
British Business Bank and BEIS which
requires that the British Business
Bank plc operates, so farasis
practicable, a corporate governance
framework that accords with best
practice and complies with the
provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014 (other than
Section £ Relations with Sharehalders)
or that it specifies and explains any
non-compliance inits Annual Report.
The September 2014 Carporate
Governance Code is freely available
from the Financial Reporting Council.

The Corporate Governance Code acts
as a guide to arange of key issues

to ensure effective Board practice,
The Code is split between a number
of chapters and the principles of
leadership, effectiveness, and
accountability are values that the
Board considers to be critical to the
success of cur business,

Apart from those set outin this
Annual Report, the Board is not aware
cf any deviations from the relevant
aspects of the Code in the period
since 1 April 2016 insofar as it applies
to the British Business Bank.

Role and responsibility of the
Board of Directors of the Company

British Business Bank plcis led

by its Board of Directors which is
collectively responsible far the
long-term success, andin
consultation with BEIS, the strategy
of the British Business Bank plc.

As setoutin the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document,
the Board requires no fewer than eight
Directors including six Non-executive
Directors. We are currently working
with the sharehaolder to fulfil the
abligation to have six Non-executive
Directors appointed to the Board.
Independent Non-executive Directors
are to constitute the majority of the
Board. Our Board and Committees
have the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and independence to
enable them to discharge their duties
andrespansibilities affectively. The
Board considers that the Chair was
independent on appeintment and that
all Non-executive Directors other than
Ceri Smith are independent for the
purposes of the Code. Ceri Smithis the
Shareholder Representative Director.

Matters reserved for the Board
include the strategic direction of

the business, significant investments,
terms of reference of all committees,
risk management and internal/
external controls and appointments
to the Beard and committees.

Our Non-executive Directors
scrutinise the performance of
manzagement in meeting agreed
goals and objectives, As part of

their Remuneration Committee
membership, they are rasponsitle
for setting appropriate levels of
remuneration for Executive Directors
and staff in consultation with our
Shareholder. Thisis further explained
in the Directors’ Remuneration Repart
at page 50,

The Chair is respoensible for leading
the Beard and its discussions and for
encourading open debate and
challenge. The Chief Executive leads
the Executive in the day to day running
of the business and the implementation
of strategy and is suppartedin this by
the Senior Management Team. The
Chief Executive is the Accounting
Officer. He has direct accountability

to the Shareholder.

The responsibilities of an Accounting
Officerinclude respensibility for the
propriety and reqularity of the public
finances for which the Accounting
Officeris answerable, keeping
proper records and safeguarding

the Bank's assets.

The Senior Independent Directar

is Christina McCcinb, The Senior
Independent Director's responsibilities
are to: work closely with the Chair, act
as anintermediary for other Directors
as and when necessary and meet with
other Non-executive Directors 1o
review the Chair's performance,
Christina McComb has been acting as
Interim Chair pending the appointment
of the new Chair.

The Shareholder, LK Government
Investment {UKGH), conducted a review
of Christina McComb prior to her
appointment as Senior Independent
Director and again prior to her re-
appointment, The exercise to appraise
the Chair's performance was conducted
by questionnaire and discussed among
the Non-Executive Directors.
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Appointment and removal
of directors

The Shareholder Relationshin
fFramework Document provides that
rno appointment or removal of a directo
of the Company or appointment or
removal of any such director to or fro
an executive position, can be made
without the prior written consent of
the Sharehelder. In accardance with th
Shareholder Relationship Framework
Document, the Chair and the Senior
Independent Director were appoainted
in a process chaired by a commissioner
from the Office of the Commissioner
for Public Appointments during the ye

The composition of the Board during
the yearis set out on page 39 of the
Directors' report.

In May 2016 Ronaid Emerson gave
notification of his intention to resign
from the Board with effect from

30 September 2016 and Christina
McComb was appointed by the
Shareholder as Interim Chair of the
Board from 1 Qctober 2016 until the
new Chair was appointed.
Conseguently the Board appointed
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Teresa Graham to chair the
Remuneration Committee during
this period and appointed Teresa
Graham to the Nomination
Committee for the same period.
During the interim period the Board
operated without a senior
independent director.

The shareholder selected Korn Ferry
as recruitment consultants for the
appointment of a new Chair. In April
2017 our shareholder announced the
appointment of our new Chair, Lord
Smith of Xelvin, as the new Chair of
the British Business Bank.

Earlier in the year, Ridgeway Partners
were appointed as recruitment
consultants for the appointment of
new Board Members for the British
Business Bank and British Business
Bank Investment Limited*. Following
receipt of the necessary consents
from the Secretary of State during
May 2016, Neeta Atkar was appointed
asa Non-executive Director and the
new Chair of the Risk Committeein
July 2016 at which point Teresa
Craham stepped down as interim
Chair of the Risk Commiltee,

In June 2017 the three year terms
of Colin Glass, Teresa Graham and
Caroline Grean ended and they
stepped down from the Board.

The biographies of all Board members
can be found at: www.british-
business-bank co.uk/our-people/

Annual director election

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting
(AGM) all of the Non-executive
Directors and Keith Morgan were each
re-elected for a period of three years,
At the 2016 Annual General Meeting,
the appointment of Neeta Atkar was
confirmed for a period of three years
and the re-election of Christina
McComb as Senior independent
Director for a period of thrae years
and as interim Chair of the Board

was confirmed. in February 2017

the directors approved the re-
appointment of Jonathan Britton as
adiracter and Chair of the Audit
Committee for a period of three years.

Board information

All Directors are provided with
updates on corporate governance
developments, legislative and
regulatory changes, and rejevant
industry and technical information.
The Board is suppliedin a timely
manner with the appropriate
information to enable it ta discharge
its duties and any further back-up
papers and infermation are readily
available to alf Directors onrequest
1o the Company Secretary. Since 2015
the Board has been using electranic
delivery and format for board papers
andinformation, taincrease efficiency,
confidentiality and sustainability.

1. Ridgeway Partnershave no other
connectian with the Bank,
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Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank
has been set up along with Board-
level committees, notably Risk, Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination. To
ensure robust and effective decision-
making within the Group structure
the British Business Bank Board has
approved terms of reference for each
committee,

Audit Committee Report

Under the chairmanship of Jonathan
Britton, the other members of the
committee during the year were
Teresa Graham, Carcline Green and
Neeta Atkar, who are altindependent
Non-executive Directors. The Chief
Executive officer, Chief Finance Officer,
Chief Risk Officer, General Counsel and
Head of Internal Audit attend
Committee meetings along with the
external auditors who are invited to
attend and report at all meetings.

The committee also meets privately
with both internal and external audit.
The Committee met six times during
the yearin May 2016, June 2016,

July 2016, September 2016, December
2016 and March 2017 and attendance
can be found on page 53.

Role

The Committee's role s to review,
meniter and make recommendations
to the Board relating to the going-
cencern nature of the Bank, the
integrity of financial reparting, the
financial statements and any issues
and judgements they contain, the
adequacy and effectivensss of the
internal and external contrels and
overseeing the relationship with
the Bank's external auditor. The
committee also has oversight of

the internal audit and audit planning
process of the Bank.
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During the financial year 2016/17,
the Audit Committee considered
and approved the following matters:

In relation to financial statements:

— The oversight of the Bank's
financial reporting process and
the process for preparation of
the consolidated accounts,

- Reviewed the accounting policies
adopted to ensure the Bank as a
whele complies with the applicable
accounting standards and
presents consolidated accounts
that are true and fair.

— Accounting treatment for
investments and impairments and
critical accounting judgements

- Traprocessforpreparing the
consolidated accounts.

IFRS 9 accounting implications.

- Groupand subsidiary audit
exemptions.,

In relation to internal and external
audit:

— Appointment of external auditors.

- Review cf external audit planning
and progress.

— External audit management letter.

— Approval of theinternal audit plan
and review of progress against
this plan.

~  Reviewed the Head of Internal
Audit's annual report and opinion,

Inrelation tc governance and other
matters:

- Assurance mapping and
whistleblowing policy.

- The migration of accounting and
putsourcing arrangement that
the Bank receives from UKSBS
to ancther provider.

- Approval of amendments tc its
Terms of Reference.

- Accounting treatment of the
proposed SULCo transaction and
review of accounting policies.

Monks & Co Clothing
Amy Barker of
Kent-hased Monks &
CoClothing received
£8k fromthe StartUp
Loans programme,
enabling her toinvest
instock and develop
her website.
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Asrequired by the Shareholder
Relationship Frameawork Document,
the Bank is audited by the Comptroiler
and Auditor General. The National
Audit Office carries out the external
audit for and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General, The
external auditors have not conducted
any non-augdit services guring the
financial year and the committee
considers that the externai auditor

is both objective and independent.

The significant issues considered
by the committee, with input from
the External Auditor, during the
year included methodologies and
procedures for determining asset
valuations and provisions, significant
accounting policies, decisions

and judgments, the contents of
the Annual Report and Accounts
of the Cempany and the financial
and accounting aspects of the
combination with SULCo.

External audit brought four matters
to the Audit Committees attention
in their 2015/16 management letter.

These were;

- Documenting decisions around
accounting treatment.

—~ The approach to the unwinding
of the ECF impairment.

~ Issues with the accounts
production process.

~  Staff contracts.

All of these issues were addressed
and their resoplution discussed and
agreed by the committee,

As part of an overall Board evaluation,
the effectiveness of the committee
was assessed. The evaluation
determined that the committee was
operating effectively, but suggested
some small imorovements that could
be made.

Signed for and on behalf of the Audit
Committee

Jonathan Britton
Chair of the Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
aperated under the chairmanship

of the Senior Independent Director,
Christina McComb until she became
the interim Chair of the Board in
October 2016 atwhich point Teresa
Graham was appointed as the interim
Chair of the Remuneration Committee,
The Remuneration Committee also
comprised the Chair, Ron Emersan
until he stepped down on

30 September 2016, and Cerl Smith,
The committee met six times during
the yearin April 2016, june 2016,
September 2016, Novemnber 2016,
February 2017 and March 2017,
Attendance can be found on page 53.

Role

The committee’srole is toset the
remuneration policy for all Executive
Directors, the Chair and all other seniar
management, including pension rights
and any compensation payments. [t also
sets the terms of the Long and Short-
Term incentive Plans and any incentive
schemes the British Business Bank plc
and its subsidiaries may operate in
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accordance with the parameters of the
Sharehclder Relationship Framework
Document.

During the financial year 2016/17, the
Remuneration Committee considered
the abjective setting and structure
of all compensation payments to
Directors and senior management,
the administration of the Long and
Short-Term incentive Plans of the
Bank, review of market benchmarks
for rernuneration, the performance
evaluation of senior management,
approval of a private heaithcare
praposal, the intraduction af a cash
allowance in lieu of pension for
employees who have reached their
lifetime pension allowance, review

of its Terms of Reference and
employment and remuneration issues
related to the SULCo transaction.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee cperated under
the chairmanshig of Teresa Graham
inaninterim capacity untit the
appointment of Neeta Atkar as the
new Chair of the Risk Committee

on 1 july 2016. Following the May
meeting Teresa Graham stepped
down from the Risk Committee,

The Risk Lommittee also comprises
independent Non-executive
Directors, Christina McCemb, Colin
Glass, and Jonathan Britton and the
Shareholder Director Ceri Smith. Tha
Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer,
Chief Risk Officer, Ceneral Counsel and
Head of internal Audit also attend
rommittee meetings. The committee
met four times during the year in May
2016, September 2016, December
2016 and February 2017 Attendance
can be found on page 53.
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Role

The Risk Committee advises the
Board on the company’s overall risk
appetite and strategy, reviewing
performance against risk, the
strategicrisk register and cther
management information relating
to the risks facing the group. It
reviews and approves the Bank's
Risk Management Framework and
satisfies itself that the framewark
Is efficient and effective relative to
the Bank's activities and risk prafile,

During the financial year 2016/17,
the Risk Committee considered and
approved the following matters:

— Reviewed the assessment of
the Risk Management Framework
and recommended the updated
version for approval to the Board.

- Censidered our risk appetite
quantification, and the outputs
of macroeconomic stress tests

on our portfolio and business plan.

- Reviewed gqualitative and
quantitative analysis of the
various programme portfolics.

- Approved the Gperational Risk
Management Framework, Change
Management Framework and
Business Continuity Plan.

- Reviewed and approved policies
on Model Governance, Credit and
nvestment Risk, Market Abuse
and Insider Dealing, information
Security and Reputational Risk.
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— Assessed cur positioninrelation
to State aid.

- Assessed theimpact of market
risk on the portfolio.

— Reviewed the Cyber Risk Roadmap
and Information Strategy.

- Reviewed the risks associated and
the assurance work undertakenin
relation to the SULCo transaction.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee
aperated under the chairmanship
of Ron Emersaon until his resignation
on 30 September 2016 and from

1 October 2016 under the interim
chairmanship of Christina McComb.
Ceri Smithis also a member of the
committee. From January 2017
Teresa Graham was appointed as

an interim member.

Role

The committee met during May 2016
and January 2017 and attendance
details can be found at page 53. At the
committee meeting, nominations of
potential Directors were considered
and recommended to the Board.

During the financial year 2016717,

the committee discussed succession
planning for Executive Directors and
senior management, appointment

of further Non-executive Directors to
the Board, re-appointment of existing
directors, membership of the Audit,
Risk and Remuneration Committees,
review of its Terms of Reference,

and undertaking an external
evaluation of the Board and Audit
and Risk Committees,
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The Shareholder Relationship
Framework Document pravides
that no appointment or removal

of a director of the Company or
appeintment or removal of any
such director to or from anexecutive
pasition, can be made without

the prior written consent of the
Shareholder and appropriate
cansents to each directorship were
obtained from the Shareholder.

The appointment of the Chairis a
shareholder appointment, as such
it was not appropriate to have a
Nominations Committee process
for the appointment.

Other committees

In addition, dguring 2016/17 Board
committees were established to
discuss the following adhoc matters:

—~ Theidentification of new premises
in Sheffield and additional space
inLondon;

—~ Al matters related to the
proposed transaction with the
Start Up Loans Company
{("SULCG"Y and

- Therole being performed by the
Bank on the Northern Powerhousa
fnvestment Fund and the Midlands
Engine investment Fund.

An existing Board Sub-Committee
relating to the advice being provided
to HM Treasury on finance platforms
and credit reference agencies
continued to meet during 2016/17,

The Bank has a number of Executive
Committees including Investment
Committees for each subsidiary and
the Product Development Committee
each of which consists of various
members of the Bank's senior
management together with Board
members when itis required for
particular investment decisions.

The Board, the Board Committees,
and the Executive Committees have
been structured ta provide a strang
governance framework. The Board
Committees and Investment
Committees each have Terms of
Reference which set out respective
duties and responsibilities. All
appoimtments to the Board. the Baard
Committees and the Executive

Committees are based on the diversity

of contribution, experience and
required skills, irrespective of gender,
race or any other irrelevant criteria.

Directors report

The Board is committed to ensure
the diversity of its membership. Alf
appointments to the Beard are based
on merit and on the experience and
skills required, with due regard to

the benefits of diversity.

Board and committee attendance

The table opposite sets out the
attendance of Directors since 1 April
2016 who attended each Board and
committee:
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Attendance at meetings and committees

The table set out below sets out the attendance of Directors since 1 April 2016 who attended each Board and Committee

Board Audit Risk  Remuneration Nomination
Total number
of meetings 9 6 4 6 2
Chair
Ron Emerson
{retirad 30 September 2016) 4/4 - - 2/3 1/1
Christina McComb
(interim Chair from 1 Cctober 2016) B8/9 - 3/4 6/6 172
Non-executive Directors
Neeta Atkar (appointed 1 July 2016) 6/7 3/3 3/3 - -
Jonathan Britton 5/9 6/6 2/4 - -
Colin Glass 8/9 - 4/4 - -
Teresa Graham 8/9 6/6 1/1 6/6 1/1
Caroline Green 9/9 5/6 - - -
Ceri Smith 9/9 - 3/4 6/6 2/7
Executive Directors
Keith Mcrgan 9/9
Christopher Fox 9/9
Patrick Magee 9/9

Board Performance

The Bank is committed to ensure that
the Board and 1ts committees operate
effectively and are continually
improving. During the year the Board
conducted an externat Board
evaluation to monitor their effective
operation. The external evaluation
process was undertaken by
Independent Audit following a
competitive process to ensure value
for money. A repart detailing findings
and suggested improvements has
been accepted oy the Board and an
action planis being established to
implement key recommendations
during 2017/18, Cverall the review
concluded that the Board was
effective, demonstrating a clear
commitment and enthusiasm for

the objectives of the Bank.

Conflicts of Interest

Each Director has a duty under the
Companies Act 2006 to avoid a
situation where they have, or can
have, adirect orindirectinterest that
canflicts, ar possibly may conflict with
the Company's interests. As part of
our Conflicts of Interest Policy, tha
Bank has adopted a formal procedure
for disclosure, review and
authorisation of Directors’ conflict

of interest, which requires written
disclosure of any actual or potential
conflicts of interest for all Directors
and staff. The procedure reguires
Directors to notify formally the Chair
or the Company Secretary as soon

as they become aware of any actual
or potential conflicts of interest with
their duties to the Bank, or of any
material change in existing or
patential conflicts that may have
been authorised by the Board.

The Board believes that outside
interests can be beneficial for both
the Executive and Company and has
authorised the outside interest of
the Chief Executive Officerin hisrale
as a Non-executive Director at UK
Asset Resolution.

The Bank has not made any political
donations ar incurred any political
expenditure during the financial year.
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Risk management
and internal control

The British Business Bank pic
is committed to ensuring the
best standards of Corporate
Giovernance and is supported
in this by the Board of Directors
and Board Committees.

The Board has overall accountability
and responsibility for the
management of risk within the British
Business Bank. Our Risk Management
Framework has been designed to
align to the size, stale and complexity
of the British Business Bank and has
been benchmarked against other
financial services institutions, The
British Business Bank is not an FCA/
PRA regulated entity, although one
of its subsidiaries representing
approximately 1% of the portfalio,
Capital for Enterprise Fund
Management, is requiated by the FCA
for controlling but not holding client
money. The rest of the British
Business Bank is not subject to
regulatory supervision and the
British Business Bank does not held
regulatory capital. The Bank is
nowever subject to other applicable
laws and requlations and aspires to
meet standards of good practice. We
have palities and procedures in place
to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, including Anti
Maney Laundering, Data Pratection
and Freedem of Information, and
aspire to follow best practice where
aporopriate and applicable.

To ensure robust and effective
decisfon making within the Bank,

it has approved terms of reference
for each executive level investment
committees, for each subsidiary
which makes investment decisions.

Risk Management Framework

Our Risk Management Framework

is a collection of tools, processes

and methodologies that support the
British Business Bank in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and contralling
the risks it faces.

The Risk Management Framework:

—~ demonstrates a clear link to the
overall strategy and business plan
of the British Business Bank,

— s owned by the Chief Risk Officar
(CRO) and approved by the British
Business Bank Board, Any changes
to the Risk Management
Framework are recommended by
the Board Risk Committee to the
Board for approval;

- outlines the risk management
vision and ohjectives, and the
approach far evolving the risk
management capability of the
British Business Bank;

- isreviewed on an annual basis
and, if required, more frequently
to reflect any significant material
changes to the business, aconomic
or regulatory outlook,

A discussion of how the Bank handles
its risks in relation to financial
instrumentsisset cutinnote 21

of the financial statements.

Directors report

Avyearly external review of the

Risk Management Framewaork is
undertaken to assess the
effectiveness of risk management
within the British Business Bank,
This review, carried out by third
party advisers, was last completed
inautumn 2016. This review
concluded that the design of the

Risk Management Framework was
appropriate to enable the Bank to
identity, assess, control and monitor
the risk profile against the Risk
Appetite Statement. The findings

of this review were nresented to the
Board Risk Committee and a summary
was presented o the Board. The
nextreview of the Risk Management
Framework will take place in the third
quarter of 2017/18 financial year.

Key elements of our Risk
Management Framework include
risk appetite and risk governance.

Risk Appetite

The British Business Bank's Risk
Appetite Policy arts as the link
between overall business strategy,
therisk strategy and the Risk
Management Framework by bringing
strategic context to identified risks,
adepting clear escalation criteria,
andinforming the processes for the
identification, assessment, contro}
and monitoring of risk exposures.
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The Risk Appetite Policy of the
British Business Bank is based on
the high-level design principle that
risk appetite represents the level of
risk the Board ¢f the British Business
Bank is willing te accept to deliver

its public policy objectives.

The Board undertook a review of the
British Business Bank's risk appetite

in February 2017 fn conjunction with
setting its business plan for 2017/18.

The Risk Appetite Statement
summarises the Board's appetite for
the principal risks that the British
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Business Bank is exposed to. Itis tied
to the risk categerisations detalled

in the Risk Management Framewaork
which outlines seven broad
categeries of Level Lrisks and 28
sub-categories of level 2 risk. The Risk
Appetite Statement is as follows:

Principal risks and risk appetite

Risk Definition

Categories

Example mitigants

The risks arising
from a suboptimal
business strategy
or business mode|
that may lead

to financial loss,
inappropriate
management of
public money,
reputational
demage or failure
to meetinternal
and/or public policy
objectives.

Strategic and
Business Risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

The risk of direct
arindirect losses
in, on, and off the
balance sheet
positions as a
result of the failure
of adelivery
partneror
underlying
barrower to meet
its obligations in
accordance with
agreed terms,
orloss of value
inequity
investments.

Credit and
Investment Risk

Risk appetite:
Medium - High

— Risk that the Bank's current and -
planned products may not be fit
for purpose,

- Risk that the Bank does not meet -
its deployment or commitment
targets.

— Risk that the Bank is not effective -
in meeting its abjectives.

— Risk of end borrower default, for -
example as a result of poor trading,
or defects in the delivery process.

- Whilst the majority of individual
exposures to end borrowers are
small, exposures to mid-cap
companies are typically larger. -

— Delivery partner default or closure.

- Venture Capital is subject to -
vintage risk, with the year the
investment was made a significant
risk factor. -

- Concentration within one industry
or location creates a portfolio that
is subject to greater risk than a
more evenly balanced one,

Both a clearly defined set of abjectives
and a robust governance model are
inplace,

New products are subject to market
assessment and new product approval
process.

Reguilar review of the strategic risk
register by the senior team and

Board Members,

Change function and Change Board

to manage the growth of the
crganisation,

Reguiar review of market conditions,
impact on SMEs and ongoing
communication with stakeholders.

Celivery partner selection process
includes robust due diligence,
assessment of underwriting and
sanctigning processes, and thereafter
is subject to portfolio manitoring and
regular review,

The credit quality of exposuresis
manitored closely.

The Bank aims to cantinue to invest
throughout the economic cycle,
therefgre minimising the vintage risk.
The portfolio is monitored closely

for concentration risk.
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Principal risks and risk appetite

Risk Definition

Categories

Example mitigants

The risk of direct
or indirect losses
that arise from
fluctuationsin
the values of,

or income fram,
assets due to
movements
ininterest or
exchange rates
or credit spreads.

Therisk of direct
losses resulting
frominadequate
or failed internal
processes, people
and systems or
indirect losses
resulting from
relationships with
third parties or
from external
events.

The risk that the
Bank does not
maintain the
confidentiality,
integrity, or
avallability of the
information and
datait generates,
receives,
processes or
stores.

Market Risk

Risk appetite:
Medium

Operational Risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

information
Risk

Risk appetite:
Low

~ The Bank makes material lossesdue -
to foreign exchange movements
through its investments.

— The Bank investments are subject
{0 interest rate fluctuations. -

- Errors in execution, detivery, -
and processing,
— Failure of internal controls
Or Processes. -
~ External or imternal frauds,
- Damage to physical assets, utilities ~
disruption or systems faiiure,
- Risk that Bank does not have,
recruit or retain the right staff, -
with the right culture, to meet
its objectives,

— Risk of inaccurate or incomplete -
data processed within operations.

- Breach of legal requirements
relating to safe-keeping and -
disclosure of information. -

- Risk of business sensitive
informaticn being leaked or
accidentally made avaflable in
public domain.

~ Threats of cyber-attacks that steal
sensitive data relating to the Bank
orits defivery partnersaswellas -
disrupt the Bank's functionality.

The Bank has small foreign exchange
exposure and does not hedge this
exposure. Thisisin line with
government policy.

The Bank conducts scenario testing
of exposures sensitive to interest rate
market valuation or FX movements,
The Bank requires spme delivery
partners fo manage market risk
directly within the terms of the
investment,

Risk and Cantrol Assessments with
functional teams are held to assess
risks and associated internal controls,
Cperational Incidents management
process ir place,

Close liaison with BEIS counter traud
network and reqular interaction
with key business partners.

Target operating maodel planning
and regular employee engagement,
including Colleague Forum.

Business information and data
governance projects established
within the Bank,

Cyher Essentials accreditation.
Information Risk Management
Framework in place supported by
policies and procedures cavering
infortnation security, data protection,
freedom of information, information
classification and handling, IT
acceptable use.

Mandatory staff training programme
covering information security, cyber
crime, data protection, and freedom
of informatian.

The Bank Maintains BCP plans which
contain robust disaster recovery

of information technclogy systems.
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Principal risks and risk appetite

Risk Definition Categories Example mitigants
Legal and Risk of breaching - Risk that the Bank's requlated — New products and pregrammes
Compliance Risk applicable UK entity breaches regulatory are assessed against the UK and
. . or EU laws and requirements, EU regulatory environments.
Risk appetite: regulations, — Breach of applicable laws relating  — Al new investments are subject
Low internal policies to financial crime, money to Know Your Customer and anti-
or procedures, laundering and conflicts of money laundering reviews.
expasing the Bark interest. — The Bank has a Compliance Risk
tolegal action, ~ Risk that the Bank enters into Management Framework and a
fines and penalties, regulated activities within its suite of compliance related policies.
financial lossesand  programmes, without being — Bank employees are subject
reputational risk. regulated. to a Code of Conduct palicy, annual
— The Bank employees breach Compliance Declaration and
compliance standards. mandatory e-Learning.

Reputational
Risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

Therisk that the
firmwill actin a
way which falls
short of
stakehclder
expectations.

- The Bank operates an outsourcing — A Reputational Risk Policy is in place,
model whichis subject to delivery  ~ The Bank undertakes extensive due
partner conduct and parformance. diligence on new delivery partners and

monitors existing delivery partners.

- Service Level Agreements are in place
with delivery partners.

— The Bank has a robust Complaints
Palicy in place.
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The Bank undertook an exarcise to
quantify the potential downside risks
of a severe downturn against our
Business Plan. This assessed the likely
impact on our portfolio assuming a
1in 20 year stenario across the
various programmes, and a further
scenario based upon Bank of England
guidelines, The autcomes were
cansidered by both the Board Risk
Committee and the Board. Further
detail on this exercise is covered in
the corporate governance section.

The three lines of defence model implementad by the Bank is outlined below.

Three lines of defence model

Firstline of defence Second line of defence Third line of defence
Day to day management and Risk palicies, methodologies and Independent assurance
risk control independent oversightand challenge

The Board

Chief Board Risk Audit
Executive Committee Committee

Seniar investment Chief Head of
Team Committees Risk Officer Internat Audit

Risk and
Compliance in‘:sg?:\l
Function

Business Control
Functions Functions
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Risk Governance

The British Business Bank risk
governance is based upon a ‘three
lines of defence’ model as cutlined
in the Risk Management Framework,
where the:

- Firstline of defence is responsible
for the day ta day identification,
reporting and management of
their own risks.

- Secondline of defenceis
responsible for designing risk and
control policies and methodclogies
monitoring perfermance and
compliance, identifying and
reporting risks and previding
independent and appropriate
challenge to the firstline of
defence.

— Third line of defence provides
independent assurance of the
overall system of internal control
including assessment of the risk
governance framewgork.
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The key principles of this model,
as demonstrated by the diagram
on previous page, are;

- The Board has overall
accourntability and responsibility
for the management of risk within
the Bank.

- The Board delegates specific
risk management roles and
responsibilities to the Board Risk
Committee, the Audit Committee,
CEQ, CFO and the CRO.

— The CEQ and CFO are supported in
delivery of these responsibilities
through direct reports from the
senior team.,

— The CROis a member of the senior
team and s also supported by the
Risk and Compliance functionin the
delivery of their responsibilities.

The British Business Bank encourages
a strong culture of risk awareness and
transparency through robust risk
governance, clear accountabilities,
regularintranet updates and in-house
live and computer based training.

Policies form an integral part of
managing risk within the British
Business Eank. We have in place

an enterprise wide set of policies,
frameworks and procedures cavering
the majer parts of our business.
They outline how we intend to
function, taking account of requlatory
or legal requirements and industry
best practice. Policies are approved
by the appropriate committees and
communicated tc staff, Colleagues
are also subject to the British
Business Bank Code of Conduct and
annual compiiance declarations.

Approved by the Board of Directors,

ZTET Aot

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

13 july 2017
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Directors' remuneration report
Chair's Foreword

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
o present the Remuneration Report
for the British Business Bank for the
year ended 31 March 2017, Those
sections of the report that have been
audited by the National Audit Office
have been identified as such.

The committee's primary role is

to provide robust, independent
governance for executive
remuneration, to ensure that reward
for the Bank’s executive team:

- supports the Bank's long term
business strategy and values

— enables the Bank to recruit,
motivate and retain taiented
individuals with appropriate
skills and experience

- links executive reward to the
Bank's performance against
its long-term business plan.

This repertis divided into two parts:

1. Policy on Executive Directars’ and

senior management remuneration.

2. Annual report onremuneration.
This section outlines how the
policy has been applied and
includes details of remuneration
for the senior team.

During the financial year 2016/17, the
Bank continued to make significant
progress, as outlined in the Chair's
statement. The committee has also
played animportant role in monitoring
and reviewing a remuneration
framework that reflects the particular
circumstances of the Bank as a public
owned company operating in a
commercial environment. Accordingly,
the committee has cantinued with
anincentive scheme that is designed
to reward senior employees based

on the long-term sustainable success
of the Bank. Key decisions made by
the committee and recommended

to the Board during the year werea:

- agreeing the annual pay review
for 2017

— reviewing thelongterm
incentive plan {LTIP) appropriate
to the particular circumstances
of the Bank

- measuring corporate and
individual performance targets for
2016/17 and the first cycle LTIP

- reviewing the overall
remuneration policy and strategy
for the Bank

- agreeing the remunération
approach for Start Up Loans
Company with the SULCo
Remuneratfon Committee which
joined the group as a subsidiary
on 1 April 2017

~ introducing Private Medical cover
far employees of the Bank

~ intraducing an allowance in lieu of
pension payments for colleagues
below Executive Birector level
who have reached their pension
Lifetime Allowance.

In accordance with the rules of the
Bank’s long termincentive plan (LTIP},
2016/17 was the first year

inwhich awards were assessed for
the corporate performance element
of the scheme over the three year
cycle 2014715 to 2016/17. Based on
the performance of the Bank against
its Key Performance Indicators and
taking into account various other
considerations, the committee
concluded an award of 75% of

the maximum was appropriate.
Further detalls of awards of the
senior executives are set out later
inthis report,

The Remuneration committee

has continued to take aninterest

in broader market trends and carried
out benchmarking of salaries and
remuneration in 2016. In the context
of the Bank's policy remit, the
committee recognises that
remuneration policy will need to be
reviewed from time to time to ensure
that it is meeting the requirernents of
our shareholder and is fit for purpose.
Where appropriate, the committee
will seak relevant external advice
and guidance.

‘Looking ahead to 2017/18, the

committee will be reviewing the
business targets for the next period
and setting stretching business and
personal targets for the executive,
in particular in the context of any
new policy initiatives which the Bank
has been asked to undertake,

O\'\\/%Q\/Ja\

Christina McComb
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Remuneration policy report

Policy overview

The Remuneration Committee
determines, on behalf of the Board,
the Bank’s policy on the remuneration
of the Chair, Executive Directors and
other members of the senior team.

The committee's terms of reference
are available on the Bank's website.

While not covered by the FCA/PRA
Remuneration Code for banks, the
British Business Bank has sought
where appropriate to meet these
governance requirements, in
addition to The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups
Ragulations 2013.

The committee will continue to review
the remuneration strategy and
appreach toensure that the Bank
adopts leading practice with respect
toits remuneration policy and can
respond to business priorities.

How the views of the shareholder
have been taken into account

The shareholder-appeinted Non-
executive Director is a member of the
Remuneraticn Committee. in addition,
specific approval has been obtained
from the shareholder for Executive
Director remuneration and individual
objectives and for the LTIP terms.

The remuneration policy for
directors and the senior team

Insetting remuneration policy for
the senior team, the Remuneration
Committee has taken inta account
the following key factors:

— theneedtoattractand retaina
high-calibre senior team to deliver
the Bank's strategy in atignment
with the interests of the
shareholder

-~ therequirement toreward
long-term performance and
incentivise the right behaviours

— theefficient use of taxpayer
rescurces and the requirement
to deliver good value for money
for the Exchequer as awhole.

The Bank has not consulted its
employees on this policy, although it
has considered the reward philosophy
foremployeesin general. The focus
forempicyees is on rewarding
performance over the longer term
and to have reward packages which
attract high-calibre candidates,

while delivering value for money.

Table 1 summarises the key elements
of the Bank’s remuneration policy for
Executive Directors and the senicr
team, taking into account the factors
above. The Executive Directors' service
contracts are available for inspection
at the Bank’s reqgistered office.

Under the remuneration palicy, the
total remuneration for each Executive
Director depends an his or her own
and the Bank's perfcrmance,
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Table 1: Remuneration palicy

Element Operation, opportunity and performance framework
Base salary
Objective Base salaries are reviewed annually taking into account the nature of the role

To attract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders.

and respensibilities. Roles are benchmarked against relevant comparator
organisationsin the public and private sectors, The Remuneration Committee
also takes into account the external environment and views of the shareholder.

Any Executive Director salary increases in percentage terms will normally be
in line with increases awarded to ather colleagues, but may be higher in certain
circumstances. The circumstances may include but are not limited to:

- where there has been an increase in the scope or responsibility of an
Executive Director's role

- where a salary has fallen significantly below market pasitioning given the
size and scale of the Bank.

Long termincentive plan (LTIP)

Objective
Toreward performance over
thelonger term

Executive Directors and certain other senior executives are eligible
to participate in the long termincentive plan (LTIP).

The LTIP operates as a series of three year cycles. Objectives are set at the
beginning of each cycle and progress s reviewsd by the committee on an
annual basis,

Objectives are setin two categories: corperate and persanal, The weighting
between these categories may be varied over time, current at the discretion
of the Committee, taking into account the requirements of the business and
any relevant external factors. The weighting for the current LTIP is 60% to
corporate targets and 40% to personal targets,

Corporate targets cover ralling three year periods and will generally be in line
with the Bank's business plan cbjectives, The current targets for the LTIP
awards granted during the year and the threshold leve!ls are set outin Annual
Report on Remuneration and have nao specific weightings, Personal targets are
designed to take into account the specific responsibilities of individual senfar
leaders in the Bank,

The current incentive is a maximum cash award of 50% of base salary. in the
case of Executive Directors, awards are paid at the end of the relevant three-
year cycle: in the case of the first cycle LTIR in August 2017.in the case of ather
recipients of the LTIP. any awards in respect of personal objectives may be paid
after two years and the corporate element after three years. Thereis no annual
banus award far Executive Directors and the senior team.
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Table 1 continued; Remuneration policy

Element

Operation, oppertunity and performance framework

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

Objective
To reward performance over
the longer term

Although the Company is not governed by the FCA or PRA, the committee

has cetermined that requlatory best practice should be adopted with regard

to Recavery and Withholding Provisions and such provisions shall apply for a
period of seven years from the start of the performance period. Recovery and
withholding shall apply in 2 range of adverse circumstances, at the Committee's
discretion, including financial accounts misstatement, significant failure of risk
management, regulatory censure or breach of policy and procedures.

As ageneral rule, if a participant ceases employment within the Company’s
Group before an award is paid, then the award opportunity shall normally
be forfeited and lapse in full, although there are exceptions for participants
categerised as ‘good leavers’.

The Remuneration Committee has ultimate discretion over the payment
of any awards taking into account factors it considers relevant including
the averall performance of the Bank.

Pension & other benefits

Objective
To provide an attractive and
cost-effective package

The Bank contributes up to a maximum 15% of base salary to its defined
contribution scheme or an approved personal pension scheme, subject to
aminimum employee contribution of 3%. This benefit is tiered depending

on the grade of the colleague. The CEO receives a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%.
Any other cclleague below Executive Directer level who has reached his or her
pension Lifetime Allowance may also receive a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%.

Current benefits provided are private medical insurance, iliness income
protection (now closed to new members) and life assurance. These are subject
to review on an annual basis.

Loss of office payments

Objective
To provide fair but not excessive
contractfeatures

There are na defined terms forioss of office within service contracts. Inline
with policy, Executive Directors 2nd the senicr team are on six months’ notice
either side. Provision may be made for payment in lieu of nctice, where thisis
deemed to be in the interest of the business. Any situation will be considered
by the Committee onits merits,

Shoutd anindividual be considered a ‘good leaver under the LTIP rule<, an
appropriate portion of their LTIPs may, at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, beretained. All termination payments are subject to {abinet Office
Guidelines.

New Executive Director remuneration

Objective
To attract and retain high-calibre
senicr leaders

Remuneration for any new appointments will be setin accordance with the
policy set out in this table. The same approach will be taken with respect to
any internal appaintments. We do nat affer any signing-on payments or ather
compensation for loss of deferred compensaticn from previous employment,
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Table 2: Scenarias chart: ranges for Executive Director remuneration

The following chart shows how
executives' remuneration could vary
according to performance and
assumes that the Directors are
employed by the Bank for awhole
financial year. The variable pay
elementis measured over athree-
year peried and is paid

out after the end of the third year,
subject to continued employment,

E£Q00

500

400

Minimum Target Maximum
Keith Morgan

M Fixedpay I Variable pay

Notes

Minimum Target Maximum
Christopher Fox

Minimum Target Maximum
Patrick Magee

1. Minimum = fixed pay only (salary and current cost of benefits and pension}

2. Target = fixed pay and 75% vesting of the LTIP

3. Maximum = fixed pay and 100% vesting of the LTIP

4, The actual awards are setoutintable 5

External appointments

Executive Directors may be invited

to become Nan-executive Directors

in other companies. These
appointments can enhance their
knowledge and experience to the
benefit of the Bank. Itis the Bank's
policy that Board approval is required
before any external appointment may
be accepted by an Executive Director.
The Executive Directoris permitted to
retain any fees paid for such services.
During the year, Keith Morgan served
as a Non-executive Director at UK
Asset Resolution Ltd and received a
fee of £77,327. This rcle has been
reviewed and approved by the
Nominations Committee during 2017,

Non-executive Directors

The Chair and the Non-executive
Directors do not have service
agreements with the Bank. Non-
executive Directors are appointed
under letters of appointment which
provide for aninitial term of service
of three years. The appointment

ot a Non-executive Director can be
terminated, by either party, giving
written notice. Any increases in fees
are subject to shareholder approval,
There is no pravision for compensation
forloss of office. The dates of the
current dates of appointment of the
Non-executive Directors are shown
in the Directors’ report.

The terms and conditions of
appointment of the Non-executive
Directors are available for inspection
at the Bank's registered office,

The fee levels paid ta Non-Executive
Directorsreflect the time commitment
and responsibilities, and are approved
by the Shareholder,

The Board reviews the amount of each
component of the fees on a periodic
basis to assess whether they remain
competitive and appropriate in light

of changes in reles, responsibilities

or time commitment of the Non-
executive Directars, In accordance
with common practice Non-executive
Directors are reimbursed expenses
incurred in performing their role.

Table 3 sets out the key elements

of the Bank's remuneration policy

for the Chair and other Non-executive
Directors,
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Table 3: Remuneration palicy for Non-executive Directors

Element

Operation, opportunity and perfarmance framework

Basic fee - Chair

Remunerationis in the form of an
annual cash fee, in line with practice
in the UK

The Chair fee will be reviewed from time to time by the Board.

Basic fee - Non-executive Directors

Remuneration is in the form of an
annuaicash fee, in line with practice
inthe UK

Non-executive Director remuneration is reviewed annually by the Chair and
the Executive Directors. Any recommendations are subject to Board approval,
with Non-executive Directors not voting on their own remuneration. Additional
fees are paid to the Senior Independent Director and Chairs of the Audit, Risk
and Remuneration Committees, in recegnition of the additional time spentin
respect of their committee activities. Thisis in line with UK practice generally.

Bank wide remuneration and
incentive plans

The Bank aims to apply its
remuneration policy in a consistent
way for all staff,

Staff receive their basic salary,
pension contributions, life assurance,
optional private medical insurance
and illness income protection (no
longer open for new members). The
Bank has three mutually exclusive
incentive plans, all of which are
designed tareward performance and
achievement of the Bank's objectives.

These plans are payable whelly in
cash, reflecting the fact that the Bank
has a single shareholder (the
Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy) and
does notissue shares to staff,

Short Term Incentive Plan (STIP}

Senior employees who are not eligible
forthe long term incentive plan are
aligible to participate in the STIP. The
purpose of this plan is to reward senicr
managers for their performance over
the year as assessed against both
their perscnal objectives (currently
40% of award) and the Bank's
objectives {currently 60% of award).
The maximum annual award is 30% of
base salary. 50% of any award is pald
after the relevant year end, with 25%
deferred for one yearand a further
25% deferred for two years.

The STIP rulesincorporate withholding
and recovery provisions in line with
good practice and such provisions
apply for a period of seven years from
the start of the performance period.

Annual Bonus

Employees not eligible for the Long
or Short Term Incentive Plans may
participate in the annual bonus
scheme which has a maximum award
of 20% of base salary.
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has
been prepared in accordance
with Part 3 of Schedule 8 of
The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports}
Amendment Reqgulations
2013, Disclosures are also
made in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006. The
Bank has complied with the
regulations where it believes
itis appropriate to do so.

Although the Bank is not subject
to the variable pay cap introduced
under the Furopean Union Capital
Requirements Directive, itdoes
comply with the cap.

Performance assessment

None of the senior team recejves an
annual performance award or bonus.
The first cycle LTIP matured on

31 March 2017, covering the period
2014/15t0 2016/17 and awards are
payable in August 2017, Awards under
the scheme are determined based on
both corporaie performance (making
up 60% of the total potential award)
and personal performarnce (making up
40% of the total potential award).

Taking into account performance
against XPls and other considerations,
the Remuneration Committee has
determined that a corporate
performance pay-aut of 75%s
appropriate which {s an-target for
Corparate Performance.

Membership of the Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committes
comprises Christina McComb (Chair),
Teresa Graham and Ceri Smith
{reprasenting the Shareholder).
Teresa Graham has been the acting

Chair of the Remuneration Committes
whilst Christing McComb has been
the acting Chair of the Group. The
committae members bring with them
arange of expertise from diverse
backgrounds designed both to
support the Bank in its governance
framework and to facilitate the
relationship with the Shareholder.
Informal discussion between
committee members has also added
value to the Bank's Remuneration
policy and practice.

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer. General Counsel and Human
Resaurces Managing Director have
been invited tojoin meetings, where
their own remuneration is not the
subject of discussion. The Assistant
Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the committee,

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee did
not use advisers for the provision of
remunaration advice, although it did
review benchmarking data provided
by Aon McLagan for a fee of £24,000,
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Table 4: Original KPI targets, revised targets and actual outcomes

Objective

Increase Supply

Mgore diverse
finarnce market

Manage taxpayers’
resources efficiently

Improve SME
understanding of
finance options

Improve SME
understanding of
finance options

KPI

KPI: Up to £10bn stack of finance facilitated
through our programmes cver 5 years,

Performance Assessment: missed the
stretch target driven by much lower

then expected demand for our ENABLE
guararitee programme as the capital
position of the large banks have recovered,
partially offset by strong performance

in BFP mid-cap leverage.

KP!: Over 75% of our finance facilitated
through providers other than the four
largest banks aver 5 years.

Perfarmance Assessment: successful

in conducting business outside of the big
four and supported a range of aiternative
finanice providers

KPI: To earn greater than the Government's
medium term cost of capital over the next
5 years measured by the 5 year qilt rate
at the beginning of the plan.

Performance Assessment: good
investment perfarmance achieved ina
berign economic enviranment, good cost
control and guarantee claims materially
lower than forecast.

KPI: Better provision of information
{measured through average awareness
of six alternative finance options from
British Business Bank customer researchj.

Performance Assessment; outperformed
in first two years and under-performed
in the third year on the scorecard below.

Awareness

Confidence

Shopping Arcund

Awareness of BBBin general
Attendance at BBB Events

Media Views Annual Value Equivalent
BFG distributed/downloaded

CRA/FP legislation

2016/17
Actual

£9.26n

94%

3.9%

50%

50%
65%
69%
12%
59,693
£8.04m
50,558

Live

2016/17 LTIP - original methodology
Lower Stretch Challenge
£8.0bn £9.5bn £10.5bn

2016/17 LTIP - revised methodology
£8.4bn £10.4bn £11.1bn

70% 75% 80%
12% 1.6% 1.8%
47% 49% 51%

2016/17 LTIP - revised methodology
N/A 50% N/A

66%
59%
15%
11,660
£3.54m
42,000

bive



68

Twa of the KPis were amended during
the performance period. Specificatly,
the methodology for calculating the
stack of finance was amended to
provide greater consistency across
products and timeframes, Further
information is set outin a document
published by the Bank in july 2015
and available on the Bank's website.
The awareness KPlwas changed at
the end of the secend year of the LTIP
from a single measure to a dashboard
of eight measures. For the purposes
of the LTIP measurement, the
Remuneration Committee has based
its determinaticn far this metric on
perfarmance against the old single
measure for two years and against
the dashboard for the final year.
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The perscnal performance of the
Executive Directors, as confirmed
by the Remuneration Commiitee,
is set out for each of the years
2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17
below. The 2014/15 and 2015/16
years' performance are used to
determine the personal efemernt
of the first cycle LTIP.

Keith Morgan

Keith exceeded his personal
objectives for bath the 2014/15
and 2015/16 year. For 2014/15 the
Remuneration Committee awarded
958 of maximum for personat
performance and 80% of maximum
for 2015/16. For 2016/17 the
committee assessed personal
perfarmance as on-target and
awarded 75%,

Table 5: LTIP awards made to executive directors

Directors' remuneration report

Christopher Fox

Christopher startad late in the
2014/15 performance year (January
2015) sg the committee made a
decision to assess individual
performance for a combined
15-month period for 2014/15 and
2015/16. The committee concluded
that Christopher exceeded his
personal performance objectives
for this period and awarded 90%
personal award. For 2016/17 the
commitiee assessed personat
performance as on-target and
awarded 75%.

Patrick Magee

The Committee assessed that Patrick
exceeded his personal objectives for
the 2014/15 performance year and
awarded 80% personal performance
award. For 2015716 and 2016/17

the committee assessed personal
performance as on-target and
awarded 75%.

Keith Margan f Christapher Fox f Patrick Magee
Max amount: £00C 1495 ; 105.0 F 105.0
Potential Actual Potential Actual f Patential I'\ctual.
award Performance award award Performance award award Performance award
£000 awarded £000 ’ £000 awarded £000 £000 awarded £000
Persenal Performance Y1 295 95% 284 f 47 90% 4.2 f g6 90% 8.6
Personal Performance Y2 299 B80% 238 21.0 S0% 183 | 21.0 75% 15.8
Corporate Performance 89.7 75% 67.3 | 468 75% 351 516 75% 38.7
Total Award 495 0 1196 725 @ 5B. ’ g2z 631
Notes

1. Christopher Fox joined the Bank on 8 January 2015 and therefore his year one personal performance and corporate performance awards have been

pro-rated.

2. Patrick Magee joined the Bank's predecessar organisation on 16 Octaber 2014 and therefore his year one personal performance and corparate

performance awards have been pro-rated.
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Table 6: Executive Director remuneration {(audited)

Year ended 31 March 2017 Year ended 31 March 2016

Pension Pension

Payments Payments

(including (including

Taxable Annual Longterm cash cash
Salary Benefits Incentive incentive supplements) Total Salary supplements) Total
£000 £000 E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Keith Morgan 2990 - - 118.6 299 4485 299.0 30.0 328.0
Christopher Fox 2100 0.2 - 58.2 - 268.4 210.0 - 210.0
Patrick Magee 210.0 0.2 - 63.1 21.0 2943 210.0 21.0 231.0
Total 719.0 04 - 240.9 50.8 1,011.2 719.0 51.0 770.0

Notes
1. The Company has not made pensicn contributions for Keith Morgan but has instead paid a cash alternative to him.
2. The Executive Directars receive death in service and illness income protection benefits which are non-taxable.

3. No Executive Director received annual incentive payments in 2016/17. The long term incentive payments relate to the three year period ending
31 March 2017 and are payable in August 2017,

Table 9 averlezf sets out the corporate three-year performance targets for the Executive Directors, which have no
specific weightings, for the third LTIP cycle,

Non-executive Directars are not remunerated in the same way as the Executive Directors and therefore have not been
included in the table above. However they do receive compensation in the form of a fee as detailed in Table 10.

Table 7: Senior team remuneration (audited)

Year ended 31 March 2017 Year ended 31 March 2016
Corporate Pension Pension Personal
element Personal Payments Payments element
of first  element {including {including of first
Taxable  Annual cycle of second cash cash cycle
Salary Benefits Incentive LTIP cyclelTIP supplements) Total Salary supplements) LTIP Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Shanika
Amarasekara 202.0 0.2 - 416 31.0 303 3051 200.0 31.0 2/7.0 258.0
Mark Gray ~ 202.0 0.2 - 450 30.0 303 3075 200.0 30.0 30.0 2600
Total 404.0 0.4 - 86.6 61.0 60.6 612.6 400.0 61.0 57.0 518.0
Notes

1. Theindividuals above receive death in service and illness income protection benefits which are non-taxable,

2. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance cf individuals for 2016/17 and has made provisional awards in the range of 75% - 80%
for the senior team. (2015/16: 75%) Subject to continued performance, these awards are payable in August 2017 and August 2018,

3. Shanika Amarasekara, General Counsel and Company Secretary.
4, Mark Gray, Chief Risx Officer.
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This Section of the Annual report on remuneration sets out the LTIP grants made during the year and which will vest
fn March 2018 subject to meeting the perfarmance conditions,

Table 8: Third cycle lang term incentive plan {(LT1P)

The senior team are invited to participate in along term incentive plan. The following individua's have elected to join
the plan and have been granted interests during the 2016717 year worth up to a maximum of 50% of saiary. Any pay-out
is subject to a number of conditicns, including performance conditions.

Year ended March 2017
Percentage
Total face Total face of corporate End of
Total face value of value of Total award for carporate
Type of value personal corporate face value reaching performance
interest of award award award of award threshold period
£000 (% of salary) £000 £000 £000 targets £000
Kelth Morgan CashLTIP 50% 59.8 89.7 1495 50% 31 Mar19
Christopher Fox CashLTIP 50% 42.0 630 1050 50% 31 Mar19
Patrick Magee Cash LTIP 50% 420 63.0 1050 509% 31 Mar 18
Shanika Amarasekara CashLTIP 50% 40.4 60.6 1010 50% 31Marl9
Mark Gray Cash LTIP 50% 40.6 606 101.0 50% 31 Mari9
Notes
1. Personal performance targets are notincluded in this calculation as they are not subject to threshold conditions.
Table 9: Group targets for the third cycle LTIP
Objective 2018719 target from new business plan
Lower threshold Stretch Challenge
Increase stock of finance facilitated through £7.6bn £9.5bn £11.4bn
British Business Bank programmes
- of which SME £5.4bn £6.8bn £7.5bn
Mare diverse finance market (measured) by finance 81% 86% 91%
faciiitated through non-Big Four lenders
Better provision of information (measured though amber/green (2} green (4) green (G)

a balances scorecard showing an average of green
across each year in the plan (score in brackets))

Manage taxpayers' resources efficiency through 2.3% 2.89% 3.2%
earning an appropriate return on equity
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Table 10: Non-executive Director remuneration (audited)

Total Fees Total Fees

2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000

Ron Emerson {Chair) 60 120
Christina McComb (senior independenrt director) 83 45
Maria Turner - 3
Jonathan Britton 30 30
Teresa Craham 29 30
Caroline Green 25 25
Colin Giass 25 25
Neeta Atkar 23 -
Ceri Smith nil nil

Notes
1. Ron Emerson resigned from the Bank from 30 September 2016.
2. Christina McComb was appointed as interim chair from 1 October 2016 and her fee increased to £120k per annum, pra-rated as appropriate,

3. Teresa Craham acted as interim chairman of the Risk Committee until 1 July 2016. She was also appeinted to Chair the Remuneration Committee
in place of Christina McCamb. She receved an additional pro-rated fee of £5k perannum whilst she was chairing a board committee.

4. Neeta Atkarwas appointed on 1]uly 2016,
5. CeriSmithis the shareholder representative and therefore does not receive afee,

The base fee for Non-executive Directars is £25,000 and individuals receive an allowance of £5,000 for chairing
acommittee. There are no additional fees payable for individual committee membership.
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

Directors’ remuneration report

No dividends have been paid by the Bank so we have set cut below the percentage of revenue represented by total
remuneration compared to 2015/16 toillustrate the relative importance of spend on pay.

Total revenue {(£k) Total remuneration (Ek) %
2016/17 68,160 15,346 27%
2015/16 51,077 12192 24%

Changes in CEQ/colleague pay and
median comparison

The median salary of empioyees for
2016717 was £58,000 (2015/16:
£63,000). This compares to the CEQ's
annual base salary of £299,000. No
employee earns more than the
highest paid Director. The reduction
in median salary in 2016/17 comparead
10 2015/16 is due ta the growth of
the business where additional rcles
have been recruited at a more junior
level therefore reducing the median
cost per empicyee,

The CEO did notreceive asalary
increase during the 2015/16 or
2016/17 performance year. A 1%
general pay increase was awarded to
colieagues below Executive Director
in the 2016/17 performance year
fawarded 1 April 2016} and the
2017/18 pay increase has been
agreed as 1.9% for all colleagues
below Executive Director level
effective 1 April 2017,

Pension entitlements

The Bank does not offer a defined
benefit pension scheme for new staff,
However, staff that transferred into
the Bank from the Department for
Business Innovation and Skills (BIS),
now the Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy, are
able to continue to participate in BEIS's
defined benefit scheme. No Executive
Directors have participatedina
defined benefit schemein 16/17 and
only one colleague who transferred
from BIS continues to participate in
the BEIS defined benefit scheme.

Keith Morgan receives a cash
allowance of 10% of base salary
in lieu of pension contribution.

Board of Directors Terms of Office

The dates of appointment and terms
of office of Non-executive and
Executive Directors are provided in
the Directors’ Report, page 35,
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Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy for 2017/18

For 2017/18, the Remuneration
Committee will continue to implement
the policy on a similar basis to 2016/17.
The British Business Bank will seex
approval from the Shareholder for
any changes to the policy.

The business and personal objective
themes for 2017/18 include delivery
of strateqic initiatives sucnas an
enhanced information strategy, the
Patient Capital review, delivery of the
Start Up Leans integration, reviewing
market gaps and oppertunities

for finance to the SME market and
preparing the Bank for growth

as it continues to scale-up.

Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report

This Directors' Remuneration Report,
including both thea Policy and Annual
Remuneration Report, has been
approved by the Board ¢f Directors.

Signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors.

Yours sincerely

C&'\f\f (o

Christina McComb
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ responsibilities

The Directers are respensible
for preparing the Annual
Repart and the financial
statements in accordance
with applicable law and
regulations.

Under UK Company law the Directors
are reguired to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance
with internaticnal Financial Reparting
Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the
Eurpopean Union and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and have also chosen
to prepare the parent Company
financial statements under IFRSs as
adopted by the Euracpean Union. Under
Company law the Directors must not
aporove the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the
profit arjoss of the Company for that
periad. In preparing these financial
statements, International Accounting
Standard 1 requires that Directors.

— Properly select and apply
accounting policies.

— Presentinformation, including
accounting poficies, in a manner
that pravides relevarnit, reliable,
comparable and understandable
infarmation.

— Provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the
specificrequirementsin [FRSs
areinsufficient to enable users
tounderstand the impact of
particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and
financial performance.

- Make an assessment of the
Company's ability to continue
as a going cancern.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions
and disclose, with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the finandial
position of the Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also
respansible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for

the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financiaf information
included or the Company's website,
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ fram legislation in other
jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the bast of our
knowledge:

- The financial statements,
prepared in accordance with
international Financial Regorting
Standards as adopted by the EU,
give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole

Directors' responsibilities

~ Thestrategicreportinciudes a fair
review af the development and
performance af the business and
the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principai risks and uncertainties
that they face

-~ The annual report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are
fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy.

By arder of the Board

L LD AN

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

13 July 2017

Ay

Christopher Fox
Chief Financial Officer

13 July 2017
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Independent auditor’s
report to the members
of British Business Bank plc

Opinion on the group financial Basis of opinions Overview of my auditapproach
statements , , . L .
I have audited the financial Matters significant to my audit
In my apinion the group financial statements of the British Business | consider the following areas of
statements: Bank plc group forlthe year ended particular audit focus to be those
~ give a true and fair view of the 31 March 2017 which comprise: areas that had the greatest effect
state of affairs of the British - the Consolidated Statement enmy gverall audit stra.tegy, the .
Business Bank plc group as at of Comprehensive Net Income; allocation of resources in my audit
31 March 2017 and of the group's ' and directing the efforts of the audit
- the Consalidated Statement teamin the current year.

loss for the year then ended; ; X o
of Financial Position;

— have been properly prepared in [ have also set out how my audit

accordance with International ~ the Consolidated Statement addressed these specific areasin

Financial Reportiﬂg Standards as OfChangesu—] EQU'W" OrdertOSupportthe ODH"N.OH on the

adopted by the European Union, _ the Consolidated Cash Flow financial statements as a whole and

and Statement and any comments | make on the resuits

' of my precedures should be read in
~ have been preparedinaccordance  _  the Notes to the consolidated this context.

with the Compaﬂies Act 2006 and financial statements, ) )

Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. This is not a complete list of ali risks
The financial reporting framewaork identified by my audit but only those
that has been appliedin their areas that had the greatest effect an
preparationis applicable law and my overall audit strateqy, allocation
International Financial Reporting of resources and direction of effort.
Standards as adopted by the Ihave not, for example, included
Eurgpean Union and as applied in information relating to the work
accerdance with the provisions of I have performed around the risk
the Companies Act 2006, of management override of controls,

other than to the extent where this
was part of my work on investment
valuations as set out below, where
my work has notidentified any
matters to report.

The areas of focus were discussed
with the Audit Committee; their
report on matters that they
considered to be significant to the
financial statementsisset aut on
pages 49-50.
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Key matter

Investment valuations

The most significant balance in the financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc
group is investments, 85% of which are
measured at fair value based on valuation
technigues including inputs not based on
cbservable market data.

The majority of British Business Bank plc's
investments are in debt funds meaning
the level of estimation uncertainty is not
significant, The funds are valued by fund
managers who are independent of
management so the level of managemant
judgement or estimate is limited.

The fair value of Enterprise Capital Fund
investments are determined by
management using models, based on
inputs and assumptions including discount
rates and the timing of cashflows, and

are therefore subject to a higher degree
of management estimate.

My response

In auditing investment valuations | performed the following procedures:

| have tested the aperating effectiveness of the British Business Bank
plc’s controls over investment vaiuations. This has included attendance
at key internal meetings where | have observed management's review
and challenge of valuations provided by fund managers or derived from
valuation models.

— Ihaveundertaken a review of a sample of new investments and

considered whether management's judgements on appropriate
accounting treatments are consistent with the relevant accounting
standards and the underlying substance and form of legal agreements;

- where management relies on valuations provided by fund managers

to estimate the value of its investments, I have considered the
governance arrangements in place and process undertaken by
management to review and challenge the valuations prior to thelr
indlusion in the accounts. 1have performed detailed procedures to
enable me 1o gain assurance from the work of the fund managers.

| considered the averall competence, capahility and objactivity of the
fund managers, as well as the scope of their work and its relevance

to the accounts and my opinion. Where investments are held by British
Business Bank Investments Limited, | have taken assurance frem my
work on the financial statements of that company;

- where management uses models te estimate the value of its
investments, { considered the design of the valuation madels, the
validity of the data inputs to those models, and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions on which the models were hased. | sought
confirmzation that management had reassessed the assumptions made
in the priar year which underpin the valuation models ta confirm that
they remain appropriate at year end and challenged management on
how it has addressed estimation uncertainty; and

— Ihave assessed the accuracy and completeness of the review for
potential impairments that management has performed in relation
to its investments.

The results of my audit procedures enabled me to conclude that the
valuation of investments in the financial statements is not materially
misstated.
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Application of materiality

lapplied the concept of materiality
in both planning and performing my
audit, and in evaluating the effect

of misstatements on my audit and
onthe financial statements. This
approach reccgnises that financial
statements are rarely absolutely
correct, and that an audit is designed
to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free from material
misstatement. A matteris material If
its omission or misstatement would,
in the judgement of the auditar,
reasonably influence the decisions
of users of the financial statements.

Based on my professional judgement,
| determined overall materiality for
the group's financial statements at
£24m, whichis approximately 2%

of total assets. The Bank develops
and manages finance programmes
designed to enhance the working of
finance markets which it delivers
through investments in partner
organisations: | therefcre chose assets
asthe benchmark because | consider
it to be the principal consideration

for usersin assessing the financial
performance of the Group.

| have determined that for payroll,
management fee income, and
operating expenditure misstatements
of a lesser amount than overall
materiality could influence the
decisions of users of the accounts
given the disproportionate size of
these balances compared to value

of investments and the level of public
interestin the group’s perfermance
inthese areas. ! have therefore
determined that the threshold to be
applied to these components is £5.8m,
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As well 3as quantitative materiality
there are certain matters that, by their
very nature, would if not corrected
influence the decisions of users.
Assessment of such matters would
need to have regard to the nature of
the misstatement and the applicable
legal and reporting framewecrk, as
well as the size of the misstatement.

t agreed with the Audit Committee
thattwould report toit alluncorrected
misstatements identifiad through my
auditin excess of £250,000, as well
as differences helow this threshold
that in my view warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds.

Tatal unadjusted audit differences
reported to the Audit Committee would
have had noimpact on net assets.

Scope of my audit

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient
10 give reasonable assurance that

the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error, Thisincludes
an assessment of:

- whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the group’s
circumstances and have been
consistently applied and
adeguately disclosed;

- thereasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by
the directors; and

- the cverall presentation of the
financial statements.

In addition | read all the information
and non-financial information in the
Annual Report toidentify material
inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify
any information that {s apparently
materially Incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by me in the
course of performing the audit.

If | become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or
inconsistencies | consider the
implications for my report.
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Group audit approach

My group audit scope focused an
those balances assessed as being of
the greatest s(gnificance to the group
financial statements and their users.
| considered how the subsidiaries
should be eggregated to form the
components of my group audit
approachin line with International
Standards of Auditing.

I gave particular consideration to
the size and risk characteristics of
the consolidates entities; how they
are managed; and the audit
exemptions taken by the British
Business Bank plc. British Business
Bank Investments Ltd, which is the
largest subsidiary and holds £945m
of the group’s £1,047m net assets at
31 March 2017, is subject to separate
governance processes and has its
own ledger; | have therefore treated
this as a single component.

The parent company and remaining
subsidiaries are subject to common
gavernance processes and share

a ledger and so | have aggregated
these to farm a single component
farthe purposes of my audit. Both
components are significant to the
group in terms of value and risk.

| have taken assurance from work
performed by the auditors of British
Business Bank Investments Ltd
and have performed additional
procedures to obitain assurance
over the financial information of
the parent and other subsidiaries.

Independent auditor's report

Other matters on which | report
under the Companies Act

The strategic and directors’
reports

In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit,
the informaticn givenin the strategic
and directers reports for the financiat
year are consistent with the financial
statements and have been prepared
inaccordance with applicable law.

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the greup and

its environment abtained during

the course of the audit, | have
identified no material misstatements
inthese reports,

The corporate governance
statements

In my opinion, based on the work
undertakenin the course cf the
audit, the {nformation given in the
corporate governance statement
inrespect of internal control and

risk management systems in relation
tofinancial reporting processes

is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared
inaccordance with applicable law.

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the group and its
environment gbtained during the
course of the audit, | have identified
no material misstatements in this
information.

Matters on which I report by
exception

Consistency of informationin
the Annual Report

Under International Standards on
Augditing (UK & Ireland), } am required
o report ta you if, in my opinion,
information in the annuai report is:

- materially inconsistent with
the information in the audited
financial statements; or

— apparently materially incorrect
based on, cr materially
incansistent with, the knowledge
of the group that |l acquired in the
course of performing my audit; or

- otherwise misleading.
In particuiar, | am required to consider:

- whether | have identified any
incansistencies between the
knowledge that | acquired during
the audit and the directors’
statement that they consider
the annual reportis fair, balanced
and understandable; and

— whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those
matters that | communicated
to the Audit Committee which
I consider should have been
disclosed,

I have nething to repert arising from
this duty.



Independent auditor's report

The directors’ assessment of
principal risks and future prospects

Under International Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland), | am required
toreport to you if | have anything
material to add, or to draw attention
to, inrelation to the directors’
disclosuresin the annual report

and financial statements;

- confirming that they have carried
out arabust assessment of
principal risks facing the group,
including those that would
threatenits business madel, future
performance, solvency or liguidity;

- describing those risks and
explaining how they are being
managed or mitigated;

~ onwhether they considered it
appropriate to adopt the going
concern baslis, and their
identification of any material
uncertainties to the entity’s ability
to continue over a period of at
least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial
statements; and

— explaining how trey have assessed
the prospects of the entity, over
what period they have done s¢
and why they consider that period
to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they
have areasonable expectation
that the group will be able to
continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they Tall due over
the period of their assessment,
including any related disciosures
drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

I have nothing material tc add, or to
draw attention to, on these matters.

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Respective responsibilities of
the directors and the auditor

As explained mare fully in the
Statement of Diractors'
responsibilities in respect of the
Directors' Report and the Financial
Statements, the directors are
respansible for the preparaticn of the
group financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. My responsibility is to
audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and with
International Standards on Auditing
(UK & Ireland). Those standards
require me and my staff toa comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Other matter

| have reported separately, on pages
113 to 114, on the Parent Company
Financial Statements of British
Business Bank plc for the year ended
31 March 2017 and on the information
in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report that is described as having
been audited.

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditor

13July 2017

For and on behalf of the Comptrolier
and Auditor General (Statutory
Auditor)

Naticnal Audit Office
157-157 Buckingham Palace Road
Lendon SW1w 9sP
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated statement of

comprehensive net income
for the year to 31 March 2017

2017 2016

Note £000G £000
INCOME
Interestincome 41 52,501 39,459
Management fee 4.2 14,339 11,377
Otherincome 4.3 1,320 241
Gross operating income 68,160 51.077
Net gains on investment assets 6 4,670 457
Net operating income 72,830 51,534
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 7.1 (15,345} (12,192)
Other operating expenditure 7.2 {7,332) (7,243)
Depreciation and amartisation 7.3 (326) (304)
Operating expenditure i (23,004) (19,739)
Net operating profit 49,826 31,795
ECF fair value adjustments
Impairment of ECF investment assets 12.3 {30,755) (32.643)
Fair value gain on derivatives 125 5,408 6.638
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment 12.3 12,712 13,083
ECF fair value provision 16 (38.531) (36.581)
Net ECF fair value adjustments (51,166) (49,513}
Proceeds of warranty claim 5 - 2,900
Loss before tax  (L.340) (14,818)
Tax expense 81 (10,823) (8,518)
Loss forthe year (12,163) (23.336)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax
Net gairt on investments recognised in reserves 123 12,216 12,273
Deferred tax relating to ECF investments 8.1 1,499 1.804
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year o 1,552 (9.259)

All operations are continuing,

The net gain on investments recognised in reserves inciuded within other comprehensive income wilt be reclassified to
prafitand lassin subsequent years if the gain oninvestmentsis realised,

The notes on pages 84 to 112 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated statement
of financial position

as at 31 March 2017
2017 2016

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Loans and receivables 121 138,405 72,887
Held to maturity investments 12.2 31,090 31,080
Available-for-sale financial assets 123 Gee227 729,735
Assets designated at fair value thraugh profit orloss 12.4 29,522 15,029
Derivative financdial instruments 125 24,319 18,911
Property, plant and equipment 10 525 361
Intangible assets 11 50 119
Total non-current assets 1,146,133 868,132
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 3,783 18,101
Cash and cash equivalents 14 58.43° 58,382
Total current assets 62,215 76,483
Total assets 1,208,348 944,615
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (6.215) {15,787)
Corporation tax 8.2 {5.897) {5.710)
Provisions 16 (29,378) (£6,373)
Total current liabilities (41,490) (47,870)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,166,858 896,745
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables : 15 (E18) (88)
Deferred tax 83 {1,099) (2.796)
Provisions 16 (117,485) (81,839)
Total liabilities (160,892) (132,593)
Netassets 1,047,456 812,022
Equity
Issued share capital 15 1,071,408 837.526
Financial instruments reserve 28,761 15,046
Retained earnings o o (52,713 (40,550)
Total equity 1,047,456 812,022

The financial statements of the group (parent company number 08616013} were appraved by the Board of Directors
and authorised forissue on 13 July 2017 They were signed on its behalf by:

mﬂ Keith Morgan
" (Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 84 ta 112 form an integrai part of the financial statements,
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Consolidated statement

of changes in equity

Consofidated financial statements

as at 31 March 201/
Financial
instrument
Issued capital reserve  Retained earnings Total

Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance as at
1 April 2015 664,326 969 (17.214) 648,081
Net income after tax - - (23,336) (23,336)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax - 14,077 - 14,077
Total comprehensive
income - 14,077 (23,336) (9,259)
Issue of ordinary shares 19 173,200 - - 173,200
Balance at
31 March 2016 837,526 15,046 (40,550} 812,022
Opening balance as at
1 April 2016 837,526 15,046 (40,550) 812,022
Netincome after tax - - (12,163) (12,163)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax ‘ - 13,715 - 13,715
Total comprehensive
income - 13,715 (12,163) 1,552
Issue of ardinary shares - 15 233,882 - - 233,882
Balance at
31 March 2017 1,071,408 28,761 (52,713) 1,047,456
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Consolidated cash

flow statement
as at 31 March 2017/

2017 2016

Note £000 £000
Loss beforetax (1.340) (14,818}
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for:
Unrealised net gains on investment assets B (4.670) (457}
Depretiation and amortisation 7.3 326 304
Movement inaccrued interest {52,501) {39,459}
Impairment of ECF investment assets 123 30,755 32,643
Unrealised fair value gain on derivatives 125 (5.408) (5,638}
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment 123 (12,712) (13,083)
ECF provision expense 16 38,531 36,591
Other provision expense 16 120 -
Payment of corporation tax 8 (10,834) (7.384)
Movementin trade and other receivabies 13 14,318 (13,039)
Movementin trade and cther payables 15 (8.842) 8,884
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 4 11 - 14
Net cash used for operating activities ) (12,257) (16,442}
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of loan and receivahble assets 121 {(79,805) (25,329)
Repayment of loan and receivable assets 121 16,064 8272
Interest received on loan and receivable assets 65,248 2,041
Loans and receivable assets transferred 12.2 - (36,437)
Purchase of held to maturity assets 12.2 - {30,000
Interest received on held to maturity assets 123 2.550 -
Purchase of available-for-sale assets 12.3 (260,073) (186,459)
Repayment of available-for-sale assets 123 57,467 70,377
Interest recelved on available-for-sale assets 123 45,906 37,605
Purchase of assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 124 (9.470) (8,791)
Interest received on assets designated at fair value through
prafitor loss 124 59 409
Proceeds of dispesal of investment in associate - g
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 (414) {21)
Purchase of intangible assets 11 (7) (9)
Net cash used in investing activities (221,575) (169,424)
Cash flows from financing activities -
Issue of new shares 19 233.882 173,200
Net cash from financing activities N o 233,882 173,200
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 50 ~[12.666)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 58,382 71,048
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 58,432 58,382

The notes on pages 84 to 112 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. General information

The British Business Bank plc (the
“Company” or “Group”}isincorporated
in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act. The address of the
registered office is Foundry House,

3 Millsands, Sheffield, S3 8NH. The
nature of the British Business Bank
Croup's operations and its principal
activities are set out in the strategic
reporton pages® to 38.

2. Significant accounting
policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have

been preparedin accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the Eurgpean Union (IFRSs as adopted
by the EL), IFRIC Interpretations and
thase parts of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies
reporting under FRS. The financial
statements are preparedin
accordance with IFRS and
interpretationsin force at the
reporting date.

The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments and non-
financial assets that are measured
at revalued amounts ar fair values
at the end of each reparting period,
as explained in the accounting palicies
following. Historical costis generally
based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set
out below,

These financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling because
thatis the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the
Group operates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company {its subsidiaries) made
up ta 31 March 2017 Control is
achieved when the Company:

- hasthe power aver the investee;

- isexposed, orhasrights, to
variable return fromits
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power
to affectsitsreturns.,

The Company reassesses whether or
notit controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to ane or more ¢f the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the
censolidated income statement from
the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component

of other comprehensive income are
attributed in full to the owners of
the Company in the absence of
non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of the
subsidiaries is also attributed in full
to the owners of the Company in the
absence of non-controlling interests.
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Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting
palicies used into line with the Group's
accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions
between the members of the Greup
are eliminated on consolidation.

Going concern

The Directors have areascnable
expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources
to rontinue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements,

Adoption of new and revised
Standards

There were no new or amended
standards applied for the first time
and therefore no restatements of
the previous financial statements
were required.

At the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which
have not been applied in these
financial statements, were inissue but
not yet effective {and in some cases
had not yet been adopted by the EU):

- IFRS 2 (emendments) Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions;

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

IFRS 10 gnd IAS 28 (amendments)
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture;
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— IFRS 14 Reqguiatory Deferral
Accounts;

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers;

- IFRS 16 Leases;

- Annualimprovements to IFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle,

- 1AS 7 {omendments) Staterment
of Cash Flows;

- 1AS 17 (@amendments) Recognition
of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unreaiised Losses,

— IAS 40 (omendments) Transfers
of Investment Property,

— FRIC 27 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advarnice
Consideration.

The Directors do not expect that

the adopticn of the Standards and
Interpretations listed above will have
a material impact an the financial
statements of the Group in future
years, except that IFRS 9 willimpact
both the measurement and disc'csures
of financial instruments. During the
year, the Directors have determined
the Group will adapt IFRS G for the year
ending 31 March 2019 whilst internally
calcutating first comparatives at

31 March 2018 and are in the process
of undertaking a detailed review of
the impact of the Standard. Until this
detalled review has been completed it
is not possible to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect an the Group's
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair

value of the consideration received

or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services
providedin the normal course of
business, net of discounts, Value
Added Tax (VAT) and other sales-
related taxes, Revenue is reduced

for estimated rebates and other
similar allowances.
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Dividend and interest income

Dividend income framinvestments
isrecognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been
established (provided thatitis
probable that the economic benefits
will flow 1o the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interestincome is recognised when
itis probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interestincome is
accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate thatexactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s nat
carrying amount oninitial recognition.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum
cf the tax currently payable and
deferred tax,

The tax currently payable is based

on taxable profit for the year, Taxable
profit differs fram net profit as
reportedin the income statement
because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or
deductible inother yearsand it
further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible, The Group’s
lfability for current taxis calculated
using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Ceferred tax is the tax expected to be
nayable ar recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of
assels and liahifities in the financial
statements and the corresponding
tax bases usedin the computation

ot taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet fiability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recagnised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised o the
extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which
case, the currentand deferred tax
are also recognised in other
ccmprehensive income or directly

in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effectis included
in the accounting for the business
combination,

VAT is accounted for in the accounts,
in that amounts are shown net of
VAT except:

- Irrecaverable VAT is charged
to the Consclidated Statement
of Comprehensive Net Income,
andincluded under the relevant
expenditure heading.

- Irrecaverable VAT on the purchase
of an assetis included in additions.

The net amount due to, or from,

HM Revenue and Customsin respect
of VAT isincluded within payables
and receivables on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
carried at depreciated historical cost
or where it is deemed to be [ower,
fair value,

Furniture and equipment and
leasehold improvement are stated

at cost less accurmnulated depreciation
and any recognised impairment loss.

The Group capitalises property, plant
and equipment purchased for a net
value of £3,000 ar more and which
have a useful economic life in excess
of one year.
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Depreciationis recognised so as

to write off the cost or valugtion of
assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method,
on the following bases:

Leasehold improvement
Shorter of estimated remaining
usefullife or cutstanding lease term

IT equipment
3 -5Syears

The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes
inestimate accounted foron a
prospective basis.

Anitem of property, plant and
equipmentis derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The
galin or loss arising on the disposal or
scrappage of anassetis determined
as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recegnised in income,

Intangible assets acquired
separately

Intangible assets including IT
pragrams and software licences,
with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately, are carried at
costless accumutated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses,
Amartisationis recognisedon a
straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives on the
following bases:

IT programs
3-10years

Software licences
Period of licence

The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes inestimate
being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
usefullives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Anintangible asset is derecognised
ondisposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or losswhen
the assetis derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment andintangible assets

Ateach balance sheet date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there

is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairmentloss.

If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assetis
estimated to determine the extent
of the impairmentioss (if any). Where
the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from
other assets, the Group estimates
the recaverable amount of the
cash-generating unit tc which the
assetbelongs.

Recoverable amountis the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value
inuse,

if the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the assetisreduced toits
recoverable amount. Animpairment
loss is recognised immediately in
prafit arloss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount,
inwhich case the impairment loss is
treated as arevaluation decrease,
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Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset Isincreased

to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amaunt does not
exceed the carrying amount that
wolld have been determined had
noimpairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years, A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant assetis carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the Group’'s
balance sheet when the Croup
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial
liabitities are initially measured at

fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities
at fairvalue through profit or loss)

are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, where material, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial
liapilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately
inprofit orloss.

The fair value of financial instruments
is determined by reference ta quoted
market prices where an active

market exists for the trade of these
instruments, The fair value of financial
instruments which are not traded

in an active market is determined
using generally accepted valuation
techniques, including estimated
discounted cash flows.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into

the following specified categories:
financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit orloss (FVTPL), ‘held-to-
maturity' investments, ‘available-for-
sale’ (AFS) financial assets and 'loans
and receivables’ The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.
Further details are provided in ncte 12,

Effective interest method

The effective interest methadisa
method of calculating the amortised
cost of adebt instrument and of
aliocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rateis the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
{including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate,

a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount oninitial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financiai assets
classified as at FVTPL,

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are dassified as at
FVTPLwhen the financial assetisa
derivative financial instrument, held for
trading or it is designated as at FYTPL.
The VCCatalystinvestments have
been designatedasat FVTPLen

the basis that their performance

is evaluated internally by the Directors
on a fair value hasis.

Financial assets at FV TPL are stated
at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising an re-measurement recognised
in profit orloss. The net gain or loss
recognisedin profitorloss
incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset.
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Held-to-maturity investments

These are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that
the Group has the positive intent and
ahility to hold to maturity. Held-to-
maturity investments are measured
atamortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment,
with revenue recognised on an
effective yield basis.

Available for sale (AFS)
financial assets

AFS financia! assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated
as AFS or are not classified as (&) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investrments or ) financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss,

The Group has investments in limited
partnerships and venture capital
investments which are classified

as being AFS. Fair value is determined
in the manner described innote 21,
Gains and fosses arising from changes
in fair value are recagnised in

other comprehensive income

and accumulated in the financial
instrument reserve with the
exception of impairment losses,
interest calculated using the
effective interest method and
foreign exchange gains and losses
onmonetary assets, which are
recognised directly in profit ar loss.
Where the investment is disposed of
oris determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the financial instrument
reserve is reclassified to profit arloss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary
assets denominatedin a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot
rate at the balance sheet date.

The foreign exchange gains and
lasses that are recagnised in profit
orloss are determined based on

the amortised cost of the monetary
asset. Other fareign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive iIncome.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments, originated
or acquired, that are not quotedin an
active market.

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents, receivables
and loans. Afterinitial recognition
they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method,
less any impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the profit or loss
through the amortisation process.
Interestincome is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables
when the recagnition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, ather than those

at FVTPL, are assessed forindicators
of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset,

the estimated future cash flaws of
the investment have been affected.

Far all other assets, abjective
evidence of impairment could include;

- significant financial difficulty of
theissuer or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

- tbecoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial
assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in additian,
assessed forimpairmenton a
collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolic of
receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting
payments, anincrease in the number
of delayed payments in the portfalio,
as well as cbservable changes in
national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on
receivables.




88 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2017

For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's ariginal effective interestrate,

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible,
itis written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance
account. Changes inthe carrying
amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or inss,

When an AFS financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or lpsses previously recocgnised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the year.

If, iIn @ subsequent year, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases

and the decrease can ba related
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recagnised,
the previously reccgnised impairment
loss is reversed through profit arloss
ta the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment
not been recognised,

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the
assetexpire, or when it transfers

the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to ancther entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group
recognisesits retained interestin

the asset and an assoclated liability

for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership
of atransferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises
acollateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and eguity instruments are
classified as ejther financial liabilities
or as equity in accardance with the
substance of the contractual
arrangement.

Financial guarantee contract
liabilities

Financial liabilities for foan
commitments below marketrate and
financial guarantee cantract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair
values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation
under the contract, as determined
in accordance with 1AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and

- the amountinitially recognised
less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies
setout above.

Loan commitments liabilities are
disclosed as provisions (see note 16).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including
barrowings, are initially measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs.

Gther finarcial fiabilities are classified
as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPU
or ‘other financial liabilities'. The Group
does not currently hold any financial
lizbilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are
subseguently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense
recogniscd on an effective yield basis.
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De-recognition of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when and only when its
obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they exnire.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cashinhand and current balances
with hanks and other financial
institutions, which are readily
convertible to known amounts

of cash and which are subject to
insignificantrisk of changesin value
and have an ariginal maturity of
three months or less. Bank overdraft
amounts are included within trade
and other payables.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as aresult of a past
event, itis probable that the Group will
bereauired to settle that obligation
and areliable estimate can be made
of the amaunt of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision

is measured using the cash flaws
estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amountis

the present value of those cash flows
{when the effect of the time value

of money is material),

When some or ail of the economic
henefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if itis virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably. Mare detall is
provided about the undrawn lcan
commitment provision in note 9.
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Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities
arising through financial guarantees
under IAS 37 A contingent liability

is a possible ebligation depending

on whether some uncertain future
event occurs, or a present obligation
but payment is not prebable or the
amount cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liahilities are not
recognised but should instead be
disclosed, unless the possibility

of an outflow of ecanomic rescurces
is remote. Where the time value of
money is material, contingent liabilities
dre stated at discounted amounts,

Foreign exchange

The individual financial statements of
each Group company are presentedin
the currency of the primary ecanomic
environment in which it operates

{its functional currency) which is
pounds sterling.

The Group applies |AS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates and transactions that are
denominated in a foreign currency
are translated into sterling at therate
of exchange ruling on the date of
each transaction, except where rates
danot fluctuate significantly, in which
case an average rate for a period is
used. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies

as at the halance sheet date are
retranslated at the rates of exchange
ruling at thatdate. These translation
differences are recagnisedin the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

Retirement costs

Payments to defined contribution
retirement schames are recognised
as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. Payments made
to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments
1o defined contribution schemes
where the Group's obligaticns under
the schemes are equivalent to those
arising in a defined contribution
retirement scheme.
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Employee benefits

Inaccordance with IAS 19 Employee
benefits, the Group recognises short
term employee benefits when an
employee has rendered service in
exchange for those benefits,

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms ¢f the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee.
Ali other leases are classified as
operating teases.

Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to income on

a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease except where
another more systematic basis is
more representative of the time
patternin which economic benefits
from the lease asset are consumed.

3. Critical accounting
judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the application ¢f the Croup’s
accounting policies, which are
describedin note £, the Directors
arerequired to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. This
applies in particular to the valuation
of Enterprise Capital Funds.

The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that
are considered 1o be relevant.
Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed cnan
ongeoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised
inthe year in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only
that year, or in the year of the revision
and future yearsif the revision
affects both current and future years,

The estimates and assumptions that
risk causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial
year are:

- Fluctuations in the fair values
of availatle for sale assets and
FVTPL assets, where quoted
prices and ather valuation models
and techniques are used to
determine estimated future cash
flows, and include a number of
otherassumptions.

~ Directors’ judgements with regard
to theimpairment of assets.

- Fluctuations in the fair value of
financial liabilities/guarantees
measured using modelling
techniques.

In acdition, there is uncertainty in
estimating the effective interest rate
for various debt fund investments,
The future returns from these
investments are notonly limited to
contracted cash flows of interest

and principal but also returns are
inherently uncertain and will depend
on arange of factarsinciuding the
manager's success in originating
lending opportunities, costs and fees,
how the manager exercises discretion
in trading off equity against debt
components in loan structures,

credit performance, and prevailing
market conditions.

The Graup has estimated effective
interest rates for all gebt fund
investments on a consistent basis.
As indication of sensitivity, a 25 basis
points decrease in the effective
interest rate would decrease interest
income hy around £2 million over a
one year period.
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4 Income

4.1 Interestincome
An analysis of the Group's interest income Is as follows:
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2017 2016
Note £000 E£QQ0
Interest from leans and receivables 121 6.3°3 3,006
Interest from held ta maturity investments 12.2 2,550 1,090
Interest frem available-for-sale assets 123 43,628 35,303
Total interestincome 52,501 35,459
4.2 Management fee
An analysis of the Group's management fee inccme is as follows:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Management fee earned from:
Angel Co-Fund 450 340
Department for Business, Energy and industrial Strategy 10,075 10,650
Narthern Powerhouse Investments Limited 2,386 -
Midlands Engine Investments Limited 1,414 -
Capital for Enterprise Fund LP _ 369
Other 4 18
Total management fee income 14,339 11,377
4.3 Otherincome
An analysis of the Group's other income is as follows:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Arrangement and other fees 1,320 241
Total other income 1,320 241

5. Proceeds of warranty claim

On 1 November 2014 the Group acquired the share capital of British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) from British

Business Holdco Limited (BBHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of BEIS, for consideration af £118.7m which was equal

to the fair value of the net assets of BBFL at the transaction date,

In 2015/16 a re-assessment of the B8BFL deferred tax liability as 2t 1 November 2014 was made by the Group's tax

advisers who determined that the liability included within the fair value of the net assets of BBFL at that date was
understated by £2.9m. Consequently the Group sought, and BEIS agreed to, payment of that amount under the terms

of a tax covenant within the share purchase agreement. The amcunt was subsequently settled by BEIS.
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6. Netgains on investment assets
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2017 2016
Note £000 £000
Impairment of investments in associates - (G)
Impairment allowance on loans and receivables 121 (1.394) (143)
Impairment of limited partnerships available-for sale assets 123 {67) (170)
Impafrment of non-ECF venture capital available-for-sale assets 123 (810) {1,082)
Foreign exchange gains on available-for-sale financial assets 123 1,859 1,524
Fair value gains on assets held at fair value through profit and loss 12.4 5,082 334
4,670 457
/. Operating Expenditure
7.1 Staff numbers and staff costs
The average menthiy number of employees including executive directors was:
2017 2016
No. No.
Permanent staff 120 81
Secanded staff 5] 11
Temporary and agency staff 18 15
144 107
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Wages and salarles - permanent staff including executive directors B,668 6,270
Wages and salaries - seconded staff 537 1,018
Wages and salaries - temporary and agency staff 1,768 1,796
Non-executive Directors’ fees 314 302
Short and long termincentive plans and bonus scheme 1,641 808
Social security costs 1,265 915
Pension costs 1,153 983
Total staff costs 15,346 12,192
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7.2 Other operating expenditure
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2017 2016

E000 £000

Professional fees - investment scheme design and transactions 2,679 2,404
- gperational fees 827 658

Accommedation and office services 1,913 1.887
Marketing 618 766
Auditor's remuneration 109 116
Steff related costs, including training and travel 856 518
Gther purchase of goods and services 330 B94
7,332 7,243

Auditor's remuneration relates to fees payable for the audit of the Group's annual accounts. The Group's auditors did not

provide any non-audit services,

7.3 Depreciation and amortisation

2017 2016
Note £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment depreciation 10 250 228
Intangible assets amortisation 11 76 76
376 304
8. Taxation
8.1 Taxexpense
2017 2016
£000 £000
Current tax expense
Current year 10,558 9,218
Adjustmentin respect of prior years 453 (526)
Total current tax expense 11,021 8.692
Deferred tax income
Current year (1,697) (1,961)
Adjustment in respect of prior years - {17)
Total deferred taxincome (1.697) (1,978)
Total tax expense 9,324 6,714
Recognised through profit and loss 10,823 8,518
Recognised through other comprehensive income (1,499} (L804)
Total tax expense 9,324 6,714

Corporation tax is calculated at 20% (31 March 2016: 209%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. Deferred tax
primarily relates to the Group's investmentsin Enterprise Capital Funds, Itis calculated at 17% (31 March 2016: 18%)
of the estimated unrealised gains within the funds. Thisis & temporary timing difference and the tax will become payable
once the gains are realised in the underlying funds, for example through investment exits.
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The Group's investments in Enterprise Capital Funds comprises interests in Limited Partnerships. Temporary accounting
mavementsin relation to these investments are either added back or deducted from the taxable profit orloss. The Group
is subject tc tax on estimated realised gains or losses arising in the individual limited partnerships. The reconciliation

below takes account of these adjustments.

The tables below reconcile the tax charge Tar the year.

Profit/({loss) before tax Current tax
2017 2016 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net operating loss before tax {1,340) (14.,818) (268) (2,863)
Net gain on investments recognised
inreserves 12,216 2,273 2,443 2,455
Permanent disallowances relating to:
ECF pravision expense 38,531 36,5381 7,706 7,318
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment (12,712) {13,083) (2.542) {2.G17)
Other permanent disallowances (1027 (1.844) (205) (366)
Timing differences relating to:
ECF derivative fair value movement (5.408) (6.638) (1,082) (1.328)
ECF accrued return (9,483) (8.430) {1,.897) (1,68E)
ECF impairment 30,755 32,643 5,151 6,529
ECF realised (losses)/gains {6.029) 9,097 (1,200) 1,819
Long term Incentive Plan accrued
expenditure 450 112 S0 ec
Other timing differences 810 1.082 162 216
Losses carried/(brought) forward 6,029 N {896) 1,206 (175)
Profits chargeable to current tax 52,792 46,089 10,558 9,218
Unrealised losses Deferred tax
2017 2016 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Unrealised losses on ECF investments (8,818) (10,022) (1,499) (1,804)
Other unrealised losses (L1B5) (B72) (198) (157)
Unrealised losses subject
to deferred tax (9.983) (10,894) (1.697) (1.961)
8.2 Corporation tax payable
2017 2016
£000 £000
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 2016 5710 4,407
Tax expense for the year 11,021 8,692
Tax paid (10.,834) (7.384)
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 2017 5,897 5,710
8.3 Deferred tax liability
2017 2016
£000 £000
Ceferred tax liability at 31 March 2016 2,796 4,774
Movement in the year ~ i {1.697) (1.978)
Deferred tax liability at 31 March 2017 1,099 2,796
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9. Operating segments
The Group's performance and results are managed internally as follows:

— British Business Bank entities: these are split into British Business Finance Limited {BBFL), British Business Bank
Investments Ltd (BBBIL) and the overall Group results.

- Programmes administered on behaif of BEIS: In addition to its own operations, the British Business Bank also, through
its subsidiary British Business Financial Services Ltd (BBFSL), administers assets on behalf of the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. These assets de not form part of the British Business Bank plc Group
financial statements but are reported to management. The financiat performance and position of these programmes
isincluded within the Strategic Report, These figures are not part of the audited financial statements.

- Business units: The Group's husiness units span the different subsidiaries ta pool expertise.

Group profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2017

Company Intra-graup Total
BBFL BBBIL plcand BBFSL eliminations Group
£000 £0CO0 £000 E£C00 £000
Income
investment Programmes - 43,018 - - 43,018
Venture Capital Solutions 9,483 - - - 9,483
Other income 120 1,324 27,751 (13,536) 15,6538
9,603 44,3472 27,751 (13,536) 68,160
Netinvestmentincome
Investment Programmes - 5,480 - - 5,480
Venture Capital Solutions (ex ECF) (810) - - - (810)
(810) 5,480 - - 4,670
Operational Costs
Staff costs (802) {1,099) (13,445) - (15,346)
Professional services (115) (819) {5.262) - (6,295)
General operations {2,683) (3.399) (8,816) 13,536 (1,362)
(3.600) (5.417) (27,523) 13,536 (23,004)
Net aperating profit 5,193 44,405 228 - 49,826
Impairment of ECF
investment assets {30,755} - - - (30,755)
Fair value gain an derivatives 5,408 - - - 5,408
ECF fair value provisicn expense (38,531} - - - (38,531)
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment 12,712 - - - 12,712

Earnings on an IFRS basis (45,973) 44,405 228 - (1,340}
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Group profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2016

Company Intra-group
BBFL BBBIL plcand BBFSL eliminations Total Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income
Investment Programmes - 31,029 - - 31,0258
Venture Capital Solutions 8,430 - - - 8,430
Qther income 578 336 23,765 (13,061) 11,618

9,008 31,365 23,765 (13,061) 51,077
Net investment costs
Investment Programmes - 1,545 - - 1,545
Venture Capital Solutians (ex ECF) (1.088) - - - (1,088)

(1.088) 1,545 - - 457
Operational Costs
Staff costs (786) {969) (10,437) - {12,192)
Professional services (202) (676) (2,763) - (3.641)
General operations (3.054) (3.692) (10,221) 13,061 {3,906)

(4,042} (5.337) {£3,421) 13,061 (19,739)
Net operating profit 3,878 27,573 344 - 31,795
Impairment of ECF investment assets (32.643) - - - (32.643)
Fair value gain on derivatives 6,638 - - - 65.638
ECF fair value provision expense (36,591) - - - (36,591)
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment 13.083 - - - 13,083
Proceeds of warranty claim - - 2,900 - 2,900
Earnings on an IFRS basis (45,635) 27.573 3,244 - (14,818)

ECFs

The British Business Bank accepts a lower than market rate return from ECF investments in grder to encgurage private
sector Investors toinvest. Although the Bank expects to make a positive return from these investments, this returnis
fess than that required by the private sector. Accounting standards require the Bank to recognise a liability when it makes
a commitment to a fund. The Bank records this liability as a provision. When a commitment is drawn the Bank impairs the
resulting investment and utilises the provision by a corresponding amount, This results in significant upfront expenditure
when new ECF commitments are entered into. This expenditure gradually reverses over the lifetime of the investment
as the impairment is reversed. The expenditure deesn't relate to an underlying loss on ECF investments and is theretare
excluded from the Group's financial target. The table below summarises the amounts relating to the ECFs that have been
recognised in arriving at the Group loss befaore tax in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Income.,

2017 2016

£000 £000

Interest income 9,483 8,430
Fair value gains on derivatives 5,408 6.638
Impairment (30,755) (32.643)
Unwind of impairment 12,712 13,083
Provision utilised/released in year {note 16) 19,607 10,242
Provision released in year (note 16) 2876 2,042
I 19,331 7,792

Provision against future commitments {note 16) - } (61,014) (48,875)

Net loss on Enterprise Capital Funds (41,683) (41,083)
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Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2017
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BBFL BBBIL Company plc Total Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Investment Programme
BFP Mid Cap - 587,072 - 587.072
investment Programme - 288,740 - 288,740
BFP Smalt Cap - 40,148 - 410,148
Venture Capital Solutionis
Enterprise Capital Fund 195,546 - - 195,546
VC Catolyst - 29,527 - 29,522
Other venture capital investments 4,530 - - 4,530
Total investment assets 200,076 945,482 - 1,145,558
ECF fair value provision (146,743) - - (146,743)
Net investment assets 53,333 945,482 . 998,815
Other assets/(liabilities)
Cash 2,884 9,579 45,968 58,432
Tangible and intangible assets - - 575 575
Net other payables (199) ~ (10,302) 135 (10,366)
Total netassets 56,018 944,759 46,679 1,047,456
Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2016
BBFL BBBIL Cornpany plc Total Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Investment Programme
BFP Mid Cop - 499,641 - 499,641
investment Programme - 147,771 - 147,771
BFP small Cop - 39,572 - 39,572
Venture Capital Selutions
Enterprise Capital Fund 155,224 - - 155,224
VC Catolyst - 15,029 - 15,029
Other venture capital investments 10,415 - - 10,415
Total investment assets 165,639 702,013 - 867,652
ECF fair value provision (108,212) - (108,212)
Netinvestment assets 57,427 702,013 - 759,440
Other assets/(liabilities)
Cash 8,157 3,389 46,836 58,382
Tangible and intangible assets - - 480 480
Net other payables - (2.140) 3,911 (8,051) ~_(6.280)
Total net assets 63,444 709,313 39,265 812,022
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10. Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017
Leasehold
improvement IT equipment Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2016 140 541 681
Additions - o - 362 414
At 31 March 201/ S 192 a03 1,095
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2016 (39) {281) (320)
Charge for the year {77) {173 (250)
At 31 March 2017 (116) (454) (570}
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017 76 449 575
At 31 March 2016 101 250 361
As at 31 March 2016
Leasehold
improvement IT equipment Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost orvaluation
At 31 March 2015 140 520 650
Additions - 21 2l
At31March20l6 140 541 681
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2015 (11) (81) (92)
Charge for the year (28) (200) (228)
At 31 March 2016 (39) (281) {(320)

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016 101 260 361
At 31 March 2015 129 439 568




938 British Business Bank — Annual Repart and Accounts 2017 Naotes to the consolidated financial statements

11. Intangible assets

As at 31 March 2017
Software
IT licences Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2016 207 28 235
Additions B 7 - 7
At 31 March 2017 o ) 214 28 247
Accumuiated amortisation and impairment
At 31 March 2016 (98) (18) {116)
Charge for the year (66) (109 (76)
At 31 March 2017 (164) (28) 7 (192)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017 50 - 50
At 31 March 2016 109 10 119
As at 31 March 2016
Software
IT licences Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2015 213 27 240
Additions 8 1 9
Disposals (14) - (14)
At 31 March 2016 207 2’8 235
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 31 March 2015 (26) (14) (40)
Charge for the year (72) (4) (76)
Released ondispgsals - - -
At 31 March 2016 {(98) (18) (116)

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016 109 10 119
At 31 March 2015 187 13 200
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172, Investments

Business Finance Partnership

British Business Bank Investments
Limited ("BBBIL"} manages the
Business Finance Partnership
programme,

The Business Finance Partnership
{BFP) has twao strands. The first
strand is the BFP Mid Cap which
investsin funds or funds managed
by fund managers whao lend to
medium-sized businesses with
turnover of up to £500m. All of

the BFP Mid Cap investments are
classified as available for sale assets.
Seenote 12.3 for details.

The second strand is the BFP Small
Cap which investsin debt funds and
non-bank lenders that provide an
alternative source of lending for small
businesses with turnover up to £75m.
The majority of the BFP Small Cap’s
investments are classified as
available-for-sale assets, See note

12 3 for details,

Through an invoice discount firm,
BBBIL purchases invoices from
investors, releasing money that
would otherwise be tied up for
between 30 and 120 days. The
investment is classified as leans and
receivables. It also provides funding
through peer to peer iending
platforms making small part-leans to
borrowers alongside other alatform
lenders. This lendingis also classified
as loans and receivables, See note
121 for details.

Investment Programme

BBEIL manages the Investment
Programme, It makes commercial
investments that stimulate atleast
the same amount of investmeant from
the private sector, encouraging new
lenders into the market and the growth
of smallerlenders. Most of BEBIUs
investments through the Investment
Programme are classified as available-
for-sale assets Howeaver as with the
BFP Small Cap this programme has
provided invoice discount finance and
participated in peer to peerlending
and in addition provided other credit
facilities. This lending as above s
classified as loans and receivables,
See note 12.1 for details.
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Inaddition, through the investment
Programme, BBBIL participated in

a publicissue of Tier 2 capital by
Shawhbrook Bank plc which issued
fixed rate reset callable subordinated
loan notes with aninitial semi-annual
coupon of 8Y2%. The issue was listed
on the London Stock Exchange on

28 October 2015, Seenpte 12.2

for details.

VC Catalyst

The VC Catalyst Fund investments
are funded by BBBIL, The VC Catalyst
Fund invests in commercially viable
venture capital funds that might
otherwise fail to reach a satisfactory
‘first close’ - the point at which a fund
has raised enough money tc begin
making investments in businesses.

It enables private sector investment
already committed to those funds

1o be unlecked and investedin
growth companies,

The British Business Bank has chosen
to account for all of its VU Catalyst
investments at fair value through
profit orloss as explainad in the
accounting policies in note 2. See
note 172.4 far detalls,

Enterprise Capital Funds

British Business Finance Limited
("BBFL") invasts in Enterprise Capital
Funds (ECFs). ECFs are commercially
focused funds that bring together
private and public money to make
equity investmantsin high growth
businesses. BBFL investsinto funds
on terms that improve the outcome
for private sector investors when
those funds are successful. It dees
this by taking an agreed prioritised
return of 3-4.5%. Inreturn BBFL

is entitled to less of the remaining
upside gain, in excess of the agreed
return, if a fund is successful.

B8BFLinlentionally makes a trade-oft
between the prioritised return and
potential upside gains. Overall, the
terms mezn that BEBFL expects the
ECFs to provide a positive return to
government, but that this return will
be lower than that typically sought by
a private sector investor. Thisisinline
with the Group's strategic objectives.

The investments which BBFL makein

ECFs meet the accounting definition of
aioan and are classified as available for
sale assets, Any upside returns which

the funds may generate are separately
accounted for as derivatives.

Accounting standards require that
available for sale assets are held at
fair value, which is defined as the
amount that a private sector investor
would pay for the investmants. This
meanrs that every FCF investment
Isimpaired to reflect the fact that

it will not provide the level of return
sought by a private sector investor,
evenifitis providing a positive return,
The impairment then reverses over
the life of the asset to 'top-up' the
prioritised return and provide a
commercial rate of return in the
accounts, Thisimpairment is not

as defined by IAS 39, however, the
Directors believe this terminology

is more useful to a reader of the
financial statements. See note 12.3
for details.

In addition, BBFL signs ECF
agreements committing to the
prioritised return and reduced upside
gaininadvance of drawdowns. At the
peint that BEFL enters into a new
commitment to provide a loan at
belcw market rate It has to recognise
a financial liability as it becomes
probable that it will incur accounting
losses. Thisis measured initially at
fair vafue and the provision is utilised
1o cover the impairment when a
drawdown is made. See note 16

for detaiis.

Where a fund performs well enough
10 more than repay BBFLs prioritised
return and capital the remaining
returnis accounted for as a derivative.
These aredetailed innote 12.5.

Other Venture Capital Investments

BBFL alsc has three other smaller
venture capital schemes: Bridges,
Aspire and the Capital for Enterprise
Fund These are detailed in note 12.3.
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12.1 Loans andreceivables

As at 31 March 2017
Accrued Impairment
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 £00Q0 £000 EQOOD £000 £000
Private companies
BFP Small Business 6,209 - - (4,093} 290 (74) 2,332
Investment Programme . 66,678 2,996 79,905 (18,219) 6,033 {1,320) ) 136,073
Total 72,887 2,996 79,905 (22,312) 6,323 (1,394) 138,405
Asat 31 March 2016
Accrued Impairment
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Private companies
BFP small Business 3,397 8,289 1,308 (7.600) 654 161 6,209
Investment Programme 15.064 28,148 24,071 (2,663) 2,412 (304) 66,678
Total 18.461 36,437 25,329 (10,263} 3,066 (143) 72,887

At the start of the current year an investment was reclassified from available for sale assats to Joans and receivahles,
This had been incorrectly classified as available for sale in the prior year, however, this investment was valued using
amortised cost and therefore no amendment to the value shown in the prior yearis required.

The carrying value of the loans and receivable assets approximates to their fair value.

12.2 Held to maturity investments

As at 31 March 2017
Accrued Impairment
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 £000 £C00 £000 £000 £000
Private companies
Investment Programme 31,090 - - (2,550} 2,550 - 31,080
Total 31,090 - - (2.550) 2,550 - 31,090
As at 31 March 2016
Accrued Impairment
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Private companies
Investment Programme - - 30,000 - 1,090 - 31,080
Total - - 30,000 - 1,080 - 31,090

The above asset represents an investment in fixed rate reset callable subordinated loan notes with an initial
semi-annual coupon of 8%% issued by Shawbrook Bank plc. The loan is expected to be held to maturity.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2017 101
12.3 Available for sale assets
At 31 March 2017
Foreign
Unwind of exchange
Accrued fair value gains/
Opening Transfers  Additions Repayments interest Revaluation impairment (iosses}Impairment Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Limited Partnership
Investments
BFP Mid Cap 499,641 - 124,716 (71.232) 26,191 7.756 - - - 587,072
BFP Small
Business 33,363 - 8,214 (6,967) 1685 588 - 886 (67) 37.816
Investment
Programme 50,003 (2996) 71422 (6,607} b,265 2,617 - 873 B - 121577
Total 583,007 (2,996) 204,352 (84,8006) 34,145 10,971 - 1,859 (67)746,465
Venture Capital
Investments
Enterprise Capital
Funds 136,313 - 55704 (12,230) 9483 - 12,712 - (30,755) 171,227
Bridges 1.311 - 17 - - - - - (273) 1,055
Aspire 2,490 - - (295) - ’ - - (537) 1660
Capital for
Enterprise Fund 6,614 - - {6.042) - 1,243 - - - 1815
Total 146,728 - 55,721 (18,567) 9,483 1,245 12,712 - (31,565)175,757
Total available
forsaleassets 729,735 (2,996) 260,073 (103,373)43.628 12,216 12,712 1,859 (31,632)922,222
Enterprise Capital Funds impairment includes impairment of additions of £19,607.000 (2016 £10,242,000) and
impairment based on fund manager valuations of £11,148,000 (2016: £22,401,000).
At 31 March 2016
Foreign
Unwind of exchange
Accrued fairvalue gains/
Opening Additions Repayments interest Revaluation impairment {losses) Impairment Closing
£000 EQOQ £000 EQOQ £060 E00O £000 £000 £000
Limited Partnership
Investments ;
BFP Mid Cap 426,029 112,838 (72,733) 22,781 10,726 - - - 499,641
BFP Small
Business 25,246 5,468 {4,298) 1251 1,043 - 873 (170) 33,363
Investment
Programme 23,401 29504 (6,988) 2841 544 - 701 - 50,003
Total 474,676 151,810 (84.019) 26,873 12,313 - 1,524 (170)583,007
Venture Capital
Investments
Enterprise
Capital Fundgs 136,038 34,381 (22977) 8430 - 13.083 - (32643) 136,313
Bridges 1.393 - (82) - - - - - 1,311
Aspire 3,569 43 - - (40) - - (L082) 2490
Capital for
Enterprise Fund /€53 dbo (904) - - - - - bHbl4
Total_ ]:48,254 34,689 - @3,963) 8,430 (40) 13,083 - (33,725)146,728
Total available
for sale assets 622,930 186,499 (107,982) 35,303 12,273 13,083 1,524 (33,895)729,735
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12.4 Assets designated at fair value through profit orloss
At 31 March 2017

Opening Additions Repayments Revaluation Closing
£000 £000 £000 £0CO £000
V( Catalyst o 15,028 54/0 (59) 5082 29522
Total 15,029 9,470 (59} 5,082 29,522
At 31 March 2016
QOpening Additions Repayments Revaluation Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
VC Catalyst ) 5,313 974 {409) 334 15,029
Total 5,313 9,791 (409) 334 15,029
12.5 Derivatives
At 31 March 2017
Opening Repayments Revaluation Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000
Enterprise Capital Funds 18,811 - 5,408 24,319
Total 18,911 - 5,408 24,319
At 31 March 2016
Opening Repayments Revaluation Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000
Enterprise Capital Funds 12273 - 6,638 18,911
Total 12,273 - 6,638 18,911
13. Trade and other receivables
2017 2016
£000 £000
Amounts receivable within one year
Tradereceivables 6576 15,882
Accrued incame 2,819 1,761
Prepayments 304 130
Otherreceivables 34 228
3,783 18,101

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost,

Of the amount above, £0.5 million (31 March 2016: £2.1 million) of trade receivables and £2.6 million {31 March 2016:
£1.8 million) of accrued income are receivable from the Department far Business, Eriergy and Industrial Strategy,

Of the amount above, £0.1 million of accrued income is receivable from Northern Powerhouse Investments Limited
and £0.1 miltion of accrued income is receivable from Midlands Engine Investments Limited.

The trade receivables balance includes £12.3m of cashin transit at 31 March 2016 that had been paid to acquire
assets but where the cash had not been received by the counterparty at the previous year end date.
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14, Cash and cash equivalents
The following balances were held at year end:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Covernment Banking Service 52,057 55,800
Commercial banks 6,375 2,582
Balance as at 31 March 2017 58,4372 58,382

The British Business Bank generally maintains a cash balance of atleast £50m to fund investments. As at 31 March 2017,
the cash balance was £58.4m of which £34.1m was used to fund investments in April and May 2017. As the majority of
the cash is held in the Government Banking Service there is minimal cost to the Exchequer.

15. Trade and other payables

2017 2016
EOQOOD £000
Amounts falling due within one year e
Trade payables 143 34
VAT and social security 376 1686
Shareholder lgan - _.BB8c
Accrued expenditure 3,472 2892
Other payables 2,224 1,980
6,215 15,787
Amounts falling due after more than one year R
Accrued expenditure -t 88
Other payables 818 -
818 88

The sharehalder loanis from the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. All shareholder loans are
subsequently converted to share capital.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of frade payables approximates to their fair value.

16. Provisions

Loan Dilap'n
commitments provision 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 108,212 - 108,212 71,621
Provided in year on new ECFs 61.014 120 61,134 48,875
Provision utilised in year
on drawdowns (19,607) - {(18.607) (10,242)
Provision released in year (2,876) - {2.875) {2.042)
- 38531 120 38,651 36,581
Closing balance 146,743 120 146,863 108,217
Of which:
Current 29,258 120 29,378 26,373
Non-current 117,485 ) - 117,485 81,839
146,743 120 146,863 108,212

Non-current amounts relate to the undrawn ioan commitments provisicn where based on historic and forecast
information it is not anticipated the provision will be vtilised with the next 12 months. Given the uncertain nature
of timings of the drawdowns from ECFs the Directors believe this is the best estimate at the balance sheet date.
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17, Contingent liabilities and indemnities

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 479A Subsidiary coampanies: conditions for
exemption from audit of the Companies Act which exempts qualifying companies from the audit of their individual
accounts for a financial year, The exemption is in respect of the following subsidiaries.

Subsidiary name Registered No.
British Business Finance Limited 08091928
British Business Financial Services Limited 09174621
Capital for Enterprise Limited 06179047
Capital for Enterprise Fund Managers Limited 06826072
Capital for Enterprise (GP) Limited SC354499
Aspire Holdco Limited 09263859

Asrequired by the Act, the British Business Bank plc:

- Guarantees all outstanding liabilities ta which the subsidiary companies are subject at the end of the financial year
tawhich the guarantee relates, and until they are satisfied in full; and

— Asserts that the guarantee is enforceable against the British Business Bank plc by any person to whom the subsidiary
companies are liable in respect of those liabiities.

Under the Bank’s Help to Grow financial quarantee programme, which was new in the year, the Bank has enteredin to
financial guarantee agreements of £60 miltion. The Bank has quaranteed 75% of eligible lending to SMEs under these
agreements and a counter guarantee is in place that guarantees 50% of the Bank's 75% of eligible lending. As at

31 March 2017 the amount lent under these financial guarantee agreements was £0.6 millian (2016: £nit).

18. Capital and other commitments

18.1 Capital commitments

The British Business Bank plc had the following commitments at the balance sheet date in relation to its existing
investment portfolio:

2017 2016
£000 £000
British Business Bank Investments Ltd
BFP Small Business 9,785 11,971
BFP Mid Cap 783,885 222,451
Investment Programme 282,236 256,782
VCCatalyst 58.8/4 54,609
Venture Capital Solutions
Enterprise Capitai Funds 304,762 253,594
Bridges Venture Fund 577 577
Capital for EnterpriseFund ) - ~
Other 7
Northern Powerhouse Investments Ltd o 50000 N
Midlands Engine Investments Ltd - 32,500 ~

1,022,620 799,984
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18.2 Operating lease commitments

The Bank's occupation of its registered office at Foundry House, 3 Millsands, Riverside Exchange, Sheffield S38NH is
governed by a Memorandum of Terms of Occupation (MOTO) covering the period from 17 December 2012 to 30 June 2017
The Bank has signed an extension to the MOTO covering the pericd from 1 July 2017 to 30 November 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2017, lease payments of £430,000 were recognised as an expense in the year.

The lease commitments as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

<lyr 1-5yrs >Byrs Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Operating lease 45 - - 45
The lease commitments as at 31 March 2016 were;

<lyr 1-5yrs >5yrs Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Operating lease 78 20 - S8

The Bank isin the process of negotiating a new MOTO to cover its occupation of office space at Fleetbank House,
2-6 Salisbury Sguare, Landon, EC4Y 8/X. The MOTO is expected to permit the Bank to accupy the space to 1 April 2019
with an opticn to break the agreement upen serving six months' natice.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Bank paid £81.000 in expenses in relation to occupying the offices (including
service charges, rates and utilities).

19, Share capital

2017 2016
£000 £000
1,071,407935 (2016: 837,525,848) Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares of £1 each:
Brought forward B837.526 664,326
Shares issuad for cash 233,882 173,200
Carried forward 1,071,408 B37.526

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry noright to fixed income.
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20. Subsidiaries and other significant undertakings

The Group consists of a parent company, British Business Bank plc, incorporated in the UK and a number of subsidiaries
held directly by the British Business Bank plc, which operate and are incarporated in the United Kingdom.

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company are shown below. The capital of each entity depends on its nature and
consists of ardinary shares. All the subsidiary undertakings have the same registered address being, Foundry House,
3 Mitlsands, Sheffield, S3 8NH.

Country of Shares held

Subsidiary Incorporation Nature of Business by the Company
British Business Bank UK Makes commercial investments into providers of 100%
investments Limited finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital

fundinvestments
British Business Finance UK Manages and invests into schemes (generally with an 100%
Limited element of State aid) on behalf of the Group
British Business Financial UK Administers investment schemes cn behalf of the 100%
Services Limited Department for Business, Energy and Industrial

Strateqgy
Capital for Enterprise UK Holding company 100% !
Limited*
Capital for Enterprise Fund UK Acts as fund manager of Capital for Enterprise L.LP.  100%
Managers Limited*
Capital for Enterprise (GP) UK Acts as general partner to Capital for Enterprise LP. 1009%
timited*
British Business Aspire UK Provides eguity investments to women led SMEs 100%

Holdco Limited™

*Indicates investments are not directly held in these companies

Details of the subsidiaries results, including their net assets g5 at the balance sheet date and their profit arloss for the
year ended 31 March 2017, are provided in the segmental reporting note 9.

The British Business Bank Group also has the following significant holdings in undertakings other than subsidiaries.

Country inwhich Class of share Proportion
Name itisincorporated held by the Group held by the Group
BMS Finance S.AR.L
Registered address: 55 Avenue Pasteur, L-2311, Luxembourg Luxembousrg Not classified 49.8%
Industrial Lending 1 (Boast Fund)
Registered address: 6 Rue Adolphe, L-1116, Luxembourg Luxembourg Class Ashares  46.6%
Pricoa Sterling Corporate Bond Fund?
Registered address: 70 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Bublin 2, Ireland  Ireland Not classified 67.7%

Urica Capital Limited @

Registered address: PO Box 1075, G Castle Street,

St Helier, Jersey, Channel Islands, |E4 2QP |ersey Not classified 50.0%
VRG Ventures Limited

Registered address; Cardiff House, Tilling Road,

London, Nwe2 1L] UK Ordinary shares 28.4%
Muzinich UK Private Debt Fund
Registered address: 49 Avenue | F.K, L-1855, Luxembourg L.uxembourg Not classified 21.0%

1. Pricoa'slatest finznrial year end was 30 juna 2017 The fund does not praduce separato arcounts and therefore figures for the fund
are nat available.
2. Urica's latest financial year end was 30 June 2017 At the balance sheet date it Fad not puclkshed accountsinrespect of that year.
As 3130 |une 2016, its aggregate amount of capital and reserves was £6,939,125 and during its financial year it made a profit of £70.479.
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21, Financial Instruments

21.1 Categories of financial instruments

The following table analyses the Group's financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the categories of financiat
instruments inIAS 39 Finandial Instruments, Recognition and Measurement. Assets and liabilities outside the scope
of IAS 30 are shown separately.

At 31 March 2017
Liabilities Naon-
Assets Loans Heldto  Available held at financial
held at and maturity forsale amortised assetsand
Note FVTPL receivables investments assets cost liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Property, plant and
equipment 10 - - - - - 525 525
Intangible assets 11 - - - - - 50 50
Loans and receivables 121 - 138,405 - - - - 138,405
Held to maturity
investments 122 - - 31,090 - - - 31090
Avallable-for-sale
financial assets 12.3 - - - Qgg22? 622,222
Designated at FVTPL 124 29,522 - - - - - 29,572
Derivatives 125 24,319 - - - - - 24,319
Trade and other
receivables 13 - 3,479 - - - - 3,479
Prepayments 13 - - - - - 304 304
Cash and cash
equivalents o 14 - 58,432 - - - - 58,437
Total assets 53,841 200,316 31,090 922,222 - 879 1,208,348
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 - - - - (6,657) (376) (7,033)
Corperation tax 8 - - - - - (5.897) (5.897)
Deferred tax B - - - - - {1.099) (1,09%)
Pravisions 16 - - - - {146,743) (120) (146,863)
Total liabilities - - - - (153,400) (7.492) (160,892)

Net assets 53,841 200,316 31,090 922,222 (153,400) (6,613)1,047,456




108 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Naotes to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 March 2016
Liabilities Non-
Assets Loans Heldto  Available held at financial
held at and maturity forsaie amortised assetsand
Note FVTPL receivables investments assets cost  liabilities Total
£000 £000C £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Property, plantand
equipment 10 - - - - - 361 361
Intangible assets 11 - - - - - 119 119
Loans and receivables 121 - 72,887 - - - - 72,887
Held to maturity
investments 12.2 - - 31,090 - - - 31,080
Available-for-sale
financial assets 12.3 - - -~ 729,735 - - 729,735
Designated at FVTPL 124 15,029 - - - - - 15,029
Derivatives 125 18,911 - - - - - 18,911
Trade and other
receivables 13 - 17,971 - - - - 17.871
Prepayments 13 - - - - - 130 130
Cash and cash
equivalents 14 - 58,382 - - - 58,382
Total assets 33,940 149,240 31,090 729,735 - 610 944,615
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 - - - - (14,189) (1,686)  (15,875)
Corporation tax 8 - - - - - (5.710) (5.710)
Deferred tax 8 - - - - - (2.796) (2,796)
Provisions 16 - - - - (108212} - (108.212)
Total liabilities (122,401) (10,192) (132,593}
Net assets 33,940 149,240 31,090 729,735 (122,401) (9,582) 812,022
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21.2 Fairvalue measurements

Theinformation set out below
provides information about how
the Group determines fair values
of varigus financial assets and
financial liabilities.

For financial reparting purpases, fair
value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
towhich the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

— Levell fair value measurements
are those derived from quected
prices (unadjusted}in active
markets;

— Level 2 fair value measurements
are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are ohservable
for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly
{i.e. derived from prices); and

— Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that incude inputs Tor
the asset or liahility that are not
based on cbservable market data
{unobservable inputs).
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The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through prafit or loss, available
for sale assets and loans and
receivables are all classified as Level 3
assets. The Group's held to maturity
investments are classified

as Level 1 assets,

At 31 March 2017, based on the
valuation assessment available-for-sale
assets were increased by £12.2 millien
(31 March 2015: £12.3 million} taken

to Other Comprehensive Income.

At 31 March 2017, the fair value of
derivative assets held was increased by
£5.4 miliion (31 March 2016: £6.6million)
taken to the Income Statement. in
addition, the fair value of assets held as
at fair value through profit or loss was
increased by £5.0m (31 March 2016:
£0.3m) taken to the Income Statement.

The investment portfolio consists
of assets carried at amortised cost
{loans and receivables and held to
maturity investments) and fair value
(available for sale assets, assets
designated at fair value through prafit
and loss and derivatives). Fair value
is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer

a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at

the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

Fair value of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair valueona
recurring basis

Available for sale assets

For all AFS assets, except for the
Enterprise Capital Funds, the
investment valuation, a net asset
valuation (NAV) which is determined
on a fair value basis, is determined
by investment managers onareqular
basis {monthly ar quarterly).

The Directors review the investment
valuaticn reports periodically and
are satisfied with the period-end
valuations presented in the financial
statements.

Enterprise Capital Funds, assets
designated at fair value through
profit or loss & derivatives

The primary valuation methedology
used for the debt element of
investments is the discounted cash
flow method, Fair value is estimated
by deriving the present value of

the invastmeant using reascnable
assumptions of expected future cash
flows and the estimated repayment
value and date, ¢iscounted at the
appropriate risk-adjusted discount
rate. The discount rate is estimated
with reference to the market risk-free
rate and arisk-adjusted premium.

Each investment has an annuaily
reviewed and where appropriate
updated model, which for each
valuation assessiment is updated for
actual asset performance and key
assumption and input changes.

Enterprise Capital Funds also contain a separately identified equity derivative. The derivatives are valued using
the Black-Scholes model. The key inputs used in the derivative valuation are:

Input

Net amount drawn and fund valuation as at 31 March 2017
Time to fund exit - ranging from 0-10 years

Volatility - ranging from 19% to 20%

Dividend yield - ranging from 3.0% to 4.5%

Risk freerate

Assumptions in determining the input

Reported by fund managers
Assessed separately for each fund based on remaining

investment period and estimated timetable for fund exits.
The VIX and the VXN indexes have been used as a proxy
for the expected volatility for non-sector specific and
technalogy specific funds respectively.

Set to equal the contractual return which funds must

pay before any upside ¢n the opticn is realised,
Derived from UK Government bonds.
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V( Catalyst

The ¥C Catalyst investment valuation
is anet asset valuation (NAV} whichis
determined on a fair value basis, and
determined by investment managers
on a regular basis {monthiy or
quarterly).

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not
measured at fairvalueona
recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures are required)

The Directors consider that the
carrying amounts of the loans and
receivables and held to maturity
financial assets recorded at amortised
costin the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

21.3 Financial risk management

The Group has exposure 1o a number
of financial risks through the conduct
of its operations. Details of the
Group's risk management structure
are provided in the Risk Management
secticn of the Strategic Report,

This note presentsinfarmation about
the nature and extent of risks arising
from the financial instruments.

The British Business Bank has
exposure to the following risks from
its use of financial instruments;

— Credit and investment risk
— Marketrisk

Liquidity risk is not deemed relevant
for the Group asitis 100%
Government funded, with all
programmes pre-approved and
committed to, and it doas not have
aleveraged balance sheet.

Credit and Investment risk

Credit and Investment risk is the

risk of alossdue to the failure of a
counterparty or a financial instrument
tomeet its obligations to pay the
Groupin accordance with agreed
terms, or due to aloss of value in
equity investments or the impact of
credit spread movements. Credit risk
alsoincludes settlementrisk when a
countterparty fails to settle their side
of a transaction and concentration risk.
The Group's creditrisk is also influenced
by general macroeconomic conditions.

Credit risk may arise in any of the
Group's assets where there is the
potential for default including loans
and receivables and available for sale
investments with a contractual
repayment,

The degree to which the Groupis
exposed to this credit risk depends
on the individual characteristics of
the contract counterparty and the
nature of the investment. The
amount of exposure, before taking
into account any collateral or security,
in each class of financial assetis
limited to the amount invested at
any given pointin time. At 31 March
2017, the Group helds collateral

for £52mofinvestmentsin the
Investment Programme.
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As part of the risk appetite process
the Bank undertakes stress scenario
modelling onits portfolio. Severe but
plausible stressed scenarios featuring
significant asset value corrections

on fair value of investments and
heightened portfalio defaults were
applied to planned deployment and
stock levels in each Programme within
the Bank, The general approach is
that these scenarios are chosen on
the basis that they are as severe as
alin20year downside scenario (le.
the worst year in the past 20 years).
The output of this exercise reflects
the risk undertaken by the Bank
gperating in underserved finance
markets and demonstrates that the
Bank would suffer significant losses

if such a scenario were 1o materialise.
We also undertock a stress test based
upen Bank of England guidelines,
stressing a number of macroeconomic
variables and evaluating how their
movements would impact on losses
on the Bank’s portfolic.

The findings of this exercise were
considered by the Board and also
cemmunicated to key stakeholders.

The value of the investments in each
class of financial assetis detailed in
section 21.1 of this note and in notes
12 and 16 which also give details

of total impairment losses during
the year.

For some debtinvestments
appropriate collateral is held,
depending on the Group's programme
criteria. The nature of collateral may
change over time depending on the
investments which the Group halds
inany given year. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the
investment base being large and
spread across the Group's aperating
segments. Accordingly, the Directors
believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the
provision for impairment losses and
the specific provision for credit losses
detailed opposite.
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Credit risk assessment is carried out
as part of theinvestment approval
process and is revisited on an ongoing
basis as part of the Group's portfelic
management process.

In determining falr value the Group
has made allowance against the value
of certain loans and receivables,
those being receivables purchased
through an invoice discounter and
part-loans to borrowers that are
made alongside other platform
lenders, in accordance with its
provisioning policy. The hasis of
impairment allowance is different
for the different categories af loans
and receivables. In determining

the recoverability of the amounts
receivable, the Group considers past
performance of recoveries.

With respect to recelvables
purchased through an invoice
discounter the Group provides for all
detts which are averdue by 90 days
at arate of 100% of the average
overdue balance over the previous
three months. In addition it makes
1009% provision for all receivables in
respect of which there is a known or
expected problemin collection even
if paymentis not overdue by 90 days.
At 31 March 2017 the gross value of
receivables purchased through an
invoice discounter was £4.3m of
which £222,000 was averdue and
fully provided.

The Group makes provision for all
part-inans made 1o borrowers
alengside other platform lenders
which are gverdue by 90 days at a
rate of 100%. At 31 March 2C17 the
gross value of such receivables was
£50.7m cf which £2,596,000 was
overdue by 90 days and fully provided.

No other repayments in respect of the
Group's financial instruments were
averdue at the balance sheet date
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Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of direct or
indirect losses that arise from
fluctuationsin values of, arincome
from, assets orinmovementsin
interest ar exchange rates or credit
spreads. The Group will identify
market risk arising from an inability
to exitan investment within the
intended time frame.

Interest rate risk

The British Business Bank's
investments include a combination of
fixed and variable rate loans. Interest
rate risk is regularly monitored to
ensure that the mix of variable and
fixed rate borrowing is appropriate.
The Group does not use derivatives
tohedge interestraterisk.

LIBOR sensitivity of the Group's
investments are estimated is as
follows:

— Theimpact of al percentage paint
increase in the interestrate
applicable to investments would be
an approximate increase inincome
of £8m over a one year period.

— Theimpact of a 0.25 percentage
point decrease In the interestrate
applicable to investments would
be an approximate decrease in
income of £1m over a one year
period. Larger decreases would be
mitigated by a significant element
of LIBOR floors.

Currency risk

The Group does not have material
exposure to currency risk as the
Group primarily invest inits functional
currency, pounds sterling, There are
some investments in funds which
have a Europe wide investment
mandate, and are denominated in
Euros. A condition of these funds
isthat they investinto the UK at a
funglevel alarger ameount than our
finandial investment. Appraoximately
3% of the Group's portfolio isin
non-pounds sterling denominated
investments, There s currently no
policy to hedge this currency risk. Due
to the small amount of investments
currently held in non-pounds sterling
no sensitivity analysis has been
performedin respect of this area.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity
does not have sufficient financial
resgurcesin the short term to meet
its obligations as they fall due, orits
strategyis constrained by inadeguate
or inappropriate funding sources.

Liquidity risk is not deemed
significantly relevant to the Group
asitis 100% Government funded,
with all prcgrammes pre-approved
and committed to, and it does not
have aleveraged balance sheet.

22. Related party
transactions

Balances and transactions between
the company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties, have
beeneliminated ¢n consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note.
Transactions between the Group

and its associates are disclosed on
page 112. Compensation paid to key
management perscnnel is disclosed in
the Directers’ Remuneration Report.

The Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS! is the
principal shareholder and parent of
the British Business Bank plc. The
British Business Bank plc provides
services to BEIS in relation to seme
financial assets held by BEIS. Inreturn,
the British Business Bank recognises
income inrelation to the services
pravided. In addition, BEIS provided
temporary staff to the the British
Business Bank Group fer which there
arerecharges.

Northern Powerhouse Investments
Limited (NPIL} and Midlands Engine
Investments Limited (MEIL} are
related parties by virtue of having
directors who are also directors of
the British Business Bank plc. The
Group has provided servicesin the
year in the setting up cf these funas
in anticipaticn of them making
investments.
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Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions:

Notes to the consolidated finandial statements

2017 2016
£000 £0C0D
Income
Managemant fee - BEIS 10,075 10,650
Management fee - NPIL 2,386 -
Management fee - MEIL 1,414 _
Proceeds of warranty claim - BE!S - 2,900
13.875 13,550
Expenditure
Staff seconded from BEIS 154 673
Rent - BEIS 437 350
Other - BEIS 67 -
658 1,023
Capital transactions
Shares issued - BEIS 233,882 173,200
Shareholder loan - BEIS - 8,882
233,882 182,082

Amounts outstanding at year end

As at the halance sheetdate, the Croup was owed £2.6 million from BEIS relating to the management fee (31 March 2016:
£3.8m) and owed BEIS £0.6 million of which £0.2 million relates ta secanded staff, £0.4 milion rent and a sharehalder loan

of £nil (31 March 2016: £8.Sm).

As at the balance sheet date, the Group was cwed £0.1m from NPIL (31 March 2016: £nil) and £0.1m fram MEIL

{31 March 2016: £nil} relating to the management fee.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has made loan commitments to NPIL of £50m (31 March 2016: £nil) and MEIL

of £32.5m (31 March 2016 £nil). None of these ameounts had been drawn down as at the balance sheet date.

23. Events after the reporting date

Following the year end, on 1 April 2017 the Group through British Business Finance Limited took control of the Start Up
Loans Company following a reorganisation within the Group’s parent undertaking. As this transacticn did not take place
until after the reporting date, the financial statements and accompanying notes do not include any amountsin respect

of the Start Up Loans Company.

As at the date of these financial statements, there have been no ather post reporting date events that require disclasure,

24, Controlling party

In the opinicn of the Directors, the Group's parent company and ultimate controlling party is the Secretary of State for
the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The consolidated financial statements of the Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV.UK,
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Independent auditor’s
report to the members

of British Business Bank plc

fhave audited the parent company
financial statements of British
Business Bank plc for the year ended
31 March 2017 which comprise;

— the Company Statement of
Financial Position;

- theCompany Statement of
Changesin Equity;

- theCompany Cash Flow
Statement; and

- therelated notes.

The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their
preparationis applicable law and
International Financial Reparting
Standards gs adopted by the
Eurcpean Union and as regards the

parent company financial statements,

as applied in accordance with the
provisions ¢f the Companies Act
2006. lhave also audited the
information in the Directer's
Remuneration Report that is
described as having been auditec.

Respective responsibilities of
the directors and the auditor

As explained more fully in the
Statement of Directors' responsibilities
setouton page 74, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, My responsihifity is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards require me and my
staff to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

Anauditinvolves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud cr error. This includes
an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to
the parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied
and adeguately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overalt presentation
of the financial statements. In addition
[read ail the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to
identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and
toidentify any information thatis
apparently materially incorrect based
on, or materially inconsistent with,

the knowledge acquired by mein

the course of perfarming the audit.

If | become aware of any apparent
material misstatements cor
inconsistencies | consider the
implications formy report,

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:

- the financial statements give
atrue and fair view of the state
of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 March 2017; and

- thefinancial statements have
heen properly prepared in
accordance with Internatianal
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by European Union; and

- the financial statements have
been prepared in accordance
with the Ccmpanies Act 2006.
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Independent auditor's report

Opinion ocnother matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In my opiniomn;

— thepartof the Directors’
Remuneration Repart to be
audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 20C6.

— theinformation givenin the
Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the
financial statements and these
reports have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable
legal requirements; and

- Inlight of the knowledge and
understanding of the parent
company and its environment
cbtainedin the course of the audit,
[ have not identified any material
misstatements in the Strategic
Reportor the Directors’ Report,

Matters on which Ireport by
exception

I have nothing to reportinrespect
of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires me
toreport to you if, in my opinion:

- adeqguate accounting records
have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for
my audit have not been received
from branches not visited by my
staff; or

— thefinancial statements are not
in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

~ certaindisclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

- lhavenotreceived all of the
information and explanations
Irequire for my audit.

Other matter

I have reported separately, on pages
7510 79, on the Group Financial

Statements of British Business Bank
plc for the yearended 31 March 2017

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditor

13 July 2017

For and on behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor General (Statutory
Auditar)

National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

London SW1W 9SP
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Company financial statements
Company Statement
of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2017
2017 2016

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Praoperty, plant and equipment 525 361
Intangible assets 50 119
Investments 2 976,072 750,611
Total non-current assets 976,647 751,091
Current assets
Trade and cther receivables 4 5,649 8,785
Deferrec tax 151 a3
Cash and cash equivalents 3 45,875 46,837
Total current assets 51,655 55,715
Total assets 1,028,302 806,806
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 {(4.779) (15,491)
Corporation tax (60} (56)
Provisions (120) -
Total current liabilities o (4,959) (15,547)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,023,343 791,259
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 (656) {47)
Total nen-current liabilities (G50) {47)
Total liabilities (5,615) {15,594)
Net assets 1,022,687 791,212
Equity
Issued share capital 1,071,408 837,526
Retained earnings (48,721) (46,314)
Total equity 1,022,687 791,212

The Cempany has taken advantage of section 408 of the Act and consequently the statement of comprehensive income
{including the profit and loss account) of the parent company is not presented as part of these accounts. The loss of the
parent company for the financial period amounted to £2,407,000 {2016: loss £46,250,000).

The financial staterments of the company were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 13 July
2017 They were signed onits behalf by:

- ..ﬂmmm

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

The nates on pages 118 to 120 form anintegral part of the financial statements,
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Company Statement
of Changes in Equity

Company financial statements

as at 31 March 2017
Issued capital Retained earnings Total
£000 £000 £000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2015 664,326 (64) 664,262
Net income after tax - {46,250) (46,250)
Total comprehensive income - (46,250} (46,250)
Issue of ardinary shares 173,200 - 173,200
Balance at 31 March 2016 837,526 {46,314) 791,212
Openingbalance as at1 April 2016 837,526 {46,314) 791,212
Net income after tax - {(2.407) {(2.407)
Total comprehensive income - (2,407) (2,407)
Issue of grdinary shares 233,882 - 233,882
Bafance at 31 March 2017 1,071,408 (48,721) 1,022,687
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Company cash flow statement
as at 31 March 2017

2017 2016

Note £000 £000
Loss befaore tax {2,398) {45,323)
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, bad debt and impairments 326 304
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings e 42,407 70,257
Loss on disposal of dispesal of intangible assets - 14
Corperation tax paid (42) (80
Other provision expense 120 -
Movement in trade receivables 4 3,136 471
Movement in trade payables 5 (10,104) 9,856
Net cash received from operating activities 33.445 34,499
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of available-for-sale assets Z (267,868) (202,000)
Purchases of preperty, plant and equipment (414) (21)
Purchase of intangible assets (7) (9)
Net cash used in investing activities (268,289) (202,030)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new sharas 233,882 173,200
Net cash from financing activities 233,882 173,200
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (962) 5.669
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46,837 41,168
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 45,875 46,837

The notes on pages 118 to 120 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the company financial
statements

1. Significant accounting palicies

Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 {'the Act).

The Company'’s financial accounting policies are consistent with those described in the consolidated accounts of the
British Business Bank plc. Disclosures in relation to property, piant and equipment {note 10) intangible assets (note 11)
and share capital (note 19) have not been repeated here as there are no differences to those provided in the consolidated

accounts.
investments in subsidiary undertakings are measured at cost less impairment in accordance with 1AS 27,

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as described in the consolidated accounts of
the British Business Bank plc, and under the historical cost convention. The financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency.

2, Investments

The Company acts as a helding company for the Group and has the foliowing principal subsidiary undertakings which
affected the Group'sresults or net assets:

Subsidiary Nature of Business

British Business Bank Investments Limited (BBBIL) Makes commercial investments inta providers of

finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital
fundinvestments

British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) Manages investment schemes on behalf of the Group

British Business Financial Services Limited (BBFSL) Manages investment schemes on behaif of the
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and incorporated in the UK, all shareholdings are in the name of
British Business Bank plc.

See note 20 for details of all subsidiary holdings of the company.
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At 31 March 2017

Investment Investment Investment
in BBBIL in BBFL in BBFSL Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 687,896 62,715 - 750,611
[nvestmentin year 232,868 35,600 - 267,868
Impairment - (42,407) - {42,407}
Closing Balance 920,764 55,308 - 976,072
At 31 March 2016
Investment Investment tnvestment
in BBBIL in BBFL in BBFSL Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 500,153 118,715 - 618,868
investment in year 189,000 13,000 202,000
Impairment {1.257) (69,000) - (70,257)
Closing Balance 687,896 62,715 - 750,611

3, Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents balance represents cash held with the Government Banking Service,

4. Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
£000 £000

Amounts receivable within one year
Trade receivables 601 2,176
Prepayments 304 130
Intra-Group 4,147 6,286
Other receivables 597 193
5,649 8,785

Trade receivables disclosed ahove are classified asioans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost.

5. Trade and other payables

2017 2016
£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 141 310
VAT and social security 353 1,258
Accrued expenditure 2.264 1,886
Intra-Group 44 2,359
Cther payables o 1,977 9,678
4,779 15,451

Amounts after more than one year

Accrued expenditure ) 656 47
- 656 47

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value,
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6. Related party transactions

During the year under review British Business Bank plc was 100% owned by the UK Government, with the shareholder
being the Secretary of State for the Department for Business, Energy and Industriai Strategy. The Company has elected
to take the exemption under IAS 24 regarding disclosure of transactions with related parties because UK Government
has control cver both the Company and other entities. Compensation paid to key management personnelis disclosed

in the Directars’' Remuneration Report.

The Company trades with Government bodies on an arm’s length basis on commercial terms in line with contractual
agreements, The main Government bodies transacted with are the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy and the Company's principal subsidiary undertakings British Business Bank Investments Limited (BBEIL), British
Business Finance Limited (BBFL) and British Business Financial Services Limited (BBFSL).

The Group's trading and other capital transactions with BEIS were all effected through the Company and are disclosed in
nole 22 of the consolidated financial statements,

The Company provided capital to 8BBIL and BBFL as shown in note 2. In additien it made charges toits principal subsidiary
undertakings in respect of services provided on their behalf amounting te £13.4 million (2016: £12.7 million).

7. Controlling party

In the opinion of the Directors, the company’s ultimate contrelling party is the Secretary of State for the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The consclidated financial statements of the Department far Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV.UK, Copies of the group financial
statements of the British Business Bank plec are available from Companies group financial statements of the British
Business Bank plc are available from Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff (F14 3UZ.
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